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Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operations of Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as set out in this annual report
are historical in nature and past performance is not a guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward-looking statements and opinions (including
statements, figures, plans, images and other information) that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor any of its directors, employees or agents shall assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that any
forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialise or turns out to be incorrect.

BARE K ATHE R

EREXARAR(TARR]) KEMBAR (R AEE DERFRABNRBERAREEXAEBELBE - BERALTRE B RKRE - AFERIEA AT
R R E R (BERL - #F 518 BEREMCE MER S RERETHARREE - EREFBRRALENEEREILEETRENERARRAFERAER
AEE - REEMEE  EE - KB TARMEEAFE LR HE R T BR KBS T IEREM S R EFEE -

In case of any inconsistency between the English text and the Chinese translation of this annual report, the English text shall prevail.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

Zhengzhou Zensun

I T N

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) was founded in 1965 and listed on
the Main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
since 1972. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) primarily
engages in property development, property investment, project management and
sale services, hotel operations and securities trading and investment in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and overseas.

With the change of controlling shareholder of the Company since July 2015, the
Group has been expanding its business in the property development sector in the
PRC. From mid-2015 and up to 2023, the Group completed 161 land acquisitions
through tenders, public listings for sale auctions and other merger and acquisitions
in support of the land reserves for property development business in Henan
Province, Beijing and Hubei Province. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had
65 completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 38 on-going complex
property projects on hand with 90 land parcels under development and planning
constituting the Group’s land reserves with an aggregate site area of approximately
6.3 million square metres (“sq.m.”) and aggregate estimated gross floor area (“GFA”)
of approximately 13.5 million sg.m. in the PRC. In return, it is expected that the
land reserves will bring to the Group an estimated saleable/leasable GFA under
development of approximately 4.2 million sg.m. and estimated GFA under planning
of approximately 2.5 million sg.m. The Group has built up strong land reserves for
the Group’s property development business in the PRC for the next three to four
years with a strong presence in Henan Province. In the foreseeable future, the
Company will continue to identify new property development projects and bid for
land use rights of selective land parcels in the PRC with focus on Henan Province,
as well as other selective first and second tier cities in the PRC. Since 2022, the
Group has started to operate a hotel, namely, Zensun Jianguo Hotel, the first LOFT
themed space art hotel in Zhengzhou City, the PRC. In January 2023, Zensun
Jianguo Hotel won the “2022 Best Reputation Hotel Award” from Trip.com.

In the United States (“USA” or “U.S.”), the Group holds approximately 5.7% equity
interest over a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”), Global Medical REIT, Inc. (‘GMR”) as of 31 December 2023,
and continues to share GMR’s growth through receipt of dividend income, thereby
achieving long-term capital appreciation of the Group’s investment.

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to enhance its portfolio, asset base and brand image in the PRC, USA
and overseas with an aim to create new sustainable revenue streams and enhance
its shareholder value.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[FRIEXEEAT

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Zensun Enterprises Limited (hereinafter referred to
as the “Company”, and its subsidiaries, collectively,
the “Group”), am pleased to present you the
consolidated annual results and business review of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
(the “Year”).

BHRMBFNMRR :

AABRREBEEERAA(ATEBIAA
Al REMBAR(FBIAKEDESES([ES
)IRAM SR ERIRE AEEH £2023F12 A
SIHMFEE(ARFE |GAEENEKDEE -

Time waits for no man, and we are striving to be the first. While 2023 marked a
year of recovery for the national economy, the real estate industry continued to
face significant challenges due to various complex factors, resulting in a sluggish
real estate market recovery. Notwithstanding such, the Group managed to improve
its sales performance and completed a number of property development projects.
It is important to recognise that during the year, all the staff of the Group have
been closely united, bravely struggled and flexibly responded to various challenges,
made a lot of efforts and accomplished a great deal of work. Despite many
difficulties faced by the Group, there were notable achievements that deserved
recognition.

BARE EEFL - 2023 RERKER AR —
FOEIZEBERAZENTE  BHETENALES
Bl - MBEHEE  BENOW  AEEDARER
ETHHEEE  =RTZEVEEEEE - 75
R —FEREH2BETETEL  BHHE - &)
EHEERE  NHTRZEN TR TAKEIE
REEBASEE  RKAGUBEAZZE  EBSET °
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Zhengzhou Zensun West Lakeside Scholar Mansion
BY)NIE BT EF

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue and
gross profit amounted to approximately RMB20,034.9 million and approximately
RMB772.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 107.5% and
a decrease of approximately 6.6% respectively compared with that of the
corresponding period of 2022, which were primarily derived from the property
development business in the PRC. The increase in revenue was mainly contributed
by more delivery of saleable/leasable gross floor area (“GFA”) from the delivery
of the Group’s completed property development projects during the Year as
compared to 2022. The decrease in gross profit during the Year as compared
to 2022 was resulted from the recognition of certain lower profit margin property
projects during the Year, which was caused by unexpected higher construction
cost and suppressed selling prices of property projects under the decreasing
public purchasing desires and power in the real estate market derived from the
macroeconomic downturn and the continued depletion of demand in real estate
properties.

HZE2023F12 A31H L BFE - XEBZ K KE
MR ANRE20,034 0B BT ENARETIT2TEE
T+ 8220224 B H 2 W s R EF D B ALI107.5% K
BLH6.6%  HEBREFPEMEBRRBEBAME - K
MDD EEERAEBRAFERN 2 BRI ED
BEERXMNzALE HEegfEmE([BERE]ER
2022F ANFTEN - ANFEEFE2022F 7 2 JTh R A
FENERETABRERE2YWEELR @ HBERE
ABBERLAGAETIER(BERBLEE MILE
WEVEFFELBS)EECEB N THEHBERT -
MEBEEEIE  EINEERSBERAE -
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

The past year could be described as a year full of arduous challenges. In the face of
these difficulties, the Group responded positively and worked together to safeguard
the Group’s sound operation. The Group actively pursued the development of the
on-going construction of projects to ensure the delivery of high-quality buildings,
high-quality services and high-quality ancillary facilities on schedule. In fulfilling
its social responsibilities, the Group assumed the responsibility of guaranteeing
the delivery of its property development projects and other services. The Group
not only continued to improve the quality of its products and level of services, but
also continued to increase the influence of its brand, winning high praise from the
society.

In 2023, amidst the downturn in the real estate market, the Group mainly focused
on the development and sales of existing projects and did not acquire any new
land parcels throughout the Year. Looking back on the past and looking forward
to the future, taking into account the overall situation of the real estate industry,
in the coming year, the Group will continue to fulfill the government’s mandate of
guaranteeing the delivery of buildings, implement the construction of new projects
in accordance with the market conditions, actively promote sales and payment
collection, continue to focus on maintaining a stable cash flow, and continue to
maintain cordial communication with investors, in order to ensure that the Group
will continue as a going concern and develop in a sustainable manner.

Overseas

In the U.S., the Group currently holds equity interests in two REITs, namely, GMR
(listed on NYSE) and American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”). GMR has been focusing
on acquisition of state-of-the-art, purpose-built, licensed and specialised medical
facilities in the U.S., and currently owns 185 medical and healthcare facilities, with
approximately 4.7 million net leasable square feet. The Group expects that GMR
will continue to grow rapidly with its robust property portfolio in the future years. As
of 31 December 2023, the Group has approximately 5.8% equity interest in GMR,
and receives quarterly dividends paid by GMR.

AHR, primarily focusing on property investment and management investment,
is currently 99%-controlled by the Group. Now, AHR owns two senior housing
communities, namely, Oxford Derby in Kansas and Oxford McKinney in Texas. The
Group will closely monitor the local market environment in the USA, and adjust
business strategy and development direction as and when appropriate. In addition,
the Group owns 28 SOHO portfolios of commercial and residential units and four
quality residential property portfolios in Singapore for the purpose of rental and
capital appreciation. The Group will regularly review the Singapore property market
to explore any business opportunities in the foreseeable future.

BEN-FABIRAMBRFORE > mHEZRE
SEEREY  ETES  RETEENBEES -
SEEGHEERENETEL  UBRREAXN SR
BRE ShERBNSRERE -ERTHEEME
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B BESRAERELE  FEEREERBERTE
B UREEENFECERBEER -

&op

EEFHE AEEBRFE _REHEREETN
# 2% 9 Bl A GMR K American Housing REIT, Inc.
([AHR]) + EFRGMRE R AIFEHZ H AT LT - GMR
—HEEREEEWERMES S ERRNERE
BERHE - B AT A 185 B B RIRIERRNE - A EFE
BH47TEEYERR - REBTEFGMRAEBRY A
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B A B GMRAI5.8% ki - TZF[E AT EGMRIKZEHY
B BN o

AHREZHIHRMEREARERRE BARAEEE
HIH 9% S o IREF - AHREEA 5 BI AL 1 5 270 79
Oxford Derby } 12 57 i H7 M| #) Oxford McKinney £ &
EZWEDE AEERSEYEFRERE MO TSR
B O ERARERRERERESTR o N AEBR
N A 28 ESOHOR (E B A A RAEEL (EEY
EEE  EAEMEREAMERSE  AEEBTEHE
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

Zhengzhou Zensun Zhenruishangjing
BMIERTEE L E

Appreciation

“I hope that the coming year will be a good year, and the goodness that we
envision and expect will be realized.” The sustainable and steady development of
the Group depends on the thought unity, cohesion and courage of all employees,
as well as the care, support and assistance of all shareholders, partners and
customers. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
our wholehearted gratitude and sincere respect to all shareholders, partners,
customers and employees of the Group. Looking ahead to 2025, we will take
forward our work in a practical manner with more enthusiasm, positive attitude
and pragmatic working style, and we believe that we will be able to get through
the bitter winter and usher in a warm spring! We will live up to the expectations of
our shareholders and investors, as well as our original aspiration, so as to strive
to create maximum value and continue to make greater contributions to social
progress.

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 September 2024

2
[FLERFIEGTF  FESNMENNETESE
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HONG KONG AND OVERSEAS PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

BRKEIIMIFERAS

The Group owns a diverse range of residential, commercial properties and senior
housing communities located in Singapore, Hong Kong and the U.S..

AEEREATRERNET  BHENEALREETFE
= RIS - FELEE -

st

FERFRRPEPREERRRRY

1M

1. Dakota Residences

SINGAPORE PROPERTIES

The Group’s Singapore property portfolio is concentrated in locations near Mass
Rapid Transit (MRT) stations, Singapore’s railway system, ensuring convenience
and connectivity. The Group owns a portfolio of SOHO units at Southbank which
features high-ceilings and duplexes. These units are uniquely zoned for both

28&3. Southbank Soho

g

NEBFMFEMEA S EF RTINS EIEHA - 2
W E = - AN % @ 7 Southbank ## B SOHO % {i 78
B UREERERATAEEL - ZSBEMEIFA
DB AIMEEEREERSE RS KEER - &

residential and commercial uses and hence generate strong rental yield. The Group
also owns a portfolio of residential properties at Dakota Residences adjacent to the
Dakota MRT station.

& E 7 Dakota Residences# B X =¥ %4  Dakota
ResidencesHt #8Dakotatt i ©

HONG KONG PROPERTIES

The Group owns two floors and two car-parking spaces in Wyndham Place, a
prime commercial office building located in the Central district of Hong Kong — the
central business district of the region. The Group currently uses one floor as its
headquarters and treats the remaining portion as investment properties for earning
rental income and/or capital appreciation.

0 EYES

AEERERFHEFLEEMEREETEMEEN - ZEFR/ERTRIEN

DARE - (UREER LS - REBERBEFR —EEREE - EHalo HERK
By EARBES WA R, REAREE -

U.S. PROPERTIES

The Group owns two senior housing communities
(one in Texas and one in Kansas) with total area of
approximately 98,700 sq.ft. which were held through
its U.S. subsidiary, AHR. The Group also owns freehold
land parcels with approximately 273,200 sg.m. in
California and two apartment residential units situated
on Wall Street in New York.

XEME
AEEFBHENRERZMBARAHRKEB TMERS
FEEES (—EMLRNERERIN - —EREEIN) -
EEA 498,700 F 7R = A& B JR7E b0 N FE B 49
273,200 F 7 R Z K A FEMEMIR - WA ERGHER
A ABETEER

il [

Glen Carr House, senior housing community

Glen Carr House K& £5E&
3&4. Oxford Grand McKinney, senior housing community
Oxford Grand McKinney <% (/=152
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Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile House 6 Luoyang Zensun City 11 Luoyang Zensun City
FFEEESEER &5 EE &5 IE R
Xuchang Zensun Orchids Mansion 7 Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley Phase I 12 Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage Mansion
FFEEEWEEN PN 1E 7T M — H S 1 7 A 84 58
Ruyang Zensun Scholar Court 8 Zhengzhou Zensun Longhushangjing 13 Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids Mansion
KIS ERERERE BN IER I 35 (Valley-view Court)

BN IERBETE T (W RERE)
Guangshan Zensun Scholar Mansion 9 Wuhan Zensun Scholar Mansion 14 Zhengzhou Zensun Smart City B-08
RINEREFERN REFHEFERN Land Parcel

EDN TE 7 S 230 B-08 1 57
Yichuan Zensun Yihe Horizons 10 Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile House 15 Shangqiu Zensun Scholar Mansion

FIER G ES
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EREXERAF

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC

EREYERRE 2EERE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 65 completed property projects and/
or sub-phases and 38 on-going complex property projects on hand with 90
land parcels under development and planning with an aggregate site area of
approximately 6.3 million sq.m. and aggregate GFA of approximately 13.5 million
sqg.m. in the PRC. In return, it is expected that the land reserves will bring to the
Group with estimated saleable/leasable GFA under development of approximately

4.2 million sg.m. and estimated GFA under planning of approximately 2.5 million

sqg.m..

Project

Number Property Project

LR

%58

Location

D)

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS
EHEEE LS

1

Zhengzhou Zensun
Jingkai Plaza
INEEERRS

Zhengzhou Zensun
Xinghan Garden
IirERErE

Zhengzhou Zensun
Scholar Garden
INEFEERE

Zhengzhou Zensun
Longhushangjing
INEERALS

Zhengzhou Zensun River
Valley Phase | (Green-view
Garden No. 1)

BTN

(BALE-5R)

Zhengzhou Zensun River
Valley Phase I
BTGNS

North of Jingnan 2nd Road and east of
Jingkai 9th Avenue, Znengzhou City
IR EREARENR

East of the intersection of Dahe Road and
Guru Road, Zhengzhou City
BRAR RABARRNE

The intersection of east to Sanglin East Road
and north to Ruifeng Road, Zhengzhou City
INTENRRR R RIRER

North of Chaoyang Road and east of
Zhongyi Road, Znengzhou City
ENTRGRIL - RERNR

North of Lvda Road and west of Yuxiu Road,
and south of Chunxi Road, and west of
Jinzun Road, Zhengzhou City

ENmEERIY - RARNER
ERIIE SRBNE

North of Lvda Road, east of Hongsong Road,
and Jinzun Road, south of Chunxi Road,
and east of Yuxiu Road, Zhengzhou City

ENTERERIL - IRBNE - SERIR
REREIE SAENE

Interest

attributable

Actual/Estimated tothe

Completion Time Group

A5R

MER%

B/ EHRIRE HiER

4ih quarter of 2017 100%
NITEERER

4th quarter of 2017 100%
N1TEENER

4th quarter of 2019 100%
N9EENER

4ih quarter of 2019 100%
WFEMER

4th quarter of 2019 100%
N19FENER

4th quarter of 2020 o 100%
2nd quarter of 2021
NNFERFEZ0

552%F

Total

site area

(sq.m)

Type Approximately

BiEwER

(T5K)

Ri f

Commercial 47,736
[

Residential 34,439
fiz

Commercial 25,357
[

Residential 62,286
fiz

Residential 132,111
fi

Residential 186,648
iz

WA E (#o01EHIR)

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m,)

Approximately  Approximately

522
(F3%)
f

21,748

66,103

100,662

93,399

176,84

191,97

B4I
18/8K
BEEE
(¥A%)
8

211,748

66,103

100,662

93,399

176,845

191,971

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BRA
fEire /8
E5ER
(F5K)

f

R2023F 12 A31 8 « AEERF BRI A65EE EKZ
WEBER &, KNIBE 5 HRSSERITRE MEEIFRE
CRBEEELN AEE3EE TS
KR EFEAERBENA13.5A 8T K - FBE L EEHS
AASBEREEEFGHAILE FMEREMEL4L.2
BEFHFRERAEPHEELEMBEL2588F K -

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

Bl
BEEE
(¥A%)

]
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed  leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under ~ GFA under
attributable sitearea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group ~ Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately
[&i-a R4
TE/BE RHTE/BE  EERMH
A5E BERER RREZER EEER BEER EEER
HERH (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R) (¥5R)
AR WERER BE b Bl /RiAIRE WER RE f f # f #
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
li Zhengzhou Zensun River South of Xincheng Road, east of Yule Road, 4ih quarter of 2019 100%  Residential 178,559 289,951 289,951 - -
Home Phase | and east of Xini Street, Zhengzhou City M19FENEE fiz
(Courtyard No. 1) NMIIRUE - RN ERABREMER
INEEZIF 5
(E-5R)
8 Zhengzhou Zensun River South of Xingyun Road, east of Yule Road, 3rd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential 188,643 210275 210275 - -
Home Phese | east of Xinii Sreat and west of WNFEZZE fiz
(Courtyard No. 2) Tianshan Road, Zhengzhou City
i‘HEr‘ﬂﬂ E SHmEERE  RERIR
AEENRRRLBNE
9 Zhengzhou Zensun South of Shisu Road and east of 2nd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 8,051 26,476 26,476 - -
Prosperty Court Fengshuo South Road, Zhengzhou City NNEE-FR iz
INEEREEE INTRERIE  ERHENR
10 Zhengzhou Zensun West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, 4th quarter of 2020 to 100%  Commercial 55,631 193,851 132,129 61,722 -
Vloyage Mansion north of Hanghel East Road, Zhengzhou Ciy dth quarter of 2027 B%
SN TBERSSE SHTERETABNE - HERENL NNFENFEE
NTFENEE
1 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Southwest Distrct of Intersection of Taihe Road ~ 3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 46,899 78,137 78,137 - -
Yu Garden and Zhengtong Road, Dengfeng City NNEE=ZR fiz
BHEEN R BT ANARNBAR A ERRY
12 Dengfeng Zensun City Northeast comer of Intersection of Hanque Road  3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 21,210 59,987 59,987 - -
Xiang Garden and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City NNFE=ZE commercial
EHEENER B TEMARRP AR AR A iz B%
13 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Northeast comer of Intersection of Yinghe Road ~ 3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 50,436 127818 127818 - -
He Garden and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City NNEE=ZF commercial
EHTR AR EHmETARRPRRN AR A £z A%
1 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Northeast comer of Intersection of Denggao Road  3rd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 15,992 37,63 37,635 - -
i Garden and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City WIEE=ZR commercia
BHEENER EHMERRRERRRINORLA fiz B%
15 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Northwest comer of Intersection of Denggao Road  3rd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 32,986 81,307 81,307 - -
Tai Garden and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City WANEE=ZR Commerciel

EHIEN FR BHTERARERRBINOALA fz B2
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[FRIEXEEAT

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EREYERRE 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed  leasable GFA
Interest Total saleable/ under
attributable sitearea  Aggregated leasable  development
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m.)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group ~ Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately
[&i-a R4
TE/8E fHTE/RE
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BEER
HERH (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R)
L BE b Bl /RiAIRE WER RE f f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
16 Xuchang Zensun Scholar North of Nongda Road, south of Gui Hua 4ih quarter of 2020 to 100%  Residential 115,449 305,318 305,318 -
Mansion Nong Xuan Road and west of Gui Hua dih quarter of 2022 12
HEFHEEER Han Lin Road, Jianan District, Xuchang Oty 2020£5M%E%
FETRZREAMME - RESSHANE NEEMER
REEREIE
17 Zhengzhou Zensun South of North 3rd Ring Road and east of 3rd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 58,338 96,549 96,549 -
Longshuishangjing Longhu Nehuan East Road, Znengdong NNFE=ZE fiz
INERRKLE New District, Zhengzhou ity
SHTERIEL = RENE - BHNERENE
18 Ximxiang Zensun Smert City North of Health Avenue and west of 4th quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 40,219 45,126 45,126 -
Rong Garden Central Avenue, Qlying Town, NNEERER commercial
FALEEENY AR Xinang County iz &%
HAS L BLBREABN,  PARENE
19 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City ¢ Intersection of Central Avenue and Financial 4th quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 58,642 96,465 96,465 -
Xiang Garden Road, Qiiying Town, Xinxiang County ANNFEMER commercial
G Nt v e TAG BRER A ABESRERND =z A%
20 Luoyang Zensun City North East of West Ring Road and north of 4th quarter of 2017 100%  Residential & 52,728 185,261 185,261 -
Garden Phase 1 Tank Road, Jianxi District, Luoyang Gity N1TEENER commercia
REEEILE-5 BT RERE AR AR AR ]
Al Zhengzhou Zensun Princess West of Zhengxin Highway and both east 1st quarter of 2019 100%  Residential 147,988 252,672 262,612 -
Lake Phase| and south of Princess Lake, Xincun Town, N19FE-2F iz
INEELTE-5 Zhengzhou Ciy
SN mH SRR RRAARLTARERER
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess North of Xincun North Road and west of Huarui 4t quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 40819 81,951 81,951 -
Lake Phase Il (Huanhuxian) Road, Xingun Town, Zhengzhou Cty NNEERER iz
SHERREY DAL SRR
(BHZx)
p] Zhengzhou Zensun Rivenview East of Jingkai 14th Avenue and South of Jingnan~ 2nd quarter of 2020 100%  Residential & 31,462 119,251 119,251 -
Garden 9th Road, Jingkai District, Znengzhou Gity ANFE-ER commercia

S ERRAS SHTAREARE DAERE  BRARER N

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

Bl
BEEE
(¥A%)

]




Project

Number Property Project

LR

HELE

Location

Rt

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
EREEE L ESELE )

2%

2%

2

2

28

2

30

3

2

Bejing Zensun Grand Garden
FREERR

Bejing Zensun Yazhu Garden

KREARERR

Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage
International Plaza (Phase ||

BNEBRRERES 8

Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Valley-view Garden)

INTARESR(ARER

Xuchang Zensun Golden Mie
House
FELELALE

Xinxiang Zensun Golden Mie
House (Phase l|

FALALHIZ S

Zhengzhou Zensun
International Buiding

BNIRERAR

Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage
Garden (Phase )
INEEEREE S

Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court
(Phase |
SNEEREEE-H

Huaffang Vilage & Xingong Village, Nenyuan
County, Fengtai District, Bejing
IRmEaRAEAREN kA

5th Avenue District, Shunyi New Town,
Renhe Town, Shunyi Distrct, Bejing
FRTESECAZRSMAETER

South of Heshou Quter Ring Road and
west of Shuanghe Lake 2nd Street, and
east of Heshou Quter Ring Road and
north of Wanghu Road, Zhengzhou City

INTEENEENG  EEHCENE
BEIMGRIE SR

West of Guihua 3rd Road and north of
reserve land of Government, Longhu Town,
Xinzheng City
FETREESE-RIE - REER DL

East of Laodong North Road and south of
(Gui Hua Zhou Zhuang Stregt, Jianan District,
Xuchang Ctty

FEMERRATLANE  REBEEIE

West of Xinzhong Avenue, southeast comer of
intersection of Hongyuan Strest and Guihua
Road, Xinxiang City

FATATABIE  RREREHAIND
]

South of Qithe South Road and the west of
Jiayuan Road Zhengdong New District,
Zhengzhou Clty

FERFE ETRRNE  RERIE

West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, south of
Jinghei 4th Road, Zhengzhou City
SHTERETORGNE - EHmEL R

Northwest comer of Intersection of Tashan Road
and National Highway 310, Xingyang City
KEMELRES0EER AL A

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2021
WIEEZER

2nd quarter of 2021
WIFEZER

2nd quarter of 2021
MNFEZFE

2nd quarter of 2021
WIFE-EE

4th quarter of 2021 to
4th quarter of 2026

WIFEMEEE
ABFEMER

3rd quarter of 2021
WNFE=EF

4th quarter of 2021
WIFEMER

1st quarter of 2022 to
4th quarter of 2027

N2EE-FHE
NTEERER

1st quarter of 2022
N0FE-EE

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total
site area

(sam)
Type Approximately

BiEwER
(T5%)
B# f
Residential 53,214
iz
Residential 41,170
fiz
Commercial 1,215
[
Residential 43470
iz
Residential 60,948
iz
Residential & 10,701
commercial
iz 2%
Commercial 13,442
[
Residential & 50921
commercial
REH
Residential 12,177
=2

Annual Report 2023

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

SEEER
(F5R)
)

89,017

59,397

38,029

130,135

144,381

127,108

107,388

203,216

TRI-FEFER

Estimated
saleable/

Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
saleable/ under  GFAunder
leasable  development planning

GFA (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)

Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately — Approximately
BRI BRY

TE/RE GHTE/AE R
EEER BYER BEER
(%) (T7%) (TA%

f # f
89,017 - -
59,397 - -
38,029 - -
130,13 - -
72,107 1,674 -
127,708 - -
107,388 - -
80414 122,802 -
37,269 - -

37,269

17



18  Zensun Enterprises Limited EREXERATE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
3 Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, north of Jingbei 1st  3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 35,702 106,903 106,903 - -
Garden (Phase | Road, Znengzhou City NNFE=ZR fiz
INEEERE -3 SNTERETCABNA S
34 Wuhan Zensun Scholar West of the intersection of Chenggong Avenue and  3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 46,888 164,108 164,108 - -
Mansion Maoring Road, Caidian Street, Caician Distct, ~ 2000£5=% iz
BETEEAER Wuhan Cty
RETEAREALRI B ERRERNE
K Zhengzhou Zensun Yating South of Qlaohang Road (Xiangrui Road) 3rd quarter of 2022 o 100%  Residential 54,298 146,60 75422 71,181 -
Mansion east of Linghan Street (Znenggang 7th Street),  4th quarter of 2026 =z
INERREER Airport Harbour Zone, Zhengzhou City N05E-5EE
GNTREERRB(ERING  RREDE  20FENER
THHE
K] Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage East of Heshou Outer Ring Road and north of 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Commercial 10,701 40313 40313 - -
Intemational Plaza (Phase ) Wanghu Road, Zhengzhou City NNFEZFE [
IHEERRERRA—E INTBENRANE - ZHRIL
37 Zhengzhou Zensun East of Longteng 2nd Strest, south of Ruyi River ~ 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 68,819 106,882 106,882 - -
Zhenniishangjing West 2nd Street, Zhengdong New Distict, NNFE=ZE fiz
INEEER LR Zhengzhou Ciy
SHTERIEER_GUR - WEAE_HNE
3 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess East of Huarui Road, west of Princess Lake 3rd quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential 154,901 308,773 107,863 200910 -
Lake Phase and south of Binhe South Road, and 4th quarter of 2027 fiz
(Yuehu Horizons) west of Znengxin Highvway, Xinoun Town, NNEE-FEZ
SNEAREH-H Zhengzhou City WTEERER
(=s) SNmaTESRRRE  AEHRE -
iR ]
39 Dengzhou Zensun Xintiandi East of Sanxian Road and south of Tuanjie Road, ~ 2nd quarter of 2022 51%  Commercial 42,39 42,393 4239 - -
YN EEEF Dengzhou iy NRFE-5E [
PHm=EBRE BEREE
40 Zhengzhou Zensun West South of Hongmei Street and west of Chuanyang  4th quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 51,39 132,121 132,121 - -
Lakeside Scholar Mansion* Road, Gaoxin Distrct, Znengzhou City NNEERER =2
IHEERESR NTRERLEEHE  JIFRUE
I Fengan Garden East of Lingshan Road and west of Yesheng 4if quarter of 2022 51%  Residential & 16,809 33,516 33,516 - -
Ll Street, Dengzhou City NNEEMEE commercia
YHARUBRE - $2LRE iz B



Project
Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rt

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)

EREEE L ESELE )

£ Zhengzhou Zensun Ecological City  South of Yuwu Road), east of Pearl Road and

(No. 1 and 2 Garden)*
Elindsts
(—HRA=SR)

43 Zhengzhou Zensun
Fenghuashangjing*
NEEEEDR

4 Zhengzhou Zensun Xin Harbour
Home

BNIEEER

4 Dengfeng Zensun City  Rui
Garden*

BHIAN RE

46 Dengzhou Zensun Kaiyue
Mansion”
IHEANER

a7 Nanyang Zensun Scholar Gourt”
BRLEEREE

48 Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline Lake
Court Phase I
SNEAZHLR(-8)

4 Luoyang Zensun Ctty North
Garden Phase Il (Xi Garden)’
AREERI-B(ER)

east of Jingzhuang Road, Guancheng District,
Zhengzhou Clty

INTERRRRRNE  WRENE
HHBIR

South of Longhu Nehuan East Road, east of
Chunlei Stregt, Zhengdong New District,
Zhengzhou Clty

FNmAFFEEANRRENE
FEENR

South of Yinghua Road and east of Century
Avenug, north of Lianhua Road and west of
Shenzhou Road, Xuedian Town,

Xinzheng Clty

FOTEEARTREN  HEAERY

B RNEEE

Southeast comer of the Intersection of Shadlin
Avenue and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BHMMAEERRBRNOFHA

West of Bejing Avenue and north of Lingshan
Road, Dengzhou City
B AR - BN

North of Dushi Road and west of Xindong Road,
Nanyang City
BETHERML - FRENE

South of Baiyun Road, and east of Runan Road,
Shangjie Distrct, Znengzhou Clty
YN ERAZRNE REBNR

Southwest and southeast comer of intersection of
Kewen Road and Qunan Road, Jianxi District,
Luoyang City

AETEREM R RERR RN AERAR
REA

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

1st quarter of 2023
NREZ-3E

1st quarter of 2023
NREE-3E

2nd quarter of 2023 o
4th quarter of 2027

NWBEEFRE
NTEERER

2nd quarter of 2023 to
3rd quarter of 2023

NRFE_ERE
NBFEZER

2nd quarter of 2023 to
4th quarter of 2027

NBFE-EFEE
NTEERER

2nd quarter of 2023 o
2nd quarter of 2024

NWBEEFEE
NAEEFR

2nd quarter of 2023 to
4th quarter of 2027

NREZ-FEZ
NAEEMER

3rd quarter of 2023
NBFEZER

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential
=2

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential &
commerclal

[ #%

Residential &
commercial

A%

Residential &
commercial

= B%

Total
site area

(sqm)
Approximately

BEbER
(F7%)
f

7424

45,505

84,186

55,405

64,028

25,093

50,148

2,112

Annual Report 2023

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

SEEER
(F5R)
)

185,663

8

212,465

12110

160,069

88,460

100,179

169,771

BAI
18/8%
REER
(F7%)
f

185,063

118

58,226

121110

79,591

54,969

42,133

160,771

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BRY
fEire /B
BYER
(T5%)

#

164,239

80,478

33490

58,046

=S

—FFER

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(squm)
Approximately

REH
BEER
(¥A%)

f



20  Zensun Enterprises Limited 1EFBEXERANE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
50 Huaibin Zensun Scholar Mansion - West of Chuxiang Avenue, north of Chaoyang 3rd quarter of 2023 90%  Residential & 53,764 118,280 118,280 - -
Phase|* Streat, and south of Qingnian Street, Huaibin 20235 =5 commercia
FAIAERER & County, Xinyang Cty 2 B2
EETERELENERN  SRELAR
EFEEE
51 Huaxian Zensun Orchids Mansion®  West of Jiefang Road and north of Xinda Road,  3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 55,720 111,441 53,23 58,205 -
BETEREER Hua County, Anyang Clty 3rd quarter of 2024 fiz
ZETRRRIRE  HERL NWBEE=FRE
NAEE=FR
5 Ruyang Zensun Scholar Gourt™  South of Yonghui Road, north of Weishier Road,  3rd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential & 84,043 176,419 49,050 40,361 87,008
KRBIAEREE south of Weishier Road, east of Liling South 4th quarter of 2027 commercia
Road, west of Malan West Road, County South 20358 =%§2 2 BE
New District, Ruyang County, Luoyang City NNFENER
BETAREENRREAERR BT R
TBToRE URERR  SHERE
53 Gongyi Zensun Scholar Mansion  East of Qinglongshan Road, south of Sugin Road  3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 51815 93,267 65,667 21610 -
No. 1 Gerden* City Greenland, and east of Jinniushan Road, 4th quarter of 2025 fiz
SRIEEREN-Sh Gongyi Cly NREE=FEE
SETMERLRR  HERESHE 2T NBEENFR
i3
54 Xinxiang Zensun Golden Mile South of Kelong Avenue and east of Xiner Street,  3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 45,591 159,569 169,569 - -
House (Phase | Xindang City WWEE=FE commercil
FArEsEtR - EATHERENE  BoENER fiz &%
5% Guangshan Zensun Scholar East of Zishui Street, north of Paifang Road, 3rd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential & 51,847 129,616 66,889 62,721 -
Mansion® Guangshan Gounty, Xinyang City 4th quarter of 2026 commercial
RUEBEEER EETRLELARGRE - AR NBEE=FEE fix B2
NBFEMER
56 Xinyang Zensun Golden East of Yangshan Sports Park, Huaibin County, ~ 3rd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential & 46435 102,157 85,778 16,378 -
Mie House Xinyang City 4th quarter of 2026 commercial
(Yangshan New Distict EETEREIEENERE NBFEZZEZ iz B
EREELHLR (FLHEY NBFEMER
57 Welhui Zensun Golden M Court”  Northeast comer of the intersection of Bigan 3rd quarter of 2023 o 90%  Residential & 43,964 109,911 71489 38422 -
ERIRSHER Avenue and Zhenxing Road, Weihui Cty dih quarter of 2024 commercial
R T AR AR A NBFEZZEZ EN
NUFEMER
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
5 Dengzhou Zensun Xinyu City* South of Renmin Road and east of Senxian Road, ~ 4th quarter of 2023 51%  Residential H127 102,735 102,785 - -
YNEEHTA Dengzhou Gy AREERZEE fiz
PNTARSSEH ZERRE
5 Bejing Zensun Xinghai Court” East of Yingyi Street, west of Yingtong Strest, 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential 47892 103,979 103,979 - -
FREEAE south of Yinghong Road and north of Yingzhi -~ 20035558 iz
Road, Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Bejing
IRAEBREERZRRN ERAAY
HERTH LERER
60 Shangaju Zensun Scholar East of Ziing Road and south of Yuhang Road,  4th quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 67,802 196,62 99,758 96,867 -
Mansion* Suiyang Distrct, Shangeju City 4ih quarter of 2027 fiz
BREBEEER BETESREAREN  FHEEH NWBEFENFEE
NUEEMER
61 Gongyi Zensun Heluo Horizon Wt of Baiyunshan Road and south of Renhe 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential 20,004 40,008 40,008 - -
E IRy Road, Gongyi City NVEEMER fiz
2ETRZLEE AR
62 Dengzhou Zensun Pearl Lake North of Yingbin Avenue and east of Dongfu Road, ~ 4h quarter of 2023 51%  Residential 53,734 122,362 122,362 - -
BT ER Dengzhou City NREEMER fiz
PNTOBRELE  FHEHRE
63 Yichuan Zensun Yihe Horizons™ ~ North of Yilong Avenue and east of Binhe Avenue,  3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential & 202,883 239,460 92,736 33,060 113,659
EEEFTES Yichuan County, Luoyang City dih quarter of 2027 commercil
AETRIEFEAENL  BTRENR NWBEE-FEE fiz &%
NTEERER
64 Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids South of Guihua 1t Road, west of Qiushi Road,  4th quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 93,497 280490 - 30322 96,731
Mansion (Valley-view Court]* north of Guihua 2nd Road and west of reserve 4th quarter of 2027 iz
SNIEREER(R2ER) land of Goverment, Longhu Town, Xnzheng 202353 EEZ
Ciy NUEEMER
FETERERE NG RERIE A
AL RHRREDNE
65 Xinxiang Zensun Orchids North of Fuyu Road, west of Znengtong Street ~ 3rd quarter of 2023 90%  Residential & 40,105 80210 80,210 - -
Mansion Phase | and south of Xinyan Road, NBFE=FE commercia
FArAREER - Guguzhai Town, Xintiang County it A%
FRERERERRENL  RRENAERK
ERIE
* The 24 newly completed property development projects in phases/sub-phases * RAFEERMNZ24@AF D E,ROBEXMEER
delivered during the Year. IHE -
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREEBRAR

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Project
Number Property Project

Location

Rt

North of Lvda Road, and east of Wenyun Road,
Zhengzhou City
ENTRERIL - XERNE

South of Xincheng Road, and east of Nanbei
Avenue, Zhengzhou City
SHHIIANE  BIAENE

South of Xingyun Road and east of Fengshuo

ERS  MREE
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING
1R/ BHv 2240
1 Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley
(Greenview Commercial Centre)
BNEBTEN 3EH
i)
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Boyue
Commercial Centre
SNEEREEZRL
3 Zhengzhou Zensun River Home
Lane

LiingEpaakl

4 Zhengzhou Zensun River Home
Horizon

BNIEZAER

5 Dengfeng Zensun City # Jing
Garden
BHERSBE

Dengfeng Zensun City ®
Ya Garden
BHERA R

Dengfeng Zensun Cty ¢ Xin
Garden
BHEAH B

6 Znengzhou Zensun Lehuo City
L S

South Street, Zhengzhou City
SHmEERIE  EBEENE

West of Xinxi Street, and south of Kaiyuan Road,
Zhengzhou Clty
INTHEEE Bk

Southeast comer of the Intersection of Dizhong
Road and Znhongyi Road, Dengfeng City
BT RER SR ARAA

Southwest comer of the Intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Lunong Road, Dengfeng City
EHTOHABEERRANAREA

Northwest comer of the Intersection of Yudai Road
and Dizhong Road, Dengfeng City
BT ERREA AR AR A

Zheoling Village and Caodian Vilage, Mihe Town,
Gongyi City
SR BB RERR

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

4ih quarter of 2028
NBFENEE

4ih quarter of 2025
NBFENEE

4th quarter of 2028
NBFEMER

2nd quarter of 2026
NHFEZER

3rd quarter of 2024
NUFE=FE

3rd quarter of 2024
NUFEZER

4th quarter of 2028
NBEEMER

4ih quarter of 2028
NBFENEE

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Commercial

[

Commercial

S

Commercial

[

Residential
iz

Residential
=2

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential,
commercial,
catering &
public utiity

iz #%
RS
i

Total
site area

(sqm)
Approximately

BEbER
(F7%)
f

28,062

31,005

14647

33,446

40,773

1218

43728

238,138

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

SEEER
(F5R)
)

v

108,019

32,023

99,006

73,090

21,983

69,965

229340

BAI
18/8%
REER
(F7%)
f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BRA
fEire /B
BEEE
(T5%)

i

8421

108,019

99,096

73,000

21983

147413

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(squm)
Approximately

REH
BEER
(¥A%)

f

32223

69,965

81,927




Project

Number Property Project

LR

HELE

Location

Rt

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
08 FLPIEEIEY

Xuchang Zensun Orchids Mansion
FEIAREER

Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court
(Phase )
IHEAREEE_S

Ximxiang Zensun Smart City
FHEARERN

Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline Lake
Court Phase
IHEAEA RS

Zhengzhou Zensun Zhengshang
Commercial Centre

INTAE LR

Zhengzhou Zensun Ecalogical City
(No. 5107 Garden)

INEEER
(B¥REtER

Xinmi Zensun City * Xiang Garden

HELAS R

South of Guihua Zhuyuan Street and east of

Guihua Yongxian Road, Jianan District, Xuchang

City
HETRREREMRGNIE  RELER
W&

Southwest of the intersection of Luyin West Road
and Tashan Road Xingyang City
KETEEERBELER R NRARY

South of Health Avenue and west of Central
Avenug, and intersection of Central Avenue and
Financial Road, Qlliying Town, Xinxiang County

RS EREREAENR  PAKENE
RPARERERARAA

South of Baiyun Road, and west of Dengfeng
Road, Shangjie Distrct, Znengzhou City
ST EERAZHNE  BHBNE

East of Tonghang Fifth Road and north of Anyang
Road Shangjie District, Znengzhou City
DN EEEARRRNR - RERI

South of Yuwu Road, east of Pearl Road, west of
Weine East Road, and north of Yulu Road, west
of Xiangjiang Road, and south of Yunyang Road
and west of Pangzhuang Road, Guancheng
District, Zhengzhou City

SHTERBERRNE  BIREANR
RURBEREABML - BIRNER
EREE  BHRE

South of Qingping Strest, west of Fuxi Road, north
of West Stregt and east of Chengyun Road,
Xinmi City

HATERALEE - FAREE
BAGL  AERR

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4th quarter of 2027

NUFE=EEE
NTEENEE

3rd quarter of 2024 to
dth quarter of 2027

NUFE=EEE
NTEENEE

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4ih quarter of 2028

NUFEZERE
NBFEMER

4ih quarter of 2028
NBFENEE

4th quarter of 2028
NBFEMER

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4th quarter of 2027

NUFE=FEE
ATFENER

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4ih quarter of 2026

NUFE=FEE
NBFEMER

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential &
commerclal

[ #%

Residential &
commerclal

[ #%

Commercial

[

Residential
iz

Residential
fiz

Total
site area
(sqm)

Approximately

BEbER
(F7%)
f

62,832

83,577

202,905

47,847

93,643

154,025

79,029
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TRI-FEFER

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
saleable/ under  GFA under
Aggregated leasable  development planning
GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately — Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
STREER EEER BYER BEER
(T5%) (%) (T7%) (TA%
# f # f
173,708 - 173,708 -
184,372 - 184,372 -
367,193 - 8,741 358,412
95,693 - 39,061 56,632
234,108 - 53,881 180,221
404,421 - 237,767 166,654
132,651 - 132,651 -
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREEBRAR

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Project
Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rt

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)

35/ BHh2NEEE(B)

1 Ximxiang Zensun Orchids Mansion
(Phase )
FREERERR
(-8

15 Hualbin Zensun Scholar Mansion
Phase I
REAEAEMN_H

16 Dengfeng Zensun Yinghe Mansion
BUIERTER

17 Dengfeng Zensun Yingoin House
Phese | # Qiyue House
el
HER

18 Dengfeng Zensun Yingbin House
Phese Il » Yingbin House:
EHIAUEEE S
LER

19 Dengfeng Zensun Songyue
Horizons (No. 1o 3 Garden)
BUIHEEER
(~HRZZ5R)

20 Luoyang Zensun City North Garcen
Phase Il (Yu Garden)
BB E(HE)

North of Fuyu Road, west of Zhengtong Street
and south of Xinyan Road, Guguzhal Town,
Xinxiang County

FRELEREEHANL  MBENER
R

West of Chuxiang Avenue, north of Chaoyang
Street, and south of Qingnian Street, Hualoin
Count, Xinyang City

EETERGEEENERN  SRELAR
EFEEE

South of Yinghe Road, north of South 2nd Ring
Road, Dengfeng City
BUTETANE BRI

Northeast comer of the intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Lunong Road, Dengfeng City
EHTORABEERRRNOELA

Southwest area at the intersection of Zhongyi
Road and Yudai Road, and southeast comer at
the intersection of Taihe Road and Yudai Road,
Dengfeng City

EHTRERELARANOREA AT
BERRANOREA

Southwest area at the intersection of Zhongyi
Road and Yingxia Road, Yudai Road and Yingia
Road, and northeast area at the intersection of
Taishi Road and Cuiiu Road, Dengfeng City

EUTREREIEEINORARY 15
BEUERINNEREY  AERERA
BRXAFIEY

Southwest and southeast comer of intersection of
Kewen Road and Qunan Road, Jianxi District,
Luoyang City

RETRERN X EREEAR N OERAR
R4

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4th quarter of 2027

NUFE=EEE
NTEENEE

4ih quarter of 2027
WTFEREE

3rd quarter of 2024
NUFEZEE

4th quarter of 2024 o
4ih quarter of 2026

NUFENFEE
NBEENFRE

4th quarter of 2028
NBFEMER

4th quarter of 2027
WIEEMER

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4ih quarter of 2026

NUEE=FRE
NBFENFR

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

90%

90%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Residential &
commerclal

[ A%

Residential &
commercial

[ A%

Residential &
commerclal

e &%

Residential &
commercial

A%

Residential
iz

Residential
fiz

Residential &
commerclal

[ &%

Total
site area

(sqm)
Approximately

BEbER
(F7%)
f

44448

43180

30,721

41,543

98972

146813

69,995

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

SEEER
(F5R)
)

89,806

94,006

76819

78932

188,047

220,220

246,647

BAI
18/8%
REER
(F7%)
f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(squm)

Approximately - Approximately

B
e/ 28
BEER
(¥5%)

)

39,169

76819

78932

61,291

246,647

REH
BEER
(¥A%)

f

50,727

94,99

188,047

168,029
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME BB/ BB IRE KEE  RR f # f # f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BUR2N2ER(R)
2 Gongyi Zensun Scholar Mansion - East of Qinglongshan Road, south of Sugin Road  4th quarter of 2028 100%  Residential 47,286 85,115 - 85,115 -
No. 2 Garden City Greenland, and east of Jinniushan Road, 2028 EMEE fiz
SRIHERER-SR Gongyi Cly
BETERLER  HERETSARET
i3
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan West of Wenming Road, north of Planning Third ~ 3rdl quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential 57,015 91,311 - 68,462 289
BN ERLE Road and south of the land in Xzhangzhai 4th quarter of 2026 fiz
Vilage, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City NUFEZEE
FOmRAERRER  REZHLERE 065 ENER
R LibEf
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Xinrui Scholer - West of Honghu Road, south of Government 3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential 13,734 68,672 - 43810 24,862
Mansion Land of Longhu, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City 4th quarter of 2027 fiz
INEERER HEmENREEREN  RSARA NNEE=FRE
Tt NTEENEE
24 Lushan Zensun Golden Mie House  Southeast of the Intersection of Fanrong Road 1st quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 32,602 48903 - 48908 -
B THLHER and Wenxing Road, Lushan County, dih quarter of 2027 commercial
Pingdingshan iy NAFE-FFE iz 5%
TRLTRLRERREERRNORR NTEERER
2 Huixian Zensun Scholar Mansion  Southwest comer of Yingoin Avenue and Xueyuan  4th quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 37,068 81,542 - 81,542 -
BETHZEENR Road, Huxian Gity, Xinxiang City 4th quarter of 2027 commercial
HATEETIZ ERERRAA NUFENFEE fix E%
NIEEMER
26 Zhoukou Zensun Golden Mile South of Jiaotong Avenue and east of Tongda 4if quarter of 2024 to 5%  Residential 52,941 168,624 - 112,650 46,174
House Road, Znoukou City 4ih quarter of 2027 fiz
BREFREER ERmRAREmE  BERRN NUFEMEEE
NIEEMER
27 Yuanyang Zensun Golden Mie -~ West of Jinhua North Street and north of Huanghe 4t quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 51,293 92,326 - 19,259 73,067
House Avenue, Yuanyang County 4th quarter of 2028 commercial
FRIARELR RRGELERE ETRELH NUFERERE EN

NBEEREE
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
ERS  MREE BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BUR2N2ER(R)
8 Huaiyang Zensun Longhu Horizons  South of Huaining Avenue and north of Chunrong 1t quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 4284 85,682 - 85,682 -
EGTEENTS Road, Hualyang Distrct, Zhoukou City dih quarter of 2026 commercial
BATERREEAEE  BRAL NAEE-FHE fiz %
NBFENFR
2 Shangcheng Zensun Scholar East of Znenxing Road and north of Lishu Street,  3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 45,756 100,662 - 64,999 35,063
Mansion Shangcheng County, Xinyang City 4ih quarter of 2027 commercial
BYIAEEER EETEMARRRAR A8 NUFEZZRE frz B
NTEERER
30 Hualbin Zensun Golden Mi House - East of Honghe Road and south of Qingnian Street,  3rd quarter of 2024 to 90%  Residential & 12,122 26,069 - 26,669 -
EETASELR Huaioin County, Xinyang City dih quarter of 2027 commercil
EETEREATARE  EFERH NUFE=FEE fix B2
NUEEMER
31 Luoyang Zensun Scholar Mansion  Northeast comer of Silk Road Avenue and Qubei 2nd quarter of 2028 100%  Residential & 7009 224,302 - - 24302
REIHERER Road, Jianxi Distict, Luoyang Cty NFE-FE commercial
BETRERL R EERHERLA iz B
2 Luohe Zensun Chenyue Horizons - West of Mangshan Road and north of Mudanjiang  3rd quarter of 2024 to 90%  Residential & 47,604 119,011 - 48,824 70,187
ETIERNES Road, Demonstration Zong, Luohe City 4ih quarter of 2028 commercial
EHREROLARER  HHIRLE NUFEZFEE ENH
ABFEMER
33 Shanggiu Zensun Kaiyue Mansion  East of Suiyang Road and south of Wenhua Road,  4th quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential 45,564 132,13 - 59,933 72202
BLIBHGER Demonstration Zone of Urban-rural Integration, ~ 4th quarter of 2028 fiz
Shangqiu City NUFEMEEE
BETHS- B TEE EEERN NBEENFE
et
34 Luoshan Zensun Scholar Mansion  East of Chungiu Road and north of Longshan 3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 33819 74403 - 55,026 19,377
B THEEER Avenue, Luoshan County, Xinyang City dih quarter of 2028 commercial
ERETELEENARE RLKELE NUFE=EEE fiz &%
NRBEENFR
3% Yucheng Zensun Scholar Mansion  North of Songshan Road, Yucheng County, 3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 51410 128,52 - 100,768 21,131
BHTEEEER Shangqiu Cty 4th quarter of 2027 commercia
BETRRESIALY NUFEZZRE iz &%

NIEEMER




Project
Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rt

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)

35/ BHh2NEEE(B)

36 Zhengzhou Zensun Smart City
B-08 Land Parcel
INEERZHB-08E

3 Xinmi Zensun Zhenyuan Horizons

HETARRER

38 Dengfeng Zensun Golden Mie
House
CENEEENE

Grand total

West of Zhengxin Express Road and north of
auxiliary road of Ring Expressway, Longhu Town,

Xinzheng Clty

FATRMRDFNEREN  SilmaEE

b

West of Huffeng Strest, South of Pingyang Road

and east of Xinhui Strest, Xinmi City
FETEEEE FRAARNELSR

Northwest of the intersection of Fuyou Road and

Yinghe Road, Dengfeng City
BTERRERTRL AR

it

Interest

attributable

Actual/Estimated tothe
Completion Time Group

558
MER%

BB/ RiMIRE i 31

4ih quarter of 2024 to 100%
4th quarter of 2027
NUFEMERE
NTEERER

4ih quarter of 2028 100%
NBFENEE

3rd quarter of 2027 100%
WIEEZER

Annual Report 2023

TRI-FEFER

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Total saleable/ under  GFA under
sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
(F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (TA%
B# f # f # f
Residential 51,985 129,962 - 105,720 2.8
fiz
Residential 43,862 78,790 - 16,690 62,201
fiz
Residential 2,082 75,747 - 28,005 47,7143
iz
6,270,883 13,533,361 6,867,875 4,178,764 2,486,721

27
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EBREEBRAR

Zensun Enterprises Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN W R

FINAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB20,034.9 million and gross profit of approximately RMB772.7
million, with an increase of approximately 107.5% as compared to revenue of
approximately RMB9,657.1 million and a decrease of approximately 6.6% as
compared to gross profit of approximately RMB827.0 million for 2022, respectively.
Revenue and gross profit of the Year and for 2022 were primarily derived from
the property development business in the PRC. The increase in revenue during
the Year was mainly contributed by more delivery of saleable/leasable gross floor
area (“GFA”) from the delivery of the Group’s completed property development
projects during the Year as compared to 2022. The decrease in gross profit during
the Year as compared to 2022 was resulted from the recognition of certain lower
profit margin property projects during the Year, which was caused by unexpected
higher construction cost and suppressed selling prices under the decreasing
public purchasing desires and power in the real estate market derived from the
macroeconomic downturn and the continued depletion of demand in real estate
properties.

The Group had other income of approximately RMB8.7 million during the Year,
with a decrease of approximately 53.8% as compared to approximately RMB18.8
million during 2022. It was primarily attributable to the decrease in income from
heat supply management services during the Year.

The Group had net other losses of approximately RMB1,610.1 million during the
Year, as compared to net other losses of approximately RMB3,167.7 million for
2022. The Group’s net other losses during the Year were attributable to (i) write-
down of completed properties held for sale and properties under development to
net realisable value of approximately RMB1,273.2 million (2022: approximately
RMB2,656.9 million), (i) impairment loss on goodwill of RMB300.4 million (2022:
approximately RMB124.4 million), (iii) net exchange losses of approximately
RMB64.3 million (2022: approximately RMB187.2 million), (iv) impairment losses
on accounts receivable and other receivables of approximately RMB4.6 million
(2022: approximately RMB11.6 million), and (v) fair value loss on investment
properties of approximately RMB8.0 million (2022: fair value gain of approximately
RMB19.3 million); and offset by the fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB40.3 million (2022: fair value loss of
approximately RMB207.0 million).

The Group’s sales and marketing expenses decreased by approximately 17.2%
from approximately RMB117.3 million for 2022 to approximately RMB97.0 million
for the Year. The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately
10.8% from approximately RMB194.7 million for 2022 to approximately RMB173.6
million for the Year. Such decreases were in line with less sales activities in the
market and the cost-cutting measures implemented by the Group in view of the
continuous downturn in the property market of the PRC during the Year.

The Group’s finance costs increased significantly by approximately 282.2% from
approximately RMB114.8 million for 2022 to approximately RMB438.6 million for
the Year. The increase was primarily attributable to the decrease in interests which
are eligible for capitalisation to properties under development during the Year.

The Group’s income tax expenses increased significantly by approximately 265.6%
from approximately RMB194.0 million for 2022 to approximately RMB709.3 million
for the Year. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in PRC CIT due
to the increase in operating profits in the PRC during the Year.

KRERRE

REZE2023F12A3N B LFE([AFE ) - KAEEE
Sl EHARE20,034.98 BT RENNARETT72.7
BET 2BlR2022F 2 HmHARKIETIES
TLEN#107.6% R EMHARES27.0B BRI K
6.6% ° RNEER2022F 2 W REMNETERATEY
ERREY - AFERFEMDEZHRAEERAK
FEXNZERMERRBEARNZAILE HEE
SEAE(EEmE ) B2022F L INFIE - AEEEF
2022 WA TN AFERNERE TFHEREZ
WEHRE  WBARERBEETTREHENES
RBEERGUEHENTSARBEESRLBENT
BREERT BIEERSEERAREBRE -

REBRAFERBEMBANARKSTEEL &
2022F MK ARBE188EBILF P #HI53.8% » EFE
RANRAKNEEHREEERGSUAR TR -

REBPRAFEZHMBEREFBEHABARE1,61018
BT M2022F BIsR B H BB FREOARKS,167.7
BEIL  AEERAFE 2 HMEIEFETERR)M
B EHEZERIVERBETYESIERFE
HANREEA 273208 & 7T (20225 « HARK2 656.98
E7r) 0 (N EREEIEBAREI00.48 &L (20224F -
HARE12445ETT) » (NELBEFEHARE
64.3B B L(2022%F : HARK1872EHE L) * (v)IE
WERR R EM BRI REBEHNAREIAET
(2022%F : HYARBEA16EEIL)  RWREMELTF
BEEBHOARKSOBEEH L(2022F « AFEKZLHA
R¥19.3A &) + WWIRAFEFABRZZEMEE
ZAFERZHAREL0.3E5ET(2022F « A FEE
BHOARME207.08 B7T) ATk -

AEBZHERMIGHEEERAHR2022FHARK117.3
BEILRPNIT2%ERFEHNARBITOEETT
NEBZITHERH2022FHARE194.7AE TR
108N ERNFEHNAREA736HETT » 2B HT
BHEEHRIRARERAFEFEEHEMSH
HEER MBI AEE—E -

AEBZBEKAR2022FHARE114.8F ETTAE
INK282. 2% EARFELHARMEASB6HEE T %18
MOEEHRAFEFEERERNMEEERYEY
FIBIR A BTEL

RNEBE 7 FriSHif L 2022 FE M ARE194.0E8B T
RIS IN41265.6% E AR FELHARKET700.3EE T ° #%
BHNTYE B AR AFE A BIAE & 5 FIIE hnE s
Bl 1SS R IE INFTER




As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year amounted to approximately RMB2,298.5 million (2022:
RMB2,946.1 million).

The basic loss per share for the Year was approximately RMB120.1 cents (2022:
RMB154.0 cents) which was due to the decrease in loss attributable to owners of
the Company during the Year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the Year
(2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property Development in the PRC

During the Year, the property development business in the PRC contributed
revenue of approximately RMB19,917.7 million (2022: approximately RMB9,591.5
million) and segment loss of approximately RMB1,554.4 million (2022: RMB2,395.8
million) to the Group. The increase in segment revenue was attributable to the
increase of GFA delivered to the property owners during the Year. The decrease
in segment loss was mainly due to the decrease in write-down of completed
properties held for sale and properties under development during the Year.

There were 24 newly completed property development projects in phases/sub-
phases delivered during the Year (while during the year ended 31 December 2022,
there were 10 newly completed projects delivered). For details of the 24 newly
completed property development projects during the Year, please refer to the
section headed “Property Development Project Summary in the PRC”.

Together with the existing property projects completed in prior years, there were
approximately 2,088,000 sg.m. gross floor area (“GFA”) delivered with average
selling price (“ASP”) of approximately RMB9,540 per sg.m. and recognised into
revenue during the Year as compared to that of approximately 950,000 sq.m. GFA
delivered with ASP of approximately RMB10,200 per sq.m. and recognised into
revenue during 2022.

During the Year, with the continuous impact of economy downturn, the overall real
estate market in the PRC continued to experience a decrease in public purchasing
power. The selling prices of property projects were inevitably suppressed which led
to slowing down of sales and such situation was especially worsened for non-core
city locations. As a result of the foregoing, a write-down of completed properties
held for sale and properties under development of approximately RMB1,273.2
million (2022: approximately RMB2,656.9 million) for certain properties whose
selling price was not recoverable as expected to net realisable value was provided
during the Year.

In view of the abovementioned, the Group continues to adopt a conservative
approach and implementing cost-cutting schemes to maintain its competitive
and sustainable business development plan. Given the current severe real estate
market environment, the Group will remain conservative in reviewing its pace of
business expansion, and may adjust its project development plans and schedules
in response to the changing market conditions, as and when appropriate.
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Project Management Services in the PRC

During the Year, the Group provided project management services in the PRC
and recorded revenue of approximately RMB32.2 million (2022: approximately
RMB11.4 million) and segment profit of approximately RMB16.7 million (2022:
approximately RMB4.3 million) from the provision of project management services
in the PRC to independent property owners. The increase is primarily resulted from
more new project management services contracts entered into during the Year.

Hotel Operations

The Group operated a hotel in Zhengzhou City in the PRC since 2022 and
generated revenue of approximately RMB35.0 million during the Year as compared
to approximately RMB12.5 million for 2022 and segment profit of approximately
RMB14.8 million during the Year as compared to segment loss of approximately
RMB1.5 million for 2022. The improved performance for this segment was mainly
resulted from more guests staying at the hotel during the Year as compared to
2022.

Property Investment and/or Management in the USA on AHR

The segment revenue derived from property investment and/or management on
AHR remained fairly stable of approximately RMB15.3 million for the Year and
approximately RMB14.7 million for 2022, and the turnaround of segment profit
of approximately RMB9.7 million for 2022 into segment loss of approximately
RMB10.6 million for the Year is mainly stemming from the fair value loss of
investment properties in the USA.

Property Investment other than AHR

During the Year, the property investment in other regions other than AHR division
contributed to segment revenue of approximately RMB17.3 million (2022:
approximately RMB10.9 million) and segment profit of approximately RMB13.3
million (2022: approximately RMB21.1 million) to the Group. The decrease in
segment profit for the Year is mainly due to the increase in finance cost resulted
from increase in interest rates.

Securities Trading and Investment

During the Year, the Group’s securities business recorded segment revenue of
approximately RMB17.3 million with segment profit of approximately RMB57.7
million as compared to segment revenue of approximately RMB16.1 million with
segment loss of approximately RMB190.9 million for 2022. The turnaround of
segment loss into segment profit was primarily stemming from the fair value gain
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB40.3
million during the Year (2022: fair value loss of approximately RMB207.0 million)
due to the recovery of the US stock market.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Position

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s total cash and
bank balances including pledged deposits and restricted bank balances were
approximately RMB1,843.4 million (2022: approximately RMB1,991.6 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 7.4%. The total cash and bank balances
were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD” or “HK$”), US Dollar
(“USD” or “US$”), and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

As at 31 December 2023, certain bank balances and deposits of the Group
were pledged to certain banks and financial institutions as securities for (i) the
bank and financial institutions facilities granted to the Group and (i) the mortgage
loan facilities granted to the property buyers of the Group. The total pledged
deposits were approximately RMB130.9 million as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
approximately RMB137.5 million).

Capital Structure, Borrowings and Charges on the Group’s assets
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company, and amounts due to related
companies, net of the aggregate of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances and pledged deposits. The equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprised issued share capital and reserves.

As at 31 December 2023, net debt and equity attributable to owners of the
Company were approximately RMB13,332.1 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB14,489.4 million) and approximately RMB3,068.6 million
(31 December 2022: approximately RMB5,316.0 million), respectively. As at
31 December 2023, the Group’s aggregate borrowings including bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company, and amounts due to related
companies amounted to approximately RMB15,175.5 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB16,481.1 million), of which approximately RMB13,987.8 million
(31 December 2022: approximately RMB12,974.9 million) were repayable within
one year or on demand, and approximately RMB1,187.7 million (31 December
2022: approximately RMB3,506.2 million) were repayable after one year. The
aggregate borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB, USD, SGD and HKD.

On 12 September 2023, the Company completed the issuance of senior notes at a
principal amount of US$103.478 million carrying interest of 7% per annum due on
12 September 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) which is pursuant to the exchange offer (the
“Exchange Offer”).

The 2025 Notes were unsecured and guaranteed by an intermediate holding
company of the Company (“Parent Guarantor”) and certain subsidiaries of the
Parent Guarantor. The Company did not receive any cash proceeds from the
Exchange Offer. The Exchange Offer was intended to refinance the Notes due
2023 (the “2023 Notes”) and improve the Company’s debt structure to enable it
to extend its debt maturity profile and improve cash flow management. Details of
the Exchange Offer are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 29 August
2023, 11 September 2023, 12 September 2023 and 13 September 2023.

Annual Report 2023 —EF - = FF R

B35 = B

RBEERESHR

REBESRR

M2023F12A31H » REBZIRG RIBITEBER
(BECERFIES RZRIETESR) ZEMAEADA
R¥1,843.4H 80 (2022F : HAR®E1,091.6 5 &
TL) C RAEITA% c RENMBITEBRBEETEUAR
kL ET([Eoe]) ~ Fo(TET)) R ([ #
$orl)FIE °

MR2028F12A31H » AKBEE TRITEHRKIZSE R
BPFETRITRSRKE  ERITSEERRITRS
BMEERELMAEEVEERERZBETI@MEY
AR o R2023F12A31H ' EEMRESARNAAR
#130.9F BT (2022%F : HAREEA17T5HETT) ©

FEEEECEARRE  FERAR
AEEEARBEBAEFHE  ARERTREME
5 XRE-MRERRAZERRENBEQTFAE -
BESPBESEFERBLE  IRHIBTEKLDE
HRE - ARRHEEARGREREEHITRA R
e

MR2028F 12 A4381H » AREHEAAREEERER
FED RN B ARE13,332.18 8t (2022412 31
H: HOAREE14,4804F80) RO ARES,068.6H
Er(2022F12A318 : HARYS5,316.068ETT) °
MR2023F12A31H  AEEBEHEAFERITAE
thiEE  KE—RHBEEARZERREMNBEERRR
HAOARMA15,175.58 &L (2022612 A31H « KA
R#¥16,481.1E8L) r EPHARME13,087.8HE T
(2022%F12A318 : HHARME12,974. 9B & L) AR —
FRFIHBEREE  MHARE1187.78 &7t (2022
F12A318 : YARM35062E B L) BR—FEE
BoBEHEBABEIFEUARE  E0 - FiMEITRET
HIME -

MN2023E9A 128 » ARFRBESHEN([XHE
491) R B AT 202559 A12 H B Hl 2 R4 %8103.478
BEELFETEBLAZE(2025FZK]) -

2025F BF AEIEE - WHARR —HFRNERAA
([BRAERADESRARERAZE THBARE
R RABWEEIIBBYWETMIRSHTERIE -
EITRHREL T AR 2023 F 5| B 2 Z4% ([ 2023F 2
BDETEREY NS AR AEBLEE  FAQRAE
DIEREEGHRENERSRERE - RBBHZH
BENARNE HEA202348 8298 + 202349 A 11
H - 2023F9A12H K2023F9A13H 2 A% -

31




32

EBREEBRAR

Zensun Enterprises Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN W R

In addition to the 12.5% per annum fixed-rate interest for the US$160 million senior
notes due 2024 (the “2024 Notes”) and the US$200 million senior notes (i.e. the
2023 Notes), and the 7% per annum fixed-rate interest for the US$103.478 million
senior notes (i.e. the 2025 Notes), the Group’s bank and other borrowings carried
fixed interest rates ranging from 2.80% to 10.50% per annum and also various
floating interest rates linking up with international lending rates including Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate, Singapore Dollar Swap Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank
Offered Rate, London Interbank Offered Rate, the base lending rate of the People’s
Bank of China and the Loan Prime Rate in the PRC as at 31 December 2023. The
Group’s interest rate risk is mainly driven by the bank and other borrowings with
floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2023, certain bank and financial institutions facilities granted to
the Group together with the mortgage loan facilities granted to the property buyers
of the Group were secured by certain investment properties, properties under
development and pledged deposits with total carrying values of approximately
RMB10,386.5 million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB15,369.3 million).

Shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group are pledged to secure certain bank
and financial institutions facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December 2023.
The Group’s senior notes and certain bank and financial institutions facilities to the
Group were guaranteed by related companies which are ultimately controlled by
Ms. Huang, together with her spouse, Mr. Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang
as at 31 December 2023. No asset of the Group was pledged to these related
companies in respect of the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2023, loans from a related company and the amounts due to
related companies were unsecured and interest-free.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose during the
Year.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

Key Financial Ratios

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a current ratio of approximately
1.07 (31 December 2022: approximately 1.14) and a gearing ratio of approximately
28.7% (31 December 2022: approximately 23.5%). Gearing ratio is defined as the
ratio of total borrowings less the aggregate value of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances and pledged deposits to total assets.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the capital commitments of the Group in connection with
the property development expenditures was approximately RMB6,799.7 million (31
December 2022: approximately RMB10,041.8 million).
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had contingent liabilities relating to
guarantees amounting to approximately RMB19,614.5 million (31 December 2022:
RMB19,274.1 million) in respect of mortgage facilities provided by certain banks in
connection with the mortgage loans entered into by property buyers of the Group.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these buyers, the Group would be responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principal together with the accrued interest thereon and any penalties
owed by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to take
over the legal titles to and possession of the related properties. These guarantees
will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the mortgage loan by the
property buyers; and (ii) the issuance of the property ownership certificate for
the mortgage property and the completion of the deregistration of the mortgage.
In the opinion of the Directors, no provision for the guarantees was recognised
in the financial statements for the Year as in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the outstanding principal
together with the accrued interest and penalties.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are denominated substantially in
RMB, HKD, USD and SGD in the respective entities of the Group. Due to the
currency peg of HKD to USD, the exchange rate between these two currencies
has remained stable and thus the Group currently does not implement any hedging
or other alternatives. Going forward, the Group may formulate a foreign currency
hedging policy to provide a reasonable margin of safety for its exposure to RMB
and Singapore dollars through transactions, assets and liabilities should the need
arise.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to prevailing
market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other relevant
factors. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance-related bonuses.
Since the Stock Exchange published the amendments to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules relating to share schemes which took effect on 1 January 2023, the
Company has passed an ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 7 June 2023 to approve the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) and the termination of the previous
share option scheme which was adopted on 28 August 2013. The New Share
Option Scheme became effective following the grant of a listing approval by the
Stock Exchange on 12 June 2023. The New Share Option Scheme continues to
provide the Company with a means of providing the eligible participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefits of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole, as well as to motivate
them to contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. During the Year, the
Company did not grant any share options under the New Share Option Scheme.
Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments during the Year, amounted to
approximately RMB55.4 million (31 December 2022: RMB100.4 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 529 employees.
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Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture and Future Plans for
Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any significant investment
accounting for more than 5% of the Group’s total assets. The Group did not make
any other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
venture or future plan for material investment or capital assets during the Year.

Outlook and Prospects

The Group is principally engaged in the business of property development,
property investment, project management and sales services, hotel operations and
securities trading and investment. In order to pursue sustainable development, the
Group looks for investment opportunities which strengthen its profitability under the
acceptable risk in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas markets.

Looking forward, despite the real estate industry may still face demand and
financing pressure, it is expected the Chinese government will continue to introduce
policies to support the real estate market and stabilize macroeconomic growth.
It is also expected that there may be prospect that the consumer confidence and
market sentiment can be restored at some point of time, taking into account the
time needed for the relevant policies to take effect. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to implement measures to improve operational efficiency and achieve
business objectives.

The Group will continue to finance the repayments on financial assistance from
the controlling shareholder through proceeds from the pre-sale and sale of the
Group’s properties, internally generated cash flows from other operations, and
borrowings from commercial banks and financial institutions. Going forward, the
Group believes its future funding needs in support of property development and
land acquisition activities will be satisfied by the above-mentioned sources and
additional issuance of equity securities or other capital market instruments. The
Group seeks to manage the level of its liquid assets to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected cash requirements arising from its
business. The Group will continue to assess available financial resources in support
of its business needs on an ongoing basis, and plan and adjust its development
schedule or implement cost control measures if necessitated by its then-existing
financial conditions and cash requirements. The Group intends to continue to assess
existing capital resources, and to seek new sources of funding, in order to maintain
and expand its business on a cost-effective basis.
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The PRC

During the Year, more than ten new property development projects were delivered
to customers in accordance with the terms and conditions of the purchase
agreements. The Group’s property development projects focus on providing
“high quality” property with both standard and deluxe design accompanied by full
refurbishment so as to meet different customers’ preferences and needs. Revenue
from the sale of properties is expected to be recognised upon the completion and
delivery of the completed properties and/or sub-phases.

After the land acquisitions completed in the past years, the Group built up and
maintained strong land reserves for the Group’s property development business
in the PRC for the next three years with a strong presence in Henan Province,
thus, the Group will focus more on developing the existing and new property
development projects from its land reserves in the near future. The Board will
maintain open mindset in identifying new property development projects and
bidding for land use rights of other selective land parcels in the PRC with a focus in
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province and other selective first- and second-tier cities in
the PRC in the coming few years.

The Group continues to pursue in diversification of its business to a light-
asset model by investing more internal resources to further expand the project
management business and providing a more integrated project management
services in return for management fee income. The Board considers project
management business in the PRC shall become popular in the market with
prosperous business potential, and the expansion in project management business
served as a diversification to light-asset model from our traditional heavy-asset
model in the property development business. The diversification allows the Group
to gain competitive advantages from managing property projects on behalf of
property owners without having to bear heavy investment cost in land acquisition
and construction cost.

The Company takes leverage on the PRC property development and investment
experience of its management team to seek suitable projects for development
or investment with potential to deliver value to its Shareholders. In addition to
existing business partners, the Company will continue to seek cooperation with
potential partners to explore capital resources and reduce the Group’s capital
investment in property projects at an early stage and facilitate project development.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic on the long-term
prospects of the real estate industry and will expedite its property development
and sales of its development projects in the PRC through making use of its own
advantages and leveraging on the national network and business resources of
Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd* (A IEAE ¥ AR AR (“Zensun Real
Estate”), a company controlled by Ms. Huang. The synergistic effect brought by
Zensun Real Estate will improve the position of the Group in the real estate industry
in the PRC.
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The U.S.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has approximately 5.7% equity
interest in a real estate investment trust listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
Global Medical REIT, Inc. (“GMR”) and approximately 99% equity interest in
American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”).

1. GMR
GMR has been focusing on acquisition of state-of-the-art, purpose built,
licensed and specialised medical facilities in the U.S. During the Year, the
Group performed regular review on GMR’s business performance and its
business strategies and prospect. It is considered that the investment in
GMR’s would achieve long term capital appreciation to the Group with
stable average annual yield.

2. AHR
AHR, primarily focusing on property investment and management segment,
is currently 99%-controlled by the Group. AHR diversified its previous
investment in single family houses to senior housing communities in order to
seize the potential opportunity for the current strong demand on retirement
communities and elderly care industries in the USA for higher-than-average
annualised yield.

Other operations

The Group has operated a hotel in Zhengzhou City in the PRC since 2022 and
will regularly review the Singapore property market to explore different business
opportunities.

Overall

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to seize business growth opportunities and enhance its portfolio, asset
base and brand image in the PRC, USA and overseas markets. The Group remains
optimistic and confident about the future, and believes that with the efforts of all
employees, the Group will overcome the current difficult conditions and move
forward steadily.
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UPDATE ON LISTING STATUS

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange was suspended at the request of
the Company on 2 April 2024 as a result of the delay in publication of the financial
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

On 26 June 2024, the Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange setting
out the following guidance for the resumption of trading in the securities of the
Company (the “Resumption Guidance”). Pursuant to the Resumption Guidance,
the Company shall:

(@) publish all outstanding financial results required under the Listing Rules and
address any audit modifications;

(b) demonstrate the Company’s compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing
Rules; and
(c) inform the market of all material information for the Company’s shareholders

and other investors to appraise the Company’s position.

Details of the fulfilment of the Resumption Guidance and actions taken by the
Company have been set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
November 2024. The Board was pleased to announce that the Company has
fulfilled the Resumption Guidance and the trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange has been resumed on 28 November 2024.
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ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 61, is the Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a member of each of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on
6 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the Company on 29
June 2015.

Mr. Zhang has approximately 29 years of experience in the real estate development
industry in China. From July 1983 to April 1995, Mr. Zhang held various positions
at the then Light Industry Bureau of Henan Province, the governmental authority
in charge of the light industry in Henan Province, and its associated collectively-
owned enterprises, including division chief, engineer and vice manager, where he
was responsible for administrative management. From April 1995 to April 2001, he
worked at Xingye Real Estate as general manager, where he was responsible for its
overall operations. Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”) cofounded a
real estate company which has become one of the top 100 property development
companies in China. Mr. Zhang has served as the Chairman and chief executive
officer of this top 100 real estate company since 2001. Mr. Zhang is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and general management of our Group and is
instrumental to our growth and business expansion.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou
University in July 1983, an Executive MBA degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2013 and an Executive MBA degree from
PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua University in July 2018. Mr. Zhang currently
serves as senior consultant of Henan Real Estate Chamber of Commerce, vice-
president of Industry & Commerce Association of Henan Province, graduate tutor
of Zhengzhou University. During the years of 2016, 2017 and 2018, Mr. Zhang
was named “Outstanding Real Estate Developer of Henan Province by Real Estate
Association of Henan Province. Mr. Zhang received his senior engineer qualification
from the People’s Government of Henan Province in May 2012, he received his first
class construction engineer qualification from the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development.

Currently, Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of Zanyu Technology Group Co. Ltd., a listed
company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).

Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang, a Non-Executive Director. As at 31
December 2023, Mr. Zhang is interested in 1,377,439,892 shares of the Company,
which are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited.
The entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets
of a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Mr. Zhang is a director of Zensun
Group Limited, a company which had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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HUANG YANPING
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Huang, aged 62, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huang
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She was appointed to
the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the
Company on 29 June 2015.

Ms. Huang has over 20 years’ experiences in the property development and
investment industry in the PRC. Ms. Huang has been involved in the development
of not less than 36 property development projects in Henan Province, Shandong
and Hainan Province in the PRC with a total gross floor area of not less than 14
million sg.m.. She is one of the founders of a real estate company which has
become one of the top 100 property development companies in the PRC.

Ms. Huang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, an Executive Director. As at 31 December
2023, Ms. Huang is interested in 1,377,439,892 shares of the Company, which
are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets of a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra
Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy
Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited, both of which are companies which an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ZHANG GUOQIANG
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Guogiang, aged 60, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
was appointed to the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling
shareholder on 29 June 2015.

Between August 1983 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a tutor
at the Communication Command Academy of PLA, now known as the National
Defence Information Academy of PLA. Between October 1997 to March 2003, Mr.
Zhang Guogiang served as the director of the marketing department of Wuhan
Research Institute of Post & Telecommunications, also known as FiberHome
Technologies Group, a product and solution provider in the field of information and
telecommunications, where he was responsible for marketing. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a general manager at Nanjing North Road
Technologies Co., Ltd., a coal analysis equipment manufacturer, from May 2003
to November 2005, where he was responsible for general management. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang joined the real estate company co-founded by Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang
in 2006 and in the position of vice president of that company since then. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou University
in July 1983. In 1988, Mr. Zhang Guogiang received his lecturer qualification from
the National Defence Information Academy of PLA and received his engineer
qualification from Wuhan Research Institute of Post of Telecommunications.

Currently, Mr. Zhang Guogiang is a director of Zanyu Technology Group Co., Ltd.,
a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).

Annual Report 2023 — /B~ =F

HUANG YANPING
FHTES

HuangZ = * BEAN+Z5 * BARAIERITES -
HuangZ TR ABA AR ETHEARMNESE - R
2015F6 A29 AR R & Bk - R2015F7 F27H
EAREARNARESS -

Huang K TR BEMERREBRETEREFBA_+F
K8 o Huang T —BHAEPENEE - ILRE MERD
BLETDNICEMERBRE 2 BRIFE - HEE
E BT 77014,000,0005F 75K © BAR—REBENR
ZEBP-ZEMA - ZAREAMRTEYEMAERR
RBEIZ— e

HuangZ T A 1TE ERAEEMEE - B E2023F
124381 H - Huang&Z L+ #F & &R 2 7]1,377,439,892 f%
&t - AEREEHFRAFGE2E#EAMIoy Town Inc.
H#E#F ° Zensun Group Limited A Notable Reward
Limited #) 2 & [ @B 2 & + i Notable Reward Limited
A1) i Superior Glory Enterprises Limited 2 & # & °
Superior Glory Enterprises Limited #) 2 % 2 % 17 %
AR AHuang X TERZFEATMREAURIERAZ T
A ) Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited & 37 #) 2 4
5L & E - Huang X == A Joy Town Inc. & Notable
Reward Limited MM — £ % - EMKXARIHF/EERAQT]
RO SAERR G MWERIAR - MIBE(EFRBER
BIYEXVEPE2 3D IR ABRA R R H TR

SR E R
WITES

REsRSLAE - BENTR S BARRWITES - R
20156 A20H XA R EB)E - 20157 H27H
EIHEAZESE -

A1983F8 A £1997F10 A HAR » RE R e AR
ARBHNEBREEESK(RBREARBHRERGE
BEREEHE - N1997F 108 220033 A HiR -
IR B8 2 A PR RZ B E R IR (IR & A BHE &
B A HMEERETBMTEZERMERTRM
JERE)MSEMEREET > BEEH - MAKRE®ER -
B 200345 A#EE2005411 A ILEAR © SREsR A Bz
FERIEBRR AR EA R (—RER DT REEE
)RR - BEELAEIE o RERLAER2006F MNA
R E FHuangZ T £ FAIVMEE QAT - LT
ZARRBRES - KBRS AN 1983F 7 A RS EBIN
ABEGTIMEBESEN] o PAO88F » REBREEH
FPREARBREBEHEESRDGHEMER AR
EHERIEMITIRIE TRMER -

REBIRE A B AT AFRIEER S EMAREFRE
EERHBRAR(BRMAS : 002637)MESE -

39



40

EBREEBRAR

Zensun Enterprises Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEEREREEE

LIU DA
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Da (“Mr. Liu”), aged 49, was appointed as an independent Non-Executive
Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Liu graduated from the University of International Business and Economics
with a major in international business administration and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics. Mr. Liu is also a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in
China. Mr. Liu served as an audit manager and a senior audit manager of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) Guangzhou Office from 1998 to 2009 and
Chicago Office from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Liu provided audit and consulting services
to a number of global top 500 enterprises and overseas listed Chinese companies
during his tenure of office in PwC. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., a listed
company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 106) from 31 July 2013 to 5 January
2015 and was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Long Ji Tai
He Holding Limited, a listed company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1281)
from 26 February 2015 to 16 October 2015. Currently, Mr. Liu is the managing
partner of Key Wealth Capital Company Limited, providing financing and overseas
mergers and acquisition services to Chinese enterprises.

Mr. Liu was an independent non-executive director of Guangdong Dongfang
Precision Service & Technology Co., Ltd., a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 002611) from 12 August 2022 to 2 September 2024, and is
an independent non-executive director of Kimou Environmental Holding Limited, a
listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6805) since
1 March 2023.

MA YUNTAO
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ma Yuntao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 44, was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Ma has been serving at Tian Yuan Law Firm as a registered partner from
December 2021 up to now. He served at Jia Yuan Law Firm from July 2010 to
November 2021 and at Commerce & Finance Law Offices from July 2002 to June
2010, engaging in securities business as to PRC laws. He acquired qualifications as
a practicing solicitor in 2006.
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Mr. Ma ran projects including the secondary listing project of New Oriental
Education & Technology Group Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9901) which is principally engaged in the private educational services,
the privatisation and delisting project of AVIC International Holdings Limited,
a company formerly listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0161) which
was principally engaged in electronic high-tech, retail and consumer products,
international engineering and trade logistics businesses, the initial public offering
(“IPQ”) project of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320) which is principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacturing, distribution and retail of a broad
range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products, privatisation and delisting project
of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Company Limited, a company formerly listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2626) which was principally engaged in nonferrous
metallic mineral resources mining business, IPO project of Poly Culture Group
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3636)
which is principally engaged in culture industry involving theatre management,
artwork auction and investment, IPO project of Kerry Logistics Network Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0636) which is principally
engaged in logistics, IPO project of eprint Group Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1884) which is principally engaged in internet printing,
spin-off listing in respect of Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited, a company formerly
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1249) which is principally engaged in
production of electronics products of TCL Multimedia Technology Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1070) which is principally
engaged in production of electronics products, very substantial acquisition project
of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0966) which is principally engaged in insurance, and
IPO (both A share and H share) project of China Aluminum International Engineering
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2068)
and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601068) which is principally engaged
in nonferrous engineering design and construction.

Mr. Ma was an independent non-executive director of TUS-Pharmaceutical Group
Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000590)
since 21 May 2020 and retired with effect from the close of its annual general
meeting held on 18 May 2023. Mr. Ma is an independent non-executive director
of Beijing Infosec Technologies Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 688201) since 6 December 2023.
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LI HUIQUN
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Li Huigun (“Dr. Li"), aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 18 October 2021.

Dr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, a master’s degree in economics
and a doctorate degree in economics from the School of Economics of Wuhan
University, Hubei Province, China in 1988, 1991 and 1994, respectively. Dr. Li
holds the title of Senior Economist, has extensive experience in the banking and
financial markets sector. From April 1994 to October 2015, she served as head
of several divisions and on vice-president level positions in the Shenzhen Central
Branch of the People’s Bank of China, in charge of the Money and Credit Division,
the Financial Research Office, the Bullion Management Division, labour union work
and management of human resources. From November 2015 to June 2021, she
has been the vice president of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank in charge of asset
management, financial market and inter-bank business, international business and
management of the Qianhai branch.

Dr. Li is an independent non-executive director of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings)
Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2689) since 6 February 2023.

Ms. Xing Zhumei (“Ms. Xing”), aged 53, appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company in November 2020, responsible for the Group’s financial reporting,
corporate finance activities and investor relations matters.

Ms. Xing has approximately 28 years of experience in accounting and audit. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Xing served as an accountant at Zhengzhou Fruit and Food
Corporation* (/1 /7 SR 48 A 7)) from July 1995 to December 2004. She then
served as the chief accountant in Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (f[F 1E &
E B AT from January 2005 to April 2017 and as the chief financial officer in
Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management Technology Co., Ltd.* (A = &1 2 ) B
MEBRIEBR AT from May 2017 to September 2019. Thereafter, she served
as the chief accountant in Zensun Group Limited (IF £ E A R A 7)) from October
2019 to September 2020.

Ms. Xing obtained her bachelor’s degree in auditing from Zhengzhou University in
1995. She received her qualified accounting certificate (medium level) in 2002 from
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (frZE A R MBI B EEF) and certified tax agent
certificate in 2003 from Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Henan Province* (AIR& A 1 &R AL IRBERE). Ms. Xing is a member of Henan
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (] F sH it & sHET IR ).

Mr. Chang Eric Jackson (R ittE) (“Mr. Chang”), aged 44, was appointed on
29 February 2024 as the Company Secretary of the Company and is responsible
for the Group’s corporate secretarial functions. Mr. Chang has over 20 years
of experience in accounting, auditing, financial management and corporate
governance matters. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chang has over 10 years of
working experience in Hong Kong listed companies, and has worked as a senior
manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Chang is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHEE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property development, property investment, project
management and sale services, hotel operations and securities trading and
investment. The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by principal operating segments for
the Year is set out in the notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on page 80.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company was founded in 1965, and is currently focused on property
development, property investment, project management and sale services, hotel
operations and securities trading and investment in Hong Kong, the PRC and
overseas.

A detailed business review for the Year, including further discussions of important
events occurred since the end of the financial year, likely future development of the
Group’s business and financial performance review with financial key performance
indicators, are set out in “Chairman’s Message” on pages 6 to 10, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 28 to 37 and “Financial Summary” on page 191
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

The Company had issued separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as specified
in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Under the Group’s current risk management and internal control system, regular
review of the principal risks and uncertainties that may affect the Group’s financial
condition, results of operations, business and prospects are maintained. There
may be other risks and uncertainties further to the following key risk areas and
uncertainties currently identified by the Group.

The performance of the Group’s property development business in the PRC is
susceptible to the national regulatory control measures and polices implemented to
restrict the purchase of properties, and the general downturn in macro economic
environment in the PRC. Any changes in the national measures and policies may
also penetrate into the overall national economic conditions, and influence changes
in consumer confidence, consumption spending and preferences in property
market in the PRC.
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The Group’s operation is also subject to certain risk factors pertaining to property
development business in the PRC, including lack of availability of potential land
resources in the PRC, escalation of construction cost due to inflation and the
supply shortage, default on the part of our customers, construction contractors,
business partners and tenants, adverse weather conditions, other unexpected
inadequacies or failure of internal process or other external factors may have
various levels of risk on the Group’s operations. Liquidity issues of certain property
developers have further worsened the public confidence in the real estate market.

The Group’s capital risk management and financial risk management are set out in
notes 34 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of internal control and strategies to adapt itself to cope with
the possible risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies,
policies and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely
and formulate business strategies to respond to risk promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures and adjusts the development pace to
minimise any potential business impact on the Group from these possible risks and
uncertainties.

In 2023, the Group continued to implement strategy in expanding its project
management business in order to diversify its income streams.

Key stakeholder relationships

To build a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable development, the
Group recognise its employees, customers and business partners being the
key stakeholders and maintain a continuous dialogue with them. The Group is
dedicated to establish a close and supporting relationship with its employees,
provide quality products and services to customers and strengthen all kinds of
cooperation with its business partners.

The Company provides a healthy and safe workplace, career development
opportunities and competitive remuneration and benefits to employees based
on their qualifications in accordance with industry practice in the geographical
locations in which they are located. To treasure its loyal and industrious staff
members and improve their performance at their positions, different forms of
rewards and compensation including salaries, provident fund, performance bonus,
insurance coverage, or share options, etc., will be considered and reviewed on an
annual basis based on performance appraisals for eligible employees.

Maintaining close relationship with its customers as well as tenants are paramount
to the long-term success for the Group. Interacting channels with customers and
tenants are established to identify and respond to the dynamic market needs
proactively, improve the quality of products and services to adhere to customers’
needs and preference timely. In the long run, it fosters customer recognition of the
brand of the Group with a trust-worthy basis.

The Group is also committed to developing fair and co-operating business
partnership with suppliers and contractors to ensure stability of the Group’s
operation. Through a series of standardised procurement process including
quotation or tender procedures, cost and quality of the procurement supply of the
Group are able to be monitored, assessed and evaluated reasonably. The Group
continuously upholds an effective communication with suppliers to deliver quality
products and services to customers for long-term sustainability.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

As far as the Company is aware of, the Group has complied with applicable laws
and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies which are significant
to the operations of the Group.

Environmental policy

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of businesses and
communities with which it engages. The Group pursues this business approach by
managing its business prudently and executing management decisions with due
care and attention to balance the sustainable business growth and environmental
protection.

The Group endeavours to make improvements by promoting environmental friendly
policies in the Group’s operations and increasing the employee’s awareness over
environmental protection. By means of advocating eco-friendly and reusable
materials, paper-recycling and energy saving measures on office equipment and
appliances, it helps enhance efficient use of resources, energy efficiency and
reduction of waste.

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally responsible manner to
review its environmental protection policies and activities from time to time for
implementation of any further measures and practices on environmental protection
in the business operation.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are
set out in “Hong Kong and Overseas Property Portfolio” on page 11, “Property
Development Project Summary in the PRC” on pages 14 to 27 and “Particulars of
Major Investment Properties” on page 192.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 15 and 16 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year end date. The
revaluation for the Year resulted a fair value loss of approximately RMB7,968,000
which has been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during the Year.
Details of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2023 are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 84.

The Company had no distributable reserves as at 31 December 2023.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB16,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of the
Company ("Articles of Association") or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their shareholding in the Company. If the shareholders are unsure
about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or
exercising of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised
to consult an expert.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 191.

DIRECTORS

(@) Directors of the Company
The Directors during the Year and present Directors up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:
Zhang Jingguo
Zhang Guogiang

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director:
Huang Yanping

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Liu Da

Ma Yuntao

Li Huiqun

In accordance with Articles 24 and 25 of Articles of Association and
pursuant to code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”), Mr. Zhang Jingguo and Mr. Liu Da will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
10 January 2025 (the “2024 AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election. Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2024 AGM are
set out in the circular to the Shareholders which will be published together
with this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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(b)

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreements.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which are not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 38 to 42.

Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Year and up to the
date of this report are:

Bai Mengjun
Bie Sanjiang
Chen Jiguo
Chen Weibing
Cheng Yuewu
Feng Hongfeng
Feng Jiansong
Geng Chong
Guo Wei
Huang Yanping
Jeffrey Busch
Liu Chuanke
Liu Hai

Wang Heping
Liu Zhengiang
Lu Hongyan
Meng Yuming
Tan Shumei
Wang Jinhu
Xing Zhumei
Zhang Huiqi
Zhang Guogiang
Zhang Jianmin
Zhang Jingguo
Zhou Bing

(b)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 10, 27, 28 and 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 27, 28 and 42 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the financial assistance provided by the controlling shareholder
of the Company to the Group and the transactions disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements and also detailed under sections headed “Related
Party Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and there was no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, together with those of the five highest
paid employees of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or any interest or short positions which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or any interests and short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions
(i) Interest in the Shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

Company (%)

Number of LA AT
Name of Director Capacity in which interests are held Shares held BRITRA
EEHE ERBEEESH R EE Z B2 (%)
Mr. Zhang Spousal interest (Note 1) 1,377,439,892 71.99
REE fi i@ iees (A1)
Ms. Huang Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,377,439,892 71.99
HuangZz & TR EE S (M aE2)
Notes: Htat -
1) Mr. Zhang (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of (1) REA(KRDBIER - THAEARRNTE

the Company) is the spouse of Ms. Huang, under SFO, he is deemed to
be interested in 1,377,439,892 Shares in which Ms. Huang is interested.

) 1,377,439,892 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee.
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited,
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company
under SFO.
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(1)

Interest in ordinary shares of associated corporations of the (i)

Company

RAEQFEBZEEBR P HERS

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of

Name of Capacity in which the Number of associated

Name of Director associated corporation interests are held share held corporation (%)

i HEEEEESRT

EEHE HEEEER ERBEESH RBEE BRA& 2z 8D (%)

Ms. Huang Superior Glory Interest of controlled 1 100
Enterprises Limited corporation (Note)

Huang# + SYEEE g (H )

Ms. Huang Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled 100 100

corporation (Note)

Huang#z & Ry E Ew (M)

Ms. Huang Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled 1 100

corporation (Note)

Huang# + FEEEBRAR S EE S (i)

Ms. Huang Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1 100

HuangZ + BEmEB ANHT)

Note: 1,377,439,892 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which are Kzt - 1,377,439,892 % f% 15 M1 Joy Town Inc. B
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as BH  ESEHAHangL TR IEAZ T
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. A MR 3 A K | Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group Limited{E B Z L AH 2 REFEHMER  Joy
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in Town Inc. HIEEEBEERABE2EREA © IE
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire 5 B AR A 7] ANotable Reward Limited 2
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets 2 & KB A 7 - M Notable Reward Limited
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited, th Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & &
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the & - 1 Superior Glory Enterprises Limited %
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company HEBITRAK REEEFTHEE ° Superior
under SFO. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Glory Enterprises Limited - Notable Reward
Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is the sole director of Zensun Group Limited * 1E 7% B A R 2 7 &Joy Town Inc.
Limited. HREARBZERAR BEaAEHFRH

ERPITETARE 2 HE8EE © HuangZZ 74
Joy Town Inc. & Notable Reward Limited Z I
—EEF MREEAEBEERRARIZHE—
EEo

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, chief MATIRE SIS - PA2023412A31H &% + K

executive of the Company or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which: (a) were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than a contract of service with any Director or any person engaged in the full-
time employment of the Company, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted to approximately 0.2% of the total revenue in the Year and the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for 0.6% of the Group’s total revenue in
the Year.

During the Year, none of our Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of
the Shareholders (who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5%
of our Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest
customers.

During the Year, purchases attributable to the largest supplier of the Group
amounted to approximately 39.8% of the total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 46.8% of the Group’s
purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5% of our Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain Directors and companies controlled by certain Directors
entered into transactions with the Group which are disclosed in notes 27, 28 and
42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, the Board confirmed that none of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions are
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Zensun Development
Group

In 2015, a master services agreement (“Master Services Agreement”) has been
entered into between the Company and Henan Zensun Corporate Development
Group Limited* (A EE B EEEBREEARF) (“Zensun Development”),
pursuant to which, Zensun Development has agreed to provide, or procure
members of Zensun Development, its subsidiaries and/or any other company in the
equity capital of which Zensun Development and/or any of its subsidiaries taken
together are directly or interested so as to exercise or control 30% or more voting
power at general meetings, or to control the composition of a majority of the board
of directors, and the subsidiaries of such company (the “Zensun Development
Group”) to provide construction and related ancillary services to the Group
according to the definitive agreement(s) signed between Zensun Development
Group and the Group from time to time. On 21 February 2017, the Company
and Zensun Development entered into a supplemental agreement (the “2017
Supplemental Agreement”) to, among other matters, extend the effective term of
the Master Services Agreement to 31 December 2019. On 11 October 2018, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement with Zensun Development (2018
Supplemental Agreement”) to further amend the effective terms of the Master
Services Agreement as amended by the 2017 Supplemental Agreement to be
three years from 1 January 2018 and continue up to 31 December 2020.

On 21 October 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Zensun
Development (the “2021 Master Services Agreement”) which commences from
1 January 2021 and continue up to and including 31 December 2023 and the
annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master Services
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023 are RMB3,212 million, RMB2,555 million and RMB1,778 million, respectively.
The 2021 Master Service Agreement and the annual caps mentioned above were
approved by independent Shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 December 2020. For details of the terms of the 2021 Master Services
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 18 November 2020.

As Zensun Development is owned as to 90%, 9% and 1% by Beijing Xiangcheng
Investment Co., Ltd.* (b REE IR E BB A R]) (“Xiangcheng Investment”), Ms.
Zhang Huigi (“Ms. Zhang”) and Mr. Zhang, respectively. Xiangcheng Investment
is owned as to 98% by Ms. Zhang and Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang
and Ms. Huang, an Executive Director and the Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Zensun Development is therefore a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 (the
“2023 Annual Cap”) approved for the continuing connected transactions between
the Group and Zensun Development Group under the 2021 Master Services
Agreement was RMB1,778 million and the actual transacted amounts were
approximately RMB1,758.1 million, which did not exceed the 2023 Annual Cap.
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On 30 October 2023, the Company entered into an agreement with Zensun
Development (the “2024 Master Services Agreement”) which commences from
1 January 2024 and continue up to and including 31 December 2026 and the
annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the 2024 Master Services
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and
2026 are RMB2,330 million, RMB2,134 million and RMB1,516 million, respectively.
The 2024 Master Service Agreement and the annual caps mentioned above were
approved by independent Shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 12 December 2023. For details of the terms of the 2024 Master Services
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 20 November 2023.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Xingye Wulian Group
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement

On 18 February 2020, the master property engineering framework agreement
(“Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (“Xingye Wulian”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Xingye Wulian Group”), pursuant to which,
the Group appointed the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide
property engineering services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement up to and including 31
December 2022 and the annual caps for each of the three financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB18.5 million, RMB26.5 million
and RMB34 million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group
may from time to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the
Group in relation to the provision of property engineering services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17 April 2020 and 23 April 2020.

On 20 October 2022, the Company entered into a master framework agreement
with Xingye Wulian in relation to the provision of the Property Engineering
Services by Xingye Wulian to the Group (the “2022 Master Property Engineering
Framework Agreement”) which commences from 1 January 2023 and continue
up to and including 31 December 2025 and the annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the 2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement
for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are
RMB26.6 million, RMB29.7 million and RMB32.1 million, respectively. The
2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the annual caps
mentioned above were approved by independent shareholders of Xingye Wulian
in its extra-ordinary general meeting held on 15 December 2022. For details of the
terms of the 2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 October 2022.

During the Year, the annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement was RMB26.6 million and the actual
transacted amount was approximately RMB26.3 million, which did not exceed the
above mentioned annual cap.
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Master Property Management Framework Agreement

On 18 February 2020, the master property management framework agreement
(“Master Property Management Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian, pursuant to which, the Group appointed
the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide property management
and value-added services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement up to and including
31 December 2022. On 28 August 2020, the Company further entered into a
supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with Xingye Wulian to amend
certain terms of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement to revise
the annual caps for each of the three financial years ending 31 December 2022.
The revised annual cap for each of the three financial years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB21 million, RMB66 million and RMB66
million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group may from time
to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the Group in relation
to the provision of property management and value-added services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Management Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Management Framework Agreement and
Supplemental Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17
April 2020, 23 April 2020 and 28 August 2020.

On 20 October 2022, the Company entered into a master framework agreement
with Xingye Wulian in relation to the provision of the Property Engineering
Services by Xingye Wulian to the Group (the “2022 Master Property Management
Framework Agreement”) which commences from 1 January 2023 and continue
up to and including 31 December 2025 and the annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the 2022 Master Property Management Framework
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and
2025 are RMB28.9 million, RMB31.6 million and RMB32.3 million, respectively. The
2022 Master Property Management Framework Agreement and the annual caps
mentioned above were approved by independent shareholders of Xingye Wulian
in its extra-ordinary general meeting held on 15 December 2022. For details of the
terms of the 2022 Master Property Management Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 October 2022.

During the Year, the revised annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Supplemental
Agreement was RMB28.9 million and the actual transacted amount was
approximately RMB17.3 million, which did not exceed the above mentioned annual
cap.

The entire issued share capital of Xingye Wulian is indirectly owned as to
approximately 56.59% by the Blossom Trust, which is controlled by Ms. Zhang
as the protector. Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company and Ms. Huang, the
non-executive Director of the Company. As such, Xingye Wulian is a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the Master Property Management
Framework Agreement as amended by the Supplemental Agreement, the 2022
Master Property Management Framework Agreement and the 2022 Master
Property Engineering Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Each of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The independent Non-
Executive Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(ii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has also issued an unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the Board that for the
Year, nothing has come to their attention that in respect of: a) the continuing
connected transactions governed by the 2024 Master Services Agreement: (i)
have not received the approval of the Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (iii) have not been entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set for the year
ended 31 December 2023 by the Company in respect of the continuing connected
transactions; and b) the continuing connected transactions governed by the 2022
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the 2022 Master Property
Management Framework Agreement: (i) have not received the approval of the
Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; (iii) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded
the relevant annual cap as set for the year ended 31 December 2023 by the
Company in respect of the continuing connected transactions.

The Board confirms that the auditor of the Company has confirmed the matters set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, according to the register of interest in Shares and
underlying Shares and short positions kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiries by the Directors, the persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company are as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares of the Company REATRGZHFE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests Shares held Company (%)
KRR DT BT
BREREBE ERME FrERHEE BRAz2E D (%)
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Trustee (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
Pte Limited BEREAHIEE)
Superior Glory Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
Enterprises Limited Ry E (i)
Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
AR ()
Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
FEEBEERAR Ry E v (HiE)
Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99

mamEA AN

Note:

These Shares are directly owned by Joy Town Inc., which are ultimately owned by a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra Trust
(Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire issued
share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets of the trust. Ms.
Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is
the sole director of Zensun Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person other than the
Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares that was required to be recorded in
the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors was interested in any business,
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group’s businesses except that Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang are individually
and collectively deemed interested in Zensun International Holdings Company
Limited and/or its subsidiaries and associated companies which are engaged in
construction, property development and related business in the PRC.

As the Board is independent of the boards of these companies, the Company has
therefore been) capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from, the above businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme adopted by the Company on 28 August 2013 (the “2013
Scheme”), which was valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date
of adoption, expired on 27 August 2023. In order to ensure continuity of a share
option scheme for the Company, the shareholders of the Company passed an
ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June
2023 to approve the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) and the termination of the 2013 Scheme. The New Share Option
Scheme became effective following the grant of a listing approval by the Stock
Exchange on 12 June 2023 (the “Adoption Date”).

The 2013 Scheme

The purpose of the 2013 Scheme is to motivate eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2013 Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible
persons of the 2013 Scheme include (i) a director or proposed director (including
an independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group; (i) a direct
or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii) a supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member
of the Group; (v) a person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional services to any
member of the Group; and (vi) a landlord or tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any
member of the Group. Subject to the terms of the 2013 Scheme, the Board shall
be entitled at any time during the life of the 2013 Scheme to offer the grant of any
option to any eligible person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select and
the basis of eligibility shall be determined by the Board from time to time.

Pursuant to the 2013 Scheme, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares which, when aggregated with
shares subject to any other share option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general meeting
approving the 2013 Scheme on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible person in the 2013 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options) of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The period
within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as the Board may
in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save that such period shall
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2013 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of the annual general meeting approving the 2013 Scheme
on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from the Shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any time
not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share options is
accepted.

The New Share Option Scheme

(1) Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide eligible
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole, as well as to motivate eligible participants
to contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

(2) Eligible participants

Eligible participants of the New Share Option Scheme include (i) directors,
chief executive and employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including persons who are granted options under the New Share
Option Scheme, share options or awards as an inducement to enter into
employment contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries) (the
“Employee Participants”); (ii) advisers, consultants, contractors, suppliers,
agents, entities providing research, development or other technological
support and service providers of any member of the Group (the “Service
Providers”); and (iii) directors, chief executive and employees of the holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company
(the “Related Entity Participants”).
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(6)
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Maximum number of shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect of all options
and awards to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) or share award scheme(s) of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Adoption
Date (i.e. 191,338,666 Shares).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all
share options or awards granted to each eligible participant (including
both exercised or outstanding options, share options and awards) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Exercise of options and minimum period

The Board may in its absolute discretion determine the period within which
an option may be exercised, save that such period shall not be longer than
10 years commencing on the date of grant.

An option must be held for at least 12 months after the date of grant before
it is vested and exercisable by the grantee. A shorter vesting period may
be granted to Employee Participants at the discretion of the Board or the
remuneration committee of the Company or any other authorised agent(s) as
deemed appropriate at the sole discretion of the Board.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer, there is no
performance target which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised under the terms of the New Share Option Scheme nor any
clawback mechanism for the Company to recover or withhold any options
granted to any eligible participant.

Time of acceptance and payment on acceptance

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant
concerned for a period of 14 days from the date on which the letter
containing the offer is delivered to that eligible participant.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to which
the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the grantee with the number of Shares in respect of
which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein, together with a remittance
or payment in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof, is received by the Company. Such remittance payment
shall not be refundable in any circumstances.

Exercise price

The exercise price of any options shall be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion and it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of the
Shares in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Duration of the New Share Option Scheme
The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the Adoption Date.

For further details of the New Share Option Scheme, please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 27 April 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, no share option of the Company has been
granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2013 Scheme and the
New Share Option Scheme. As at 1 January 2023 to its date of termination, the
total number of shares available for issue under the 2013 Scheme was 35,006,863
shares, representing 1.8% of the then share capital of the Company in issue. As
at the Adoption Date, 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the scheme mandate limit and the
service provider sublimit of the New Share Option Scheme is 191,338,666 shares
and 19,133,866 shares respectively, representing 10% and 1% respectively of the
share capital of the Company in issue at the respective dates.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Other employee benefits — Retirement benefit
scheme and pension scheme” set out in note 2.22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 63 to 76.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders to be its goal.
According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(i) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iv) the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

(vi) the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s norm;
(vii)  the general market conditions; and

(viii)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association and any other applicable laws and
regulations.
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The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend
Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as required under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a Director. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group
throughout the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

During the Year, the Company was not involved in any litigation, arbitration or
claims of material importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or
against the Company.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the biographical details of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Board of Directors and Senior Management”, there has been
no change to the information of the Directors which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to the publication of
the Company’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 29 August 2023,
11 September 2023, 12 September 2023 and 13 September 2023 in relation to the
Exchange Offer for the 12.5% senior notes due 2023 (i.e. the 2023 Notes). On 12
September 2023, all conditions precedent to the Exchange Offer have been fulfilled
and the Exchange Offer has been completed. Senior notes in the principal amount
of US$103,478,000 carrying interest of 7% per annum due on 12 September 2025
(i.e. the 2025 Notes) were issued. As a result, the 2023 Notes validly tendered for
exchange and accepted pursuant to the Exchange Offer have been cancelled.
The aggregate principal amount of US$9,752,000 of the 2023 Notes remains
outstanding.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

Details of the important events since the year end are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2024 AGM will be held on Friday, 10 January 2025 and the notice of the 2024
AGM will be published and despatched in the manner as required by the Listing
Rules and the Articles of Association in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2024 AGM expected to be held on Friday, 10 January 2025, the register
of members of the Company expected to be closed on Monday, 6 January 2025 to
Friday, 10 January 2025, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2024 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged for registration
with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Friendly Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong expected not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 3 January 2025.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Prism Hong Kong
Limited, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2024 AGM.

Ernst & Young resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 25
December 2023 and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 26 December 2023 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young and subsequently resigned
with effect form 4 July 2024. Prism Hong Kong Limited has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 11 July 2024 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited.

On behalf of the Board

ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer

30 September 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance, formulate good corporate governance practice to improve
accountability and transparency in operations, and strengthen the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group from time to time so as to cope with the
expectations of the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
(“Code Provision(s)”) and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (“CG
Code”) throughout the Year, save for the deviations which are explained below.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly internals. Although only
two regular Board meetings were held during the Year, the Board considered
that sufficient meetings had been held as business operations were under the
management and the supervision of the executive Directors. In addition, senior
management of the Group has provided to the Directors the information in respect
of the Group’s business development and activities from time to time and, when
required, ad hoc Board meetings were held to discuss matters.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive of the Company should be segregated. The Company is of the view that
it is in the best interest of the Company that Mr. Zhang with his profound expertise
in the property business, shall continue in his dual capacity as chairman and chief
executive officer. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the
current Board composition and structure taking into account the background and
experience of the Directors.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the model code as set out in Appendix C3 (“Model
Code”) to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities transactions by
the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the relevant employees of the Group who are considered likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company or its securities on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the securities
of the Company pursuant to Code Provision C.1.3 of the CG Code. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, all relevant employees have complied with
the required standard of such code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests of its
Shareholders and fulfil his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills,
care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory requirements.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and strategic business
directions, and monitoring business performances through implementation
of adequate risk management and internal control systems. The executive
Directors are delegated with the authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of the Group, operational and business decisions within the control
and delegation framework of the Group. The Non-Executive Directors (including
independent Non-Executive Directors) contribute valuable views, professional
opinions and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;
(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the board committees, details of
which are set out below.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments such as
company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of board committees,
major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other significant financial
and operational matters.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. It has carried out
review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of financial
and operational compliance of the Group.

The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain from voting at such
Board meeting and the independent Non-Executive Directors with no conflict of
interest shall attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure
that they can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the affairs
of the Company and the Directors have disclosed to the Company the identity and
nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant commitments
on an annual basis.

To the best knowledge of the Company, apart from the family relationship between
Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang, there is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among our Directors. All of them are free to exercise their
independent judgments.

During the Year, regular Board meetings of the Company were held two times
to review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and
to review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management of the Group. At least 14 days’
notice for each regular meeting is given to all Directors. All such minutes are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. Apart from the regular Board
meetings, the Chairman also met with the independent Non-Executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors during the Year.
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Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised six Directors including two
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The biographical details of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 38 to 42.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for leadership and effective functioning of
the Board, ensuring key issues are promptly addressed by the Board, as well as
providing strategic direction of the Group, take primary responsibility for ensuring
good corporate governance practices with necessary procedures established and
also together with other executive Directors are responsible for the Group’s daily
operations and the effective implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Executive Directors
As at 31 December 2023, there were two Executive Directors including Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhang Guogiang. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang.

Non-Executive Director
As at 31 December 2023 there was one NED, Ms. Huang. Ms. Huang is the
spouse of Mr. Zhang.

Independent Non-Executive Directors and their Independence
As at 31 December 2023, there were three INEDs including Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma
Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of INEDs in accordance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. With Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu
Da’s working experience and their academic background in economics, finance
and accounting, the Company considers that they are qualified persons with
appropriate professional knowledge in accounting and finance as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors, including the NED and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with the Company for a term of three years and under which all
Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years, and no Director
shall hold office for a continuous period in excess of three years, or past the
third annual general meeting, following the Director’s appointment or re-election,
whichever is longer, without submitting himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

In compliance with Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, an updated list of the
Directors identifying their role and function are available on the websites of the Company
(www.zensunenterprises.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk). The
Company will review the composition of the Board from time to time to ensure that the
Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skill and experience to meet
the needs of the Group’s business and to enhance the shareholders’ value.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the Shareholders and have
exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Group. Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he or she is fully aware of his or her
duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable statutory and regulatory
rules and requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
so as to develop and refresh directors’ knowledge and skills and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company regularly circulates training materials or briefings to all Directors
in respect of the updates on, among other things, the Listing Rules, the SFO
or guidelines, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and relevant financial or
accounting standards which may be of the interest to Directors. During the Year,
all Directors have complied with the Code Provisions in relation to continuous
professional development, apart from reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business, director’s duties and responsibilities. The Company updates Directors
constantly on the latest developments regarding the Group’s business and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided to
the Company with their training records on a regular basis, and such records have
been maintained by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the trainings
received by each of the Directors during the Year is summarised as follows:

Name of Directors
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Type of trainings

BEEnE =R

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Zhang Jingguo Aand B

SRARE 5 A AKB

Mr. Zhang Guogiang Aand B

R B985 A AKB

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Ms. Huang Yanping Aand B

Huang YanpingZ 4= AKB

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUKHTES

Mr. Liu Da Aand B

Ell=3ea AKB

Mr. Ma Yuntao Aand B

BERKLE AKB

Dr. Li Huiqun Aand B

FHEEEL AKB

A attending seminars/webinars/conferences/forum (including anti-bribery and ~ A: HEMNEg / BEmNeg /g3 wE(REREN
corruption training) E0gr=r )

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general  B: HEBBRGE —REK  BHE  CEEAURE

business, real estate, corporate governance and director’s duties and
responsibilities.

ERECHE - HTIREHEH



Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees including the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) to
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs with respective terms of reference. Details of the Board committees are
discussed below.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice at the
Company’s expense in appropriate circumstances.

Attendance of Directors at various meetings
During the Year, details of the Directors’ attendance in the following meetings are
set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HESEAEBITERRE

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
=3 XY ERZEES FHEES REZEE RRBEAE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Jingguo 3/3 N/A 2/2 11 11
SRARE 5t & TEA
Mr. Zhang Guogiang 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 11
SRE GRS A TiE A TiE A N iE A
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Ms. Huang Yanping 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Huang Yanping% + TiE A TiE A N iE A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Liu Da 3/3 3/3 N/A 1/1 1/1
Ell=es TiE A
Mr. Ma Yuntao 3/3 3/3 2/2 N/A 11
HBiBEREE N iE A
Dr. Li Huiqun 3/3 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1

FEREL
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of the Company,
including reassessment of the financial and accounting policies, review of interim
reports, annual reports and financial information, etc. In addition, the Audit
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board, to be put
to its Shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting (*“AGM”), in relation
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; review and
supervision of the external auditor in respect of its independence and objectivity,
the effectiveness of the audit procedures; formulation of policies on the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor; handling any issues related to the
resignation or the removal of such auditor and the communication with the external
auditor on auditing matters.

As at 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun who are all INEDs. Mr. Liu
Da is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The most up-to-date version of the
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit
Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others:

(i) reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2023;

(i) reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function;

(i) discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit
findings;

(iv) reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(v) reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors to determine the
provision of such services would affect the independence of the auditors (if
any); and

(vi) performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate

governance policies and practices.

After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect of
the Group, and concluded at the meeting held on 30 September 2024 that the risk
management and internal control systems were adequate and effective.

On 30 September 2024, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023, including the accounting principles and practices, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this annual
report has complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee therefore
resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Prism
Hong Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company and that the relevant resolution
shall be put forth for it Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2024 AGM.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and packages of the
Directors and senior management to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as the prevailing market conditions. The human resources department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources data for the
Remuneration Committee’s consideration.

As at 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members, namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huigun and Mr. Ma Yuntao. Dr. Li
Huigun and Mr. Ma Yuntao are INEDs while Mr. Zhang Jingguo is an Executive
Director. Mr. Ma Yuntao is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
most up-to-date version of the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, two Remuneration Committee meeting was held. The
Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved the remuneration of
Executive Directors, NED and INEDs, and reviewed and approved the adoption of
the New Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board regularly and make any changes
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, including making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board that assist
complementation of the Company’s corporate policy.

As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huigun and Mr. Liu Da. Mr. Zhang Jingguo is
an executive Director while Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu Da are INEDs. Dr. Li Huiqun
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The most up-to-date version of
the written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy (the “Director Nomination
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to identify and evaluate a suitable candidate
for nomination to (i) the Board for appointment; or (i) the Shareholders for election,
as Directors, at general meetings.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out a number of factors in making nomination,
including but not limited to the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise which are relevant to the
operations of the Group;

. Diversity in all aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy;

o Commitment in respect of sufficient time and participation to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board Committee(s);

° Character, experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate a standard
of competence commensurate with the relevant position as a Director; and

o Requirements of independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. The Board had
reviewed the current structure and composition of the Board and recommended Ms.
Huang Yanping and Mr. Ma Yuntao to retire, and being eligible, offered themselves
for re-election in the AGM held on 7 June 2023 pursuant to Articles 24 and 25 of
the Articles of Association and Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

Under Article 24 of the Articles of Association, subject to any requirements on
retirement of Directors by rotation as may be otherwise provided under the Listing
Rules, one-third of the Directors for the time being must retire from office at the
AGM. If the number of directors is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest
one-third must retire from office. Every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. According to Article 23 of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or by way
of addition to their number must retire from office at the next AGM following the
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-appointment. Every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years by rotation or offers himself for
re-election.
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The Company notes increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives, sustainable and balanced
development. The Company adopted a diversity policy (“Diversity Policy”) which sets out
the approach to diversify the Board from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses
Board composition on behalf of the Board and will recommend the appointment of new
Director, when necessary, pursuant to the Diversity Policy.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been considered based
on the Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will also consider factors based on
the Company’s business model, specific needs and meritocracy from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

During the Year, the Board comprises six Directors, including two Executive Directors, one
NED and three INEDs, and as at 31 December 2023, out of the six directors, there are
four male directors and two female directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of professional experience, skill and knowledge. Having
reviewed the Diversity Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee is
satisfied that the requirements set out in the Diversity Policy had been met.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, on an annual basis to ensure
its effectiveness.

Diversity in Workforce

The Company recognises the importance of diversity in workforce throughout the Group as
a matter of corporate governance. The Group is committed to ensuring that recruitment
at all levels, including the Board, adheres to range of selection criteria in order to consider
a pool of talented individuals. The Group will continue to take gender diversity into
consideration during recruitment. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 529 full-time
employees with an overall gender ratio between male and female at approximately 68%
and 32%, respectively. The Nomination Committee considers that the existing workforce
composition has achieved gender diversity, and endeavours to discuss and agree on
measurable objectives and plans for achieving diversity, periodically and when necessary.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s auditors for the Group’s audit services was RMB1,850,000. No non-
audit services was provided by the auditors to the Group for the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual and
interim results of the Group are published in a timely manner, within three months
and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period end.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 77 to 79.
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Going Concern

Save as disclosed under the heading “Material uncertainties relating to going
concern” in the Independent Auditor’s Report and in note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors are of the view that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems including a review on their
effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable development of the Group. The
risk management and internal control systems, under a defined management
structure with limits of authority, are designed for the Group to identify and
manage the significant risks to pursue its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance effectiveness and efficiency of
its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for reliable
financial reporting, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of the Group’s risk profile within its
acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management process from
risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk responses and
regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems are effectively
established and maintained.

The risk management process is structured from management of the Group from
respective business functions at execution level to the Board, together assisted
by the Audit Committee in decision-making and monitoring level. Management of
the Group identifies, assesses and prioritises the key existing and potential risks
through a detailed assessment process and determines the appropriate mitigation
strategies and control measures in response to the identified risks. Ongoing
evaluation and monitoring of the identified risks, respective measures, and results
are carried out and reported to the Board regularly. The Board at decision-making
level, assisted by the Audit Committee, reviews the risk appetite, risk management
process and strategies and also the internal control systems and provide
recommendations for any improvement on the systems on an ongoing basis to
ensure risk management effectiveness.

The establishment of the internal audit & compliance department promote the
importance and construction of the compliance into the corporate culture, monitor
the effectiveness of the existing internal controls system of the Group, and provide
reasonable assurance to the Board for oversight of the internal control system
operated by the management.
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The internal audit & compliance department conducts regular internal audit review
across principal divisions of the Group, and, on a regular basis reports their finding
results with improvements directly to the Audit Committee to ensure the internal
controls are in place and adopted properly and effectively as intended. The scope
of internal audit review included principal divisions from finance department, risk
management department, treasury department, purchasing department and
sales department, etc. to ensure material controls have been covered during
the internal audit review process. Any matter or areas of improvement shall be
communicated to the divisional management and had them followed up on a timely
basis. Upon review of the Annual Risk Management and Internal Control System
Report conducted by the internal audit & compliance department, the Audit
Committee and the Board reviews and evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, at least annually on a regular basis.

The Board's annual review in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 has
considered, among other things, (i) the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; (ii) the scope and quality of the
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems
(including the work of internal audit function); (iii) the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems (including the extent and frequency of
monitoring results to the Board or the Audit Committee); and (iv) the effectiveness
of the Company's processes for financial reporting and the Listing Rules
compliance. The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view there are no
material internal control defects identified by the internal audit & compliance
department during the course of internal audit review. With the view to ensure
adequacy of resources and experienced staff for the Company’s financial reporting
functions and prevent re-occurrence of a delay in results publication in future, the
Company has implemented the following measures:

(i) The finance department will report to the executive Directors regularly to
keep them well informed about any issues relating to financial reporting and
to resolve such issue (if any) in a timely manner;

(i) For certain key finance positions, the Company may designate an
alternative suitable employee to ensure normal operations during special
circumstances;

(ii) The Company may consider to extend the notice period of certain key
finance personnel during contract renewal so as to allow the Company to
have more time in identifying suitable replacement; and

(iv) The Company will work with various parties, including external human
resources agencies, to identify potential candidates when situation requires.

With the discussion between management, the internal audit & compliance
department and the Audit Committee, the Board (with the concurrence of the Audit
Committee) considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate. The review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthening the Group’s internal control
environment and processes.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and the overriding principle that Inside Information should be announced
immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of Inside Information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has formulated inside information policies and disclosed its
policies on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information to the public through channels such as financial reporting,
public announcements and its website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or Inside
Information; and

° the Group regularly reminds the directors and employees about due
compliance with all polices regarding the Inside Information, as well as
keeps them appraised of the latest regulatory updates.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well
as communication among board members. Mr. Yuen Ping Man (“Mr. Yuen”), the
Company Secretary of the Company was resigned with effect from 29 February
2024. Mr. Chang Eric Jackson (“Mr. Chang”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 29 February 2024. Both Mr. Yuen and
Mr. Chang have confirmed that he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. Mr. Chang’s biography is set out on page 42 of this annual report in the
section of “Board of Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Policy

The Board considers that having active communications with its Shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in
public disclosures by the Company. Any significant events of the Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard its
Shareholders’ rights of information and participation. The Board considers that the
annual general meeting is an important opportunity for direct communication with
its Shareholders. The notice of the annual general meeting together with relevant
documents will be sent out to its Shareholders at least 21 clear days prior to the
date on which the annual general meeting will be held. The notice contains details
on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other relevant information related to
the proposed resolutions.

The Board considers that the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy are affirmed and reflected by the active
participation of Directors and Shareholders to the Company’s general meetings
and other corporate events.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity for Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor will also attend
the annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Rights

(1

2

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)

Shareholders may request the Directors to convene an EGM of the
company. The Directors are required to call an EGM if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings. Such request must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the EGM and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the EGM. The request
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it.

The Directors are required to call an EGM within 21 days after the date on
which the Directors become subject to the requirement. The EGM called
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not call an EGM, the Shareholders who requested the
meeting, or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the EGM. The EGM must be called
for a date not more than 3 months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call the EGM.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meeting

Eligible Shareholders (as defined below) may submit a written request to
make proposals or move a resolution at the annual general meeting (the
“Request”). “Eligible Shareholder(s)” means:

(i) Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or

(ii) at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.

The Request may be sent to the Company (a) in hard copy form or in
electronic form; (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting.

The Company must then send a copy of the resolution at the Company’s
own expense to each shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual
general meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
(b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives
notice of the meeting.
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An Eligible Shareholder may request the Company to circulate, to the
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting; or (b) other business
to be dealt with at that meeting (the “Statement”).

The expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement need not be paid
by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of the statement
if (@) the meeting to which the requests relate is an annual general meeting
of the Company; and (b) requests sufficient to require the Company to
circulate the statement are received in time to enable the company to send
a copy of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, (a) the expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement
must be paid by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of
the Statement unless the Company resolves otherwise; and (b) unless the
Company has previously so resolved, it is not bound to comply with the
circulation of the Statement unless there is deposited with or tendered to
it, not later than 7 days before the meeting, a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet its expenses in doing so.

(83) Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
A shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the registered office
of the Company at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry.
In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Friendly Limited, the share
registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, a special resolution has been passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2023 to approve the adoption of the
new articles of association of the Company (the “New Articles of Association”) in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing memorandum and articles of
association of the Company. Details of the New Articles of Association was set out
in the circular of the Company dated 27 April 2023. A copy of the New Articles of
Association is available at the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.zensunenterprises.com).

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the Company to
the Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders. The Company disclaims all
liabilities and losses incurred by the Shareholders in reliance on any contents of the
section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

CONCLUSION

Going ahead, the Group will continue to review regularly its corporate governance
practices to maintain high level of transparency, to enhance the Company’s
competitiveness and operating efficiency and to ensure its sustainable development
and to generate greater returns for the stakeholder.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A BE R

%@Prism

To the members of Zensun Enterprises Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Zensun
Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 190, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group incurred
net loss of RMB2,247,272,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at
31 December 2023, the Group’s liabilities include bank and other borrowings and
relevant interest payable with their carrying amounts of RMB6,683,723,000 and
RMB141,868,000, respectively, of which RMB5,637,980,000 have been due for
settlement within one year or repayable on demand are included in current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position, while its available cash and cash
equivalent amounted to RMB528,296,000.

In addition, the Group had defaulted or cross defaulted of principals on certain
bank and other borrowings, to the aggregate amount of RMB1,928,223,000 as
at 31 December 2023 and at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements. These conditions, together with other matters disclosed in note
2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

Material uncertainties relating to going concern (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the directors of the
Company on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the results
of the successful implementation and outcome of the measures, as detailed in
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, to be undertaken by the Group.
In view of the extent of the material uncertainties relating to the results of those
measures to be undertaken by the Group which might cast a significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern, we have disclaimed our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unqualified
opinion on those statements on 30 March 2023.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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OTHER MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not
possible for us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Lee Kwok Lun.

Prism Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Kwok Lun

Practising Certificate Number: P06294

Hong Kong
30 September 2024
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80  Zensun Enterprises Limited 1IEFREXBRAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

for the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F 12431 H IEFE

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R AR®TT
Revenue g 6 20,034,898 9,657,056
Cost of sales SHERCAR (19,262,196) (8,830,013)
Gross profit EF 772,702 827,043
Other income EH A 7 8,698 18,820
Other gains and losses, net H A2k K B 18 F 58 7 (1,610,103) (3,167,711)
Administrative expenses THER (173,631) (194,667)
Sales and marketing expenses HERTHHEERER (97,043) (117,264)
Finance costs B A AN 8 (438,624) (114,768)
Loss before tax BRFE B ET IR 9 (1,538,001) (2,748,547)
Income tax expense FrisfiA X 12 (709,271) (193,980)
Loss for the year FEEE (2,247,272) (2,942,527)
Attributable to: THIE T R
Owners of the Company RARER A (2,298,458) (2,946,113)
Non-controlling interests eI R A 51,186 3,586
(2,247,272) (2,942,527)
Loss per share attributable to owners RATEE AENL
of the Company BREE
Basic (RMB cents) EER(ARES) 14 (120.1) (154.0)
Diluted g N/A N/A
TEA TEA

The notes on pages 87 to 190 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AETHWER

for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT
Loss for the year FEEE (2,247,272) (2,942,527)
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEk =
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified AR EREEN Y EEER
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Z B2 EEE
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations HMEEINEMEE ZE X Z58 (23,013) (375)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to REZBRABTEENH EEER
profit or loss in subsequent periods: ZEmEmilas
Exchange difference on translation of HMEIEFINETS I EE 2
non-foreign operations VE N Z=%8 61,648 64,490
Fair value gains of property, plant and equipment upon EESIGEYERYE BEN
transfer to investment properties, net of tax B AT EYE(FE) 12,511 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FREMEEWERE(BE) 51,146 64,115
Total comprehensive loss for the year FALEEERERE (2,196,126) (2,878,412)
Attributable to: Y& TG
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE 2 =D/ (2,247,460) (2,882,438)
Non-controlling interests IR 51,334 4,026
(2,196,126) (2,878,412)

The notes on pages 87 to 190 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FE8TE190E MM T BZ F iR e M MR T AIERE — 35 ©
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[ERAEXERAAE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R R

as at 31 December 2023

H2023%12A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R AR®TT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKEE 15 363,203 572,668
Investment properties REYE 16 810,535 584,960
Goodwill SES 17 - 300,357
Intangible assets B EE 18 67,368 112,284
Deferred tax assets ERER IR E B 30 485,478 555,315
Total non-current assets EMENEELTR 1,726,584 2,125,584
Current assets RENEE
Completed properties held for sale BEREZERIME 21 9,761,774 10,212,953
Properties under development BRAPYE 22 28,675,621 42,475,033
Accounts receivable, other receivables and FEURBRE F ~ EoAth pE U zk1E K&
other assets HMEE 23 2,915,597 3,072,002
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZSREE 24 296,979 247,725
Prepaid income tax and tax recoverable TEZ P15 E K AT Y B 77 IE 1,179,407 1,418,983
Pledged deposits BikFEe 20 130,913 137,515
Restricted bank balances SRR AIRTTAE#R 20 1,184,149 1,365,905
Cash and cash equivalents ReKIREEEIEB 20 528,296 488,199
Total current assets BN EEARE 44,672,736 59,418,315
Current liabilities RERE
Accounts payable, deposits received and accruals AR - Bz METER 25 8,680,025 7,358,246
Contract liabilities ==L 26 18,087,691 31,327,733
Amounts due to related companies A EENGIE e 27 1,218,038 1,038,106
Loans from a related company KE—MEEEARZER 28 7,273,704 7,243,579
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER 29 5,496,112 4,693,151
Tax liabilities HIEEE 1,045,181 676,048
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 41,800,751 52,336,863
Net current assets REBEEFEE 2,871,985 7,081,452
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAEBERABER 4,598,569 9,207,036
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2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R ARETT
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Rental deposits received BREEZES 25 520 9,440
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER 29 1,187,611 3,506,232
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 30 286,320 371,119
Total non-current liabilities JEME A ELETE 1,474,451 3,886,791
Net assets BEFE 3,124,118 5,320,245
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARARIEA AFE(RRERS
Share capital A&7 32 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves G €8 (2,258,350) (10,889)
3,068,573 5,316,034
Non-controlling interests IR 2 55,545 4,211
Total equity e AR 3,124,118 5,320,245
Zhang Jingguo Zhang Guoqgiang
REKED REIE
Director Director
E= EE

The notes on pages 87 to 190 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREEBRAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREBR

for the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTREARL
Retained
Capital PRC* profits/ Non-
Share reduction statutory Exchange  (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* Reserve* losses}* Total interests equity
EAHH hEH REREH/
s 1 EERE NERE  (ZER) a3 FERER BRER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR  ARETn  ARMTn  ARMTr  ARMTr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33)
() (W) (e
At 1 January 2022 R2002%E1A1A 5,326,923 119,330 304,044 306,072 2,142,103 8,198,472 185 8,198,657
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(EE)/ & = - = - pWe 113 2946113 3586 (2,942527)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMRENE
Exchange differences on translation hEVEHEE - - - 63,675 - 63,675 40 64,115
Total comprehensive income/{oss) FR2ENE/ (BR)EE
for the year - - - 63,675 (2.946,113) (2,882,438) 4,026 (2.878412)
Transfer to PR statutory reserve ERENEETRRE = - 21,521 = (27,521) - - -
At 31 December 2022 2022512731 5,326,923 119,330 331,565 369,747 (831,531) 5,316,034 4211 5,320,245
Attributable to owners of the Company
OGN 1
Retained
Capital PRC* Property profits/ Non-
Share reduction statutory ~ Exchange  revaluation (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* Reserve* reserve* losses)* Total interests equity
Ex e ng  REERN/
Bx  HEgRE ERER  NERE  EHEE  (RSEE) @it FERER  BRAR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33)
(Hi532) (Hi3t33) (Hi3¥33)
At 1 January 2023 R2023%E1A1A 5,326,923 119,330 331,565 369,747 - (831,531) 5,316,034 4,211 5,320,245
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(ER) /a7 - - - - - (2,298458)  (2,298,458) 51186 (2,247,272)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FRE 2 ENE :
Exchange differences on translation BEERER - - - 38,487 - - 38,486 148 38,635
Fair value gains on trangfer from property, 1%+ BERRXEEEE
plant and equipment to investment RENENATEYR
properties, net of tax (%) - - - - 12,511 - 12,511 - 12,511
Total comprehensive income/oss) ER2ERE/ (BR)EE
for the year - - - 38,487 12511 (2,298458)  (2,247,461) 51,334  (2,196,127)
Transfer to PRC statutory reserve ERThETTEE - - 16,465 - - (16,465) - - -
At 31 December 2023 202312731 5,326,923 119,330 348,030 408,233 12511 (3,146,454) 3,068,573 55545 3,124,118

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative reserves of *
RMB2,258,350,000 (2022: consolidated negative reserves of RMB10,889,000)
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ZERERCEGAVBRRBRAZEEEREBA
R #2,258,350,0007T (20224 : 45 BREBARK
10,889,0007T) ©

** PRC refers to the People’s Republic of China. For the purposes of these financial ~ **
statements only, except where the context specifies otherwise, references to
Mainland China or the PRC exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

HEEREARLNE - ERZEUBREME @ B
HIXZZAHREN  HEPEAMKGREE  RFIRE
B AN R B 4t [ o

The notes on pages 87 to 190 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
E8TE190E MM T BZ F e M MR T RIS E — &5 ©



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Annual Report 2023

“Bo=gER

nv_\ é }E ﬁ )ﬁ % %
for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities REXKMEBRENE
Loss before tax KR A BT 18 (1,538,001) (2,748,547)
Adjustments for: KTPFIERE
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets BEAFEFABR SR
at fair value through profit or loss BEZNFEME)EE 7 (40,324) 207,039
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties WEWMENFEEE, (W) 7 7,968 (19,319)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BERZETE 9 11,189 20,036
Interest income B A 7 (8,103) (7,492)
Write-down of properties under development and MORBE R R 3 R IHE
completed properties held for sale to net HEZEXRIMES
realisable value n] B0 H{E 7 1,273,227 2,656,869
Provision for impairment of goodwill AR EREE 7 300,357 124,365
Impairment losses on accounts receivable and JFEE Ut B R e L At MR SR T
other receivables BIEEE 7 4,585 11,604
Finance costs BhE KA 8 438,624 114,768
Operating cash flows before working capital changes & & & EEp v REBELRE 449,522 359,323
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable, other FEUS BR =R ~ Eoth FE UL IE K
receivables and other assets Hab&ER D/ (3Em) 142,900 (376,654)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits from pre-sale B2 TEE S RIBEE Y
proceeds of properties SR Il R 1T 1F BB 181,756 91,785
(Increase)/decrease in properties under development 2% FR#)3 (38H0) 4> (4,153,253) 5,321,984
Decrease/(increase) in completed properties BEHEZETIYWE
held for sale A (38an) 19,237,274 (2,329,172)
Decrease in deposits and prepayments paid for B LW IR & R IE
land acquisitions KIER D - 1,220,087
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable, deposits JERTERFR » BEUIES &
received and accruals st &R CRd), /i (318,111) 1,513,054
Decrease in contract liabilities AHBEERD (13,240,042) (148,849
Cash generated from operating activities KEXBMERS 2,300,046 5,651,658
Tax paid BEHFRIE (254,835) (326,357)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities KEXBMSRESRE T 2,045,211 5,325,201
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[ERAEXERAAE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= AN L=
i =] }Eﬁ)}lbi‘%‘%
for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARBT T
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHMBREMNE
Interest received B2 F B 8,103 7,492
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment EEA Y% - ME L& EER (169) (4,808)
Net cash flows generated from investing activities KRE RSB E N E R 7,934 2,684
Cash flows from financing activities METBHMERENRE
Release of pledged deposits fERRE RS 12,989 205,005
Placement of pledged deposits FHREERZS (6,387) (126,644)
New bank and other borrowings raised FIERIT REMEE 1,506,639 1,749,251
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERTREMER (3,033,816) (5,858,830)
Interest paid ERFLE (708,004) (749,418)
Repayment to related companies EEEEARIA (138,450) (1,294,055)
Advance from related companies TEUR BB R R FRIB 318,382 355,935
Loans repaid to a related company EBE—HEAEARER (1,015,187) (2,263,580)
Loans received from a related company B —fRIRE R R E K 1,045,312 1,302,255
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEETAREREFHE (2,018,522) (6,680,081)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents HERREESEFEBRDFHE 34,623 (1,352,196)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REVZEeRREEFEIEB 488,199 1,838,967
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HINFE FEE SR 4 B 5/ 22 )R BE 5,474 1,427
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZBEERESEEEE 20 528,296 488,199
Analysis of balances of cash and RERBSEEBRERDNT
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REMBARR REATIERZ
consolidated statement of financial position Be kIR EEIEB 20 528,296 488,199

The notes on pages 87 to 190 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
E87TR190 B WM B Z ER A M MR A siiey —#5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023

1.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
registered office of the Company is located at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place,
40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Joy Town Inc., a private limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate
holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited,
a private limited liability company incorporated in Singapore, as trustee of
a discretionary trust which is set up by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”),
a non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Huang is the settlor and
protector of the discretionary trust. Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, is the spouse of Ms.
Huang.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”)
on 30 September 2024.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the applicable
requirements of the Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirement of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The material accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new
or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.
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RRMBEFMK L2 BERILERT - EA
Huang YanpingZ =+ ([HuangZ £ | + A2 &3E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHEXR(EA)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEEE)

Going concern basis AL EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred a net B E2023F12A31BHIEFE » X&EE
loss of approximately RMB2,247,272,000, and as of that date, the ELEBBRFELHAR2247,272,000
Group’s current portion of bank and other borrowings amounted to T BE%ZA AEERITREME
RMBS5,496,112,000, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted EZ S B ARYS5,496,112,000
to RMB528,296,000. T MAEREIRECEEERAARK

528,296,0007T °

As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not make payments on HZE2023F12A31H » "EEB M A
certain principal and interest payable of its USD denominated senior R ER2023F B A EB L EE
notes due in 2023, which had been delisted upon maturity on 13 (B 7202359 A 13 B AR R ) M3
September 2023, and the interest payable of its USD denominated TARE REMFE - ARER2024F F|
senior notes due in 2024 (“2024 Senior Notes”), which was MM E T EELEE ([2024F B L E
subsequently delisted upon maturity on 23 April 2024, triggering an | H1E1R20244 4 A23H 3| HAREBR
event of default or cross default of various borrowings pursuant to ) RMEMFIE - B iEREEE HRIE
the terms and conditions of respective agreements. The Company RREHEETHEAONRIXELEE -
had suspended the trading of 2024 Senior Notes on 24 November ARAAER2023FE 11 A24BEEEE
2023, and, subsequent to 31 December 2023, the 2024 Senior 2024 B E K - WTE2023512 A 31
Notes had been delisted upon maturity on 23 April 2024 and the Hi% @ 2024 F B EHER20245 4 A23
Company had also suspended the trading of its USD denominated A EIEARF BRI - AN AR JRR202454 A2
senior notes due in 2025 on 2 April 2024. AEEEEHR2025FEI B E Tt E

BRER -

As of 31 December 2023, the aggregate principal and interest HZE2023F12A31H © LB 4R X
payables of the said USD denominated senior notes in default or BAMETTEELEZEBENENEAE R
cross default was approximately RMB2,035,611,000. F B EEEY A ARE2,085,611,0007T °
These events or conditions indicate that material uncertainties exist ZEZHNIFERAKAFES K TAR
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as = NEHASENFELERE N EK
a going concern. The Directors have given careful consideration to ERRH - BEFENEAKRERTAE
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its available RAMBEERFELLE  BREEE
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will have REBRARKRORHESENKRENETH
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern. The MERR - REBBFIEA TS RiE
following plans and measures are formulated to mitigate the liquidity M NERRBECBE N RREREE
pressure and to improve the financial position of the Group: ZEARSAR
(@  The Company will continue to communicate proactively with (@  ARRBEEEBEEEEAL
its creditors, especially noteholders, on mutually agreeable HEREBFBEAN)ER WHEEs
arrangements on payments of outstanding principal and BEEMNREERS RSB
interests; ZHE
(o)  The Group will implement various strategies to improve (o) AEEEEESBEREIGMNASE
the Group’s income from sales of properties, project R EEE  BHEE L
management and sales, hotel operations, rentals from &  AELERSWRANURKEE
investment properties and dividend income from financial YMEMSHEE RIEAFETAE
assets at fair value through profit or loss to generate mZeRMEEZREWMANEE
additional operating cash inflows and putting extra efforts FIMKEIRESRA - WINKNE
on the collection of outstanding sales proceeds and other W e REEEEFTSRIENEAM

receivables; FEMRTE




2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(©) The Group is actively reviewing its debt structure and looking
for funding opportunities, including actively negotiating
with several financial institutions to obtain new loans at a
reasonable cost; and

(d) The Group will continue to take active measures to control
administrative costs and unnecessary capital expenditures to
relieve liquidity to support operations.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
forecast covering a period of not less than twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. They are of the opinion that, taking into
account of the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the directors believe it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, given the volatility of the property sector
in China and the uncertainties to obtain continuous support by the
banks and the Group’s creditors, material uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
may have to be made to write down the values of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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2.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4

2.5

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - Dbased on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.
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2.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iif) is @ member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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2.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Related parties (continued)

(0)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2%

2.78% to 10%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 6.67% to 20%

20% to 50%

Land and buildings

Hotel
Leasehold improvement

Furniture, office equipment and
motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as
a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9

2.10

2.11

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Contract benefit is recognised as intangible assets and amortised on
the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful economic
lives:

Contracts benefit 50 months

The useful life of contract benefit is assessed based on the remaining
period of the property development.

Contract benefit

Contract benefit acquired in a business combination is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date, which is related to the future
acquisition of the land use right. Before completing the acquisition of
the land use right, contract benefit is tested for impairment annually
and is not amortised. And after completing the acquisition of the
land use right, contract benefit is subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. The useful life of
contract benefit is assessed based on the remaining period of the
property development. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method over the period of the property development.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
except those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment
of the total costs of land and buildings attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs to be
incurred in selling the properties.
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2.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,
(CONTINUED)

ERETHE(E)

2.12 Leases 212 #HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of offices and motor vehicles (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESTEEE)
(CONTINUED)
2.13 Financial instruments 213 €@ I A
Investments and other financial assets REREMEHEE
Initial recognition and measurement IR TR R AT Z

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, that date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued) 213 €I E(E)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity investments are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued) 213 €I E(E)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payables, amounts
due to related companies, loans from a related company, bank and
other borrowings, and financial liabilities in other payables, deposits
and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (accounts payables, other
payables and borrowings)

After initial recognition, accounts payables, other payables, banks
and other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with
the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEFEBRE)

(CONTINUED)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 214 SREERMEE)
General approach BT
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for BEEEEES MERBRER - st9R
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since RUREERR I EABBEMNEE
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result WMOmMsS @ARK+ @A (+=—@EA
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a TEEMEEEE) e EME NS HmME
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been EZEEBEIRBBEEREERE -
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss MYIBER AR ZE R ABIEINZE
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining BEMAmMs ARFESHRAM A ZTF
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime HELZEEEEHERERE - T
ECL). BHOMRE(ZHBEBREESS) -
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk REREEH  AEEGTHeRIA
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial = E R BV EHER AR 25 Khgi
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares e MYERFLEE - AEESH RS R
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the TERBEARZEZARKRESHTE
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial ROGERBHZEZNRE  TeEE
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers BARBTERASNB NN ERZE
reasonable and supportable information that is available without EREEEEH(REBERATEEE
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking ) e REBRA @ WMENNZAHEA
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant 30K ' BIfEERBRE AELF -

increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual RE X FmEI0 A - AEER & @t
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the BEHIBED - A RETEBELT
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when T RAEERHE 2 E MG/ MR
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to M RGN ER & 78 7R 2N 52 B S K A] BE 2B B
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into W e & R EE 4958 - B AREE JRA]
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. EEMEELTED -
Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under KA EZ e EEBIRIERB
the general approach and they are classified within the following AT ERME AR ERHEES
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable and B2 TYRERBRALETSE  HEBGSE
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below. A (AR 3R ) 2 FEUR BR FRBR A
Stage1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not FIEER — BYHEBERUAKR  FER
increased significantly since initial recognition and for Rt mERE G N - B A
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount BREEZHAENRT=-@A
equal to 12-month ECLs EHEEEEZ 2
ZERTHE
Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has FoMEER — BYIBRHERUAKR  FERE
increased significantly since initial recognition but that EEEah  BXIEBE
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which EREemEERHER
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to BiEREEN28BBEHE
lifetime ECLs EBEREZSEAEZ SR
TA
Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the FOHE — RFEABHREERE
reporting date (but that are not purchased or (BEXRBEXEELEEER
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss B) BEEBEEEBREER
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime >HBEHEEEBERZESHE

ECLs TR ERMEBE




2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable and that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

217

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the country
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

= when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18

2.19

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of properties and services provided in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
taxes.

2.

ERETHE(E)

2.18

2.19

BUE# B

TR 8 BY TR BE & T 7 E % B WK B #0 BY K%
1 & P B A R B R D S ETERR ©
EMBEHIRE AR - SRmEBE
ENRAHN AR AIEE RaE%
RASUIA ©

W

BEF e Wz

RERF A K UE I SR T H
ZHIREEETERER - L2
MAEERAR IR ZEHRARBEE
REBHIR(E -

BEANTHRERSHESRE - KB
B AN B[ 7 P 8BRS i R M
BRESRIEMG - IEREREH
FIaR T LR BIAIR - EEEATER
BARR O T iEE AR H RS BIFRE -

RORBRESRBAAIETERE
EARYEE B o
BANTEEREKD ZBMEKD R

B PR E — F R m R B A
BMEARN G - Wi EURGARN R
BErft 8 EAMERTE - ZERH
RBEASEEZEFSERRRRERNE
BRAEZRST EAHNTEERER
D ZRBERD BAEERERT —FN
ERMBARBBAER - & 4IE T HEBR
WEBEEERMNSEZEANAELR
SRS - MEPNREEEARE M
HERGOBR S —FRERTENEH
e RZEREBEBHRESELFH
155 EREE 2 - TEHEARE
AT EELRE -

RAREEREEBBRLENER
IR TS - WS R A (B
2 AFAEE - WG BIBRFIR -




Annual Report 2023 “EF T =FFIH 109

2.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,
(CONTINUED)

ERETHE(E)

2.19 W ()

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@) Sale of properties
Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser
obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has the present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
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(b)  Project management services (b) EHHEERE
Revenue from project management services derived from BY¥TEEH ARIEHEERIEE
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with development of property projects is recognised when RIR AR R RS B & P R B R
the relevant services are rendered and the customer WHFEAR R BR A T 22 R R
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

(c) Property management services (c) D EE IR
Revenue from the provision of property management services REDEESEREEEHBRAR
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line STEHAE S EER  TERE
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and F RIS EFEAREBIRER
consumes the benefits provided by the Group. Fzs o

(d)  Hotel operation (@ Bk EE
Revenue from room sales and other ancillary guest services is EEHENAEMEEERRS Z
recognised over time on a daily basis, and revenue from the WaTHERERR  MAREH
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of the goods is transferred to customers. EREEPRER -

Revenue from other sources B 57 Wz

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
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Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Other income R A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme and pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in Mainland
China are required to participate in a pension scheme (the “Pension
Scheme”) operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the Pension Scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. These
financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception
of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.
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2.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,
(CONTINUED)

ERETHE(E)

2.25 HMEE(4K)

2.25 Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong and overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB, including the Hong
Kong dollar (HK$), United States dollar (“USD”) and Singapore
dollar (“SGD”). As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve except to the extent that the differences are attributable to
non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

3.1

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on
1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Applications of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative

Information

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

Except for those mentioned below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have been
prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are applied by the Group on 1 January
2023 and are applied prospectively. The amendments have no
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance but has
affected the accounting policies disclosures as set out in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2023 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”
(continued)

The amendments are applied by the Group on 1 January 2023 and
are applied prospectively. The amendments have no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions.

The amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group as no right-of-use asset and lease liability
are recognised.

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain amended HKFRSs have been published but are
not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?®

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)"#
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments”)14
Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of exchangeability?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
8 Effective date not yet determined
4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022

Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs 3. BRHAFITRZBIETEBUEREE
(CONTINUED) A (%)
3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued) 3.2 CHEMERERZEBURRESE
8 (&)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact
on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Other
amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current” and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants”

The amendments provide further guidance to clarify how to classify
debt and other liabilities as current or non-current which are
summarised as follows:

o It clarifies that a liability is non-current if an entity has a
right (instead of unconditional right as stated before the
amendments) to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. This
right has to be existed at the end of the reporting period,
regardless of whether the lender tests for compliance at the
date or at a later date;

o Any expectations about events after the reporting period do
not impact the assessment made at the end of the reporting
period as to the classification of the liability; and

o “Settlements” are newly defined as a transfer to the
counterparty that results in the extinguishment of the
liability. The transfer could be of cash, other economic
resources (e.g. goods or services), or entity’s own equity
instruments. Thus, if the counterparty conversion option is
classified as liability under HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”, the transfer of equity instruments by exercising
the conversion option constitute settlement of liability for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of liabilities.
One exception to the definition is that if the counterparty
conversion option is classified as equity in accordance with
HKAS 32, the transfer of equity instruments by exercising the
conversion option does not constitute settlement of liability
and would be disregarded when determining whether the
liability is current or non-current.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

2022 Amendments issued in 2022 clarified that only covenants
of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, which an entity must
comply with on or before the reporting date (even if the covenant is
only assessed after the reporting date) affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. Those covenants to be complied
with after the reporting date do not affect such classification at the
reporting date.

Besides, the 2022 Amendments required an entity to provide
additional disclosure when a liability arising from a loan agreement
is classified as non-current and the entity’s right to defer settlement
is contingent on compliance with future covenants within twelve
months.

The 2022 Amendments also deferred the effective date of the 2020
Amendments to the annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024, in which both amendments are to be applied as a
package and apply retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision.

Based on preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

3. RMFITREEBIERMBREE

A (4)
32 CHEMGERERZBELEUNKBREE
Al(4E)

R20225 2 M 2022 F 1B 5T 2 - £A H
BERTHEENAELE(BRBLERS
S BEHR 2 ATES - AE R HEER R
HSHHRTG) SR EZABBE RN
ERBONDLE - BRMEBHEZETH
REV I ERRE BN SLE -

BESN - 2022 F BT AR B RE BN E K
BEENEBERIBRIRDEERE
BIER AR EMBURN21E A A& SF
RRR AR RIMNTEE -

2022 FEFT A TN #2020 F & 5T AN HY A 2K
AEHEEZ 20241 A1 Bk 2 &8 FtA
H 6 R RS HARS - BRI IR ST AR S
o — AL B8 e 30 AT IS M E AR % A B4R
BRER -

AREERREEFEZSETANTE
ARRBERGHERTHEER] °

RIBOL M BHZEETATEY
AEENTHERRELEEMNEATE -




SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

4.1

4.2

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year,
which is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The assessment of the going concern assumption involves making
a judgement by the directors, at a particular point of time, about
the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors consider that the Group has the capability
to continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that may individually or
collectively cast a significant doubt upon the going concern
assumption are set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2023 was nil (2022: RMB300,357,000). Further details
are given in note 17 to the financial statements.
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable and other receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer
type and rating).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable and other receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements, respectively.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

4.

BEREHHE R MG (&)

4.2

CEIROLEESE 6 )

FEY IR 5 R B JE W 5 TH 2 AR 1= B
BRE

ANER B {50 PR B B [t B PR R AR U e L
MR B EEEE - BEETD
ANAEFBRUEREXZZEAEF D4
AR LE - ERER - FP AR
NP 2 B RBUEE -

BHERENZERAEE 2 BEBR
FIBEAE - NEEMAERRE - 7
RAEMEENAEBEEEBRER -
Plan - e ORI AR (AR A E 48
B) RS ERR—FABL - TSR
SUER ZEMRBOEI  BIEREBE
BHR NEREEH BEBERME
BHRGTARR - ORI AT
ZBE -

BEBEMBEROE  EEMRREA K
BHEEERZ MR G R —(E
EZfGE - RHEEERESBHRER
BN TR 2 BB R UK - AR E
ZBEEEBEBRLR R EEMR IR IR
K TERREPRENERELD - BE
7N 55 [ e Ui R A e L At B M R IR 2 TRAA
FEEBRZERNMBERRME235
R FE ©

REYE A FlEZ1GE
BERMS LR AUMEZRER
AEEGS2ETRENKR - 815

@ HABRMSLEARMEE - EHEx
WEZ MEBRE - WELFHES
REZEER




4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the dates of the transactions that occurred at those
prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2023
was RMB810,535,000 (2022: RMB584,960,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and
a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. An
intangible asset not yet available for use is tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2023 was RMB32,308,000
(2022: RMB181,464,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2023 was RMBS3,211,894,000 (2022:
RMB1,013,474,000). Further details are contained in note 30 to the
financial statements.
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT
is based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to
the determination by the tax authorities upon the completion of the
property development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with the tax authorities for all its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which
the differences realise.

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

The Group carried out assessment on net realisable value of
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale at the end of each reporting period and compared the
costs and its net realisable value. The net realisable value is the
estimated future selling price less estimated cost of completion
or the estimated costs necessary to make the sale (if any). The
estimated future selling prices are estimated by management with
reference to the Group’s pre-sale selling prices and the recent
selling prices of similar properties in the nearby or relevant locations.
The management also estimated the future selling expenses and
the expected costs to completion by reference to the actual selling
expenses of the Groups’ completed projects, adjusted by certain
current market data, the legal and regulating framework and general
market conditions. The Group’s properties under development
and completed properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC, details of which are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and notes 21 and 22 to the financial statements.
At 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale were
approximately RMB28,675,621,000 (2022: RMB42,475,033,000)
and RMB9,761,774,000 (2022: RMB10,212,953,000), respectively,
which are expected to be recovered through future sales and stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group carried out
assessment on net realisable value at the end of the reporting period
and recognised RMB1,431,831,000 (2022: RMB1,263,639,000) and
RMB2,141,893,000 (2022: RMB1,444,493,000) of the write-down
for properties under development and completed properties held for
sale, respectively, for the year end 31 December 2023. When there
is any decrease in the net realisable value of the properties and it is
lower than the cost of the properties, loss will be recognised on the
properties under development and completed properties held for
sale in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

4.3

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB19,614,491,000
(2022: RMB19,274,110,000) in respect of mortgage facilities
provided by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by property buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these property buyers, the Group would be responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interests thereon and any penalties owed by the defaulted buyers
to the banks. The Group would be entitled to take over legal title to
and possession of the related properties. These guarantees will be
released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the mortgage loan
by the buyers of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion
of the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 20283 as the default risk is low and in case of
default in payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the outstanding principal together with the accrued
interests and penalties. Should the actual outcome be different from
expected, provision for losses will be recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Judgements

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising from
investment properties that are using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties — senior housing communities located in the United States
of America (the “USA”) — are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time rather than through
sale whereas those situated in Hong Kong and Singapore are not
held under such a business model. Therefore, the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted for properties of senior housing
communities but is not rebutted for properties located in Hong Kong
and Singapore. The Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of these investment properties located in Hong
Kong and Singapore as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on disposal of these investment properties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.3 Judgements (continued)

Deferred tax on withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding corporate
income taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities, based
upon the likely distribution level of such earnings from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred
tax liabilities arising from the withholding tax associated with the
investments in subsidiaries established in the PRC for the year ended
31 December 2023 was RMB60,247,000 (2022: RMB60,247,000).
Further details are contained in note 30 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has six reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) Property development in the PRC
(b) Project management services in the PRC
(c) Hotel operations in the PRC

(d) Property investment and management in the United States of
America (“USA” or “US”) in American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”)

(e) Property investment other than AHR
() Securities trading and investment

The Group has property investment and/or management businesses in
Hong Kong, the USA, Singapore and Mainland China. Other than AHR
which is operated in the USA, the property investment businesses in other
regions are evaluated together and assessed as one operating segment by
the management previously and up to 31 December 2023.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that certain other gains
and losses, corporate and unallocated income and expenses (including
unallocated finance costs) are excluded from this measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax liabilities and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

There are no differences from the Group’s annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 on the basis of segmentation or on
the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss, segment assets and
liabilities.
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Segment revenue and segment results DEBULEE R D EDEE
Segment revenue Segment results
2 ez DEBELE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F 2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR%Tx ARBTRT AR®TR
Property development in the PRC KPRz MEEE 19,917,712 9,591,489 (1,554,386)  (2,395,838)
Project management services in NP ZIEE &
the PRC 7% 32,222 11,366 16,710 4,348
Hotel operations in the PRC AR B2 5 &8 34,986 12,456 14,757 (1,503)
Property investment and HAHRAETT 2 W3
management on AHR BERER 15,331 14,738 (10,585) 9,683
Property investment other than AHR AHRUAINZ W335 E 17,318 10,897 13,318 21,065
Securities trading and investment FHEBENEE 17,329 16,110 57,646 (190,930)
20,034,898 9,657,056 (1,462,540) (2,553,175)
Unallocated corporate income RO ARRA - 820
Unallocated corporate expenses APDBEE AT (75,461) (196,192)
Loss before tax B % AT S 1B (1,538,001)  (2,748,547)

123




124

Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[ERAEXERAAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023

5.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REITER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets DEEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TR
Property development in the PRC B 2 YR 44,889,330 59,913,866
Project management services in the PRC R 28 B B2 R 6,745 5,030
Hotel operations in the PRC R 2R E &8 137,929 132,668
Property investment and management on AHR HAHRETZMERERER 207,817 223,768
Property investment other than AHR AHRIASNZ M ERE 680,369 397,348
Securities trading and investment BHBEEREE 297,079 251,586
Segment assets DEREE 46,219,269 60,924,266
Unallocated assets AOBLEE 180,051 619,633
Total assets BB E 46,399,320 61,543,899
Segment liabilities SWEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Property development in the PRC B2 YR 41,100,109 54,989,960
Project management services in the PRC R 28 B B2 RS 1,063 682
Hotel operations in the PRC PR B 2 B S 4,070 -
Property investment and management on AHR HAHRET Z MERE RER 62,367 62,409
Property investment other than AHR AHRMINZ % E 1,323,000 120,927
Segment liabilities DEPEE 42,490,609 55,173,978
Unallocated liabilities ROBEE 784,593 1,049,676
Total liabilities BEE 43,275,202 56,223,654
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RESHER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and segment results DE R D EREE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B ZE2023F12A31HILFEE
Property
investment
Project and Property
Property  management management  investment  Securities
development services Hotel onAHR  otherthan tradingand  Segment
in the PRC inthe PRC  operations in the USA AHR  investment total  Unallocated Total
RERY
RbEZ RbEZ AHREfTZ  AHRMNZ — BFEE
WERR  BREERE  DEEE NERERER  MERE kRE  S94E IR szt
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
Addtions to investment properties  RANERNE - BER
and property, plant and equipment  REZAE 169 - - - - - 169 - 169
Depreciation of property, % BERRENE
plant and equipment 10,572 - 2,994 - 309 - 13,875 2,499 16,374
Amortisation of infangible assets BYEERY 44,916 - - - - - 44,916 - 4916
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment % &%% 2 ATE
properfies (Bia) /st - - - (12,691) 4723 - (7,968) - (7,968)
Fair value gain on finencial assets ~ RATEHABHZ
at fair value through proft or loss SREEZ AT EYG - - - - - 40,324 40,324 - 40,324
Write-down of properties under HAEZERMERELE
development and completed JERINER
properties held for sale to net NERFE
realisable value 1,213,221 - - - - - 1213221 - 1213221
Provision for impaiment of goodwil B EE(ER(E 300,357 - - - - - 300357 - 300,357
Impairment losses on accounts NS RE NGB
receivable and other receivables HEER 2,606 - - 1,963 12 4 4,585 - 4,585
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REITER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and segment results (continued) DEPN SR D EREE(F)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12A31HILFEE
Property
investment
Project and Property
Property  management management  investment  Securities
development services Hotel onAHR  otherthan tradingand  Segment
in the PRC inthe PRC  operations in the USA AHR  investment total  Unallocated Total
RERY
il RPEZ AHREfTZ  AHRMSZ — BHEE
WERR EREERE  EREE NEREREE  MERE kRE  2HER OB it
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR
Additions to investment properties ~ RENERDE - BER
and property, plant and equipment  kEZRE 570 - 4213 - - - 4,783 2 4,808
Depreciation of property, V% BERRENE
plant and equipment 16,526 - 4735 - 265 - 21,287 1,254 22,041
Amortisation of intangiole assets B EERH 44,887 - 2 - - - 44,909 - 44,909
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment  K&WEzATE
properties (E8),/ - - - (135 19454 - 10319 - 19319
Fair value loss on financial assets RATETARSE L
at fair value through profit or loss SREE/LTERR - - - - - (07039 (207,039) - (207039)
Write-down of properties under HEEBPNERELE
development and completed JERINER
properties held for sale to net ERFE
realisable value 2,656,369 = = = = - 2,656,809 - 2,656,869
Provision for impairment of gooowil ~ FEFERE 124,365 - - - - - 124,365 - 124,365
Impairment losses on accounts N RE MR
receivable and ofher receivables HEER 11,604 - - - - - 11,604 - 11,604
Geographical information = E R
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIMBEF Wz EREEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T AR®TR ARETT
The PRC i 19,991,517 9,616,380 587,533 932,408
The USA Ee 16,200 15,482 211,066 217,740
Singapore b 8,178 7,438 339,107 317,236
Hong Kong B 19,003 17,756 103,400 102,885
20,034,898 9,657,056 1,241,106 1,570,269

RESNBEE KT R ERE S E
Wi MEREE S FENTET - FRDE
EGELEHEAERSBIARIN) 2 @ &R
HENEWEE BATHET -

The geographical information of revenue from external customers is
based on the geographical markets of the customers, and the locations
of properties and investments. The geographical information of the non-
current assets, excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments, is
based on the locations of the assets.

EREXEEFZERN
H E2023F K2022F 12 A31 B ILEE - &
B-RFPEBAEERWEE10%A L ©

Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no single customer
has contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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6. REVENUE 6. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T -
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TT
Revenue from contracts with customers EEARAIW
Sales of properties in the PRC iNalcifsek=—t/ES 19,917,712 9,591,489
Project management services in the PRC N 218 B B RSE 32,222 11,366
Hotel operations in the PRC R 2 RS &8 34,986 12,456
19,984,920 9,615,311
Revenue from other sources A s B
Gross rental income from investment properties HEMFERS WA BE 32,649 25,635
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BAFEFABZZEHEEZ
through profit or loss A% B U A 17,329 16,110
20,034,898 9,657,056
Revenue from contracts with customers EEGHWE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) Wiz P HFE R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023512A31HILEE
Project
Sales of management Hotel
properties services operations
Segments 2 EB in the PRC in the PRC in the PRC Total
i RHEZ ReEZ
HEWE HEEEERE EEEE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Type of goods or services and & @ IRIE 2 3 K%

geographical markets B M5
Sale of properties in the PRC FAFR B S 19,917,712 - - 19,917,712
Project management services AR B2 18 B B R AR TS

in the PRC - 32,222 - 32,222
Hotel operations in the PRC R R 2R E & E - - 34,986 34,986

Total revenue from contracts with ~ SNEPEF & LW S 4258
external customers 19,917,712 32,222 34,986 19,984,920

Timing of revenue recognition IR

Goods transferred at a point in time A — B ZEEESY) 19,917,712 - 13,876 19,931,588
Services transferred over time P& e T 8 R AR 75 - 32,222 21,110 53,332

Total revenue from contracts with 4P EPE & LIS 4258
external customers 19,917,712 32,222 34,986 19,984,920
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. Uz ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EESHKZE(E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) Wis 7t E# ()
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12831HILEE
Project
Sales of management Hotel
properties services operations
Segments 2 2B in the PRC in the PRC in the PRC Total
A RHEZ AHEZ
HEWE HEEEERE EEEE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Type of goods or services and & @RI 2 E3I K%

geographical markets EBEmiE
Sale of properties in the PRC R B S 9,591,489 - - 9,591,489
Project management services R 218 B BB RS

in the PRC - 11,366 = 11,366
Hotel operations in the PRC AR B 2B JE &8 = - 12,456 12,456
Total revenue from contracts INEEE P& =48 %E

with external customers 9,591,489 11,366 12,456 9,615,311

Timing of revenue recognition U % 78 5% B RS
Goods transferred at a point in time A — I EZEES 9,591,489 - 5,602 9,597,091
Services transferred over time [ P ] 8 o8 AR TS - 11,366 6,854 18,220

Total revenue from contracts with 4N EFEFE & LIS 4858

external customers 9,591,489 11,366 12,456 9,615,311
Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was RAREHBBERL T ARERN 2 &
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting HNEBEzW=AT -
period:

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥BT R

Sale of properties in the PRC R ST 17,546,557 7,713,410




6. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
properties and advance payments are required pursuant to the
terms of sale and purchase agreements.

Rendering of services (project management services and
property management services)

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and bills are issued when services are rendered.

Hotel operations
The performance obligation is satisfied as services are rendered or
goods are delivered and payment is generally received in advance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
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ERASBENEE2ERBMRMT
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B EE
HREREREXERNERE —RE
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R 20234 2022912 A31H * DB =
BTEBOEE(KRBITHBLRBIT)Z
REERIAT ¢

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR® T

Within one year —FR 17,331,964 18,797,317
After one year —E1% 884,368 15,721,954
18,216,332 34,519,271
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7. OTHER INCOME, AND OTHER GAINS AND 7. HMKWAUREMKRZRERFEHE

LOSSES, NET

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥BT T
Other income Hiplg A
Interest income F B U A 8,103 7,492
Government grants ET & Bl - 87
CUILIR ittt 595 11,241
8,698 18,820
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥BT R
Other gains and losses, net HitWz= R ESEFE
Fair value (loss)/gain on fair value of investment REMFEATFEZATE
properties (note 16) (E18) s (HFE16) (7,968) 19,8119
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value BEAFEFABRZEREEZ
through profit or loss AFEZ(EE) 40,324 (207,039
Foreign exchange differences, net N =555 (64,290) (187,158)
Write-down of properties under development WRERTMERFIELREZ
and completed properties held for sale to ERIMEEREIEFEE
net realisable value (1,273,227) (2,656,869)
Provision for impairment of goodwill (note 17) B R ER M (KEE17) (300,357) (124,365)
Impairment losses on accounts receivable and other & Yt BR 7k & L 4th & U FX T8 R B
receivables (note 23) &8 (MI5E23) (4,585) (11,604)
(1,610,103) (8,167,711)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMAX
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥BT R
Interests on: AREIEZFE -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 727,720 719,716
Interest arising from revenue contracts BHRREEZFS 1,767,460 1,691,864
Less: Capitalised in properties under development B RBERPYEEARL (2,056,556) (2,296,812)
438,624 114,768

Borrowing costs from bank and other borrowings have been capitalised at
rates ranging from 2.80% to 12.50% (2022: 4.75% to 12.50%) per annum.

RERITREMEEZEBERABEN T2.80
[EZ12.50/F (20224 : 4.75E&12.50[F) 2 F
R FABE AL,




LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:
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REE 7 BRBATBEEIR TFIXE :

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT R
Cost of properties sold BE KA 19,237,274 8,805,512
Cost of services BR 75 Ak AR 21,592 20,977
Total employee benefit expenses: EERAFA A :
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) S=HM(FIzE10) 1,181 1,049
Other staff: HEMET :
Salaries and other benefits e R EMET 51,647 90,379
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINEFIGHEIHER 2,546 8,949
55,374 100,377
Less: Capitalised in properties under development B REBERPYEERL (5,938) (6,418)
49,436 93,959
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5B 5 M 1,850 2,880
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - BERZHTE 11,189 20,036
Amortisation of intangible assets | A ERH 44,916 44,909
Lease payments not included in the measurement of WAk AT E & BT ENHEEN K
lease liabilities 35 368
The Group's loss before tax is arrived AEE 2 BRERIEE
at after crediting: BETATYIEE :
Interest income FE U A 8,103 7,492
Gross rental income from investment properties "EMER S WAL 32,649 25,635
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for: B TEAZ EEEERYT
— investment properties generating —EEESKAZ
rental income B (2,707) (3,371)
— investment properties not generating —WEEAHSWAZ
rental income g R 7/ES (1,237) (158)
(3,944) (8,524)
28,705 22,111

131




132 Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[ERAIBXERAAE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERFETHAEFHFM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BE ETHEE - BB R AEH 5 383(1)()
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong b) CEOBEARAR(HEEEFEER )R
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of DIFE2F 5« FNEE K EZITHA B H BN
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: o
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARET T
Fees W 648 636
Other emoluments: E B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZEREYEF 500 368
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRE R B4R 33 45
1,181 1,049
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A831HLLFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowance benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees in kind contributions Total
2N 4:1953 BIKEF

we BUEA B st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR

Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhang* SRS - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guoajiang KRB SR S A - 500 33 533
Non-executive director: FHITEE -
Ms. Huang Huang#Z - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: B TEE -

Mr. Liu Da B AE 216 - - 216
Mr. Ma Yuntao BERGE 216 - - 216
Dr. Li Huiqun FEEEL 216 - - 216

648 500 33 1,181
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERFETHAESHM(E)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ2022F 12831 ILFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowance benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees in kind contributions Total
E 2 A= 3:179 54 BIREF

Hwe BEYEF FT IR st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®BTRT AR®BTT AR®ETET

Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhang* SR - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang ok B3R ST A = 368 45 413
Non-executive director: FEATEE -
Ms. Huang HuangZ & - - = =

Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITEE -

Mr. Liu Da BFELLE 212 - - 212
Mr. Ma Yuntao BENEE 212 - - 212
Dr. Li Huiqun THEEEL 212 - - 212
636 368 45 1,049
Mr. Zhang is also the chief executive of the Company. - REETRANR B THABE
There was no arrangement under which the directors waived or agreed to HEHAANNEES B LR EIFAEREEM

waive any remuneration during the reporting period (2022: Nil). FENE L BE (20224 : £&) o
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11. AEREHAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included one director (2022: FAREZEESFTALTBE —BES(2022F :
Nil), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of /) BRI EM 2 FEEN EXHITE10 - B
the remuneration for the year of the four (2022: five) highest paid employees FAM(2022%F : A)BmmaF AT (LIERR
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as RIEENIEFEBITHAL) M2 FBHT
follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR® T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYEF 2,626 4,373
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid e T RHER 2 &mE AT GEEERIEE
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: ZITBAB) Z ABAT ¢
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,00178 7L E1,000,000/8 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L =1,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7c 22,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L £2,500,0007 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7523,000,000/%8 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001787C 23,500,000/ T - -




12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Annual Report 2023 —EF - = FFR

12. FiS#iBExX

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥TR

Current tax — charge for the year ANEAFIE — F R

— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BAENEH - -

- PRC CIT - R BPRERISH 515,287 207,911

- PRC LAT — R L B E R 199,530 158,875

— Overseas Corporate Income Tax - BIMREFBE 1 106
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERBETE(BREEE) 12,957 (31)
727,775 366,361
Deferred tax (note 30) EAERT (B 5E30) (18,504) (172,881)
Total tax charge for the year FRHERATBE 709,271 193,980

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profits generated in
Hong Kong for both years.

PRC CIT is calculated at the applicable income tax rate of 25% on the
assessable profits for both years. In accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding income tax will be levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the enterprises with foreign investments
established in the PRC. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributable by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

The subsidiaries in the USA are generally subject to Federal Income Tax at a
rate of 21% (2022: 21%) on the taxable income and the statutory regulation
of State Income Tax in different jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December
2023. Certain of these subsidiaries retained with undistributed income are
also subjected to an additional personal holding company tax at 20% on
the taxable income. Certain subsidiaries are limited liability companies which
are by default disregarded entities (i.e. viewed as divisions of the holding
company) and would be taxed as part of their holding company for federal
tax purposes.

HRAARERMEFERNDEREBELRER
Bom A - F I E|NER S SRR A EEFE
W B

AR B 1 3 AT A5 B AR B 4 E AR FE R B0k A1) 2 25%
BEREHENE - BEPRCEMEHE -
FERBIRZINE S ERINERE E T IR
BBWEBRI10%BINAERH - Bt - AEBEAE
A R BI AR SZ A BT B A B 5 20084F1 A1 H LA
BREL A B A PR S A AR B8 B 0% -

PR HIRER IR EREERIONE
60% 2 ZEF R - BEBRRHEWEMRS
RIERG L ERAEERRMEMEERMAX
FREN IR FA S HOBREE o

HE2023F12A31HIEFE  RER KB
RNA— MR T RIERBULAIL21% (20224 :
21%) ZE BAAEHBHE RN HBBLFTETT
B aEERERMATEHE ZEERG - BERDIR
WAZETZENBRAINERERRBA Z
20% 2 B AZRE R R M ANER » B TFHB A A
BERRAR @ A TEE AT (BIRAIERA
RIZDER) « BB I M= B EER A w—3
DETERIE -
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12.

13.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FiSHAX (&)
Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to the profit before tax per the FRFER S LA IBESIRAT R TR A
consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: YEEAATR -
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TT
Loss before tax MrFH BT ES 1R (1,538,001) (2,748,547)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) AR 25% (20224 : 25%)
TE A (384,500) (687,137)
Effect of different tax rates on operations in EEMBDEAER S ER X
other jurisdictions TRz 2 - (53)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose A FNFi 3z H 2 Fi 7 52 28 145,231 138,260
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BAEZFHRBAZHBZE (6,355) (10,075)
PRC LAT A B + b I A 199,530 158,875
Tax effect of PRC LAT PRI ER 2 BB E (49,883) (39,719)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised AERLRFEZRE 2 RETE 242,686 519,123
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZ BB HETE 607,405 117,473
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised HABERERBIEEE (57,800) (2,736)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERBBTIR (BREEE) 12,957 (31)
Income tax expenses for the year FABHAX 709,271 193,980
DIVIDENDS 13. KBS

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

RRABEFWAEZIKNEZE2023F12HA31H
IEEE Z BB (20224 : #) -
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14. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 14. ZxAREEAELASRER
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on: BRENGIBTVIEATERTE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T
Loss EE
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RAEEE ARIEERE
used in the basic loss per share calculation AR ESRERER (2,298,458) (2,946,113)
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
’000 ’000
T T B
Shares & 17
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in FREEITEBRNEFSE
issue during the year used in the basic AR ESREREE
loss per share calculation 1,913,387 1,913,387
No diluted loss per share amounts were presented for the years ended 31 AR A K B R E Z20234F k2022912 A31H
December 2023 and 2022 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary IFFEWEBTH T BITLTBR - WEME

shares in issue during these years. FEMEZSGREEESE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W¥ - BERRXRE
Furniture,
office
Land equipment
and Leasehold and motor
buildings Hotel improvement vehicles Total
HE &M -PLE
THREF IR MEEE  RERARE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT ARBTRT AR¥TR AR¥TRT ARWTR

31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H

Cost RA
At 1 January 2023 72023%181H 450,394 138,481 2,409 27,092 618,376
Additions NE - - - 169 169
Transfer to investment property ~ EEEREE (207,127) - - - (207,127)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% 3,158 - 133 42 3,333
At 31 December 2023 M2023%12A31H 246,425 138,481 2,542 27,303 414,751

Accumulated depreciation RENE

At 1 January 2023 2023F181H 20,786 4,735 1,964 18,223 45,708

Depreciation provided WERE 10,048 2,994 122 3,210 16,374

Transfer to investment property ~ EEFREYE (11,080) - - - (11,080)

Exchange realignment 0 5 R 208 - 334 4 546

At 31 December 2023 72023%F12H31H 19,962 7,729 2,420 21,437 51,548
Net carrying amount REZEE

At 1 January 2023 72023%F1/A1H 429,608 133,746 445 8,869 572,668

At 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H 226,463 130,752 122 5,866 363,203
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y¥ - BERRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
office
Land equipment
and Leasehold and motor
buildings Hotel improvement vehicles Total
HE &R BAE
T RIEF EIE MELE RERR"E ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR%TR AR¥TR AR®TR AR

31 December 2022 2022F12A31H

Cost 5
At 1 January 2022 202261 A1H 4341477 138,481 2,281 22,223 597,162
Additions NE — — — 4,808 4,808
Transfer from investment property & 5% &Y% 13,467 - - - 13,467
Exchange realignment bE 5 A= 2,750 - 128 61 2,939
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 127318 450,394 138,481 2,409 27,092 618,376

Accumulated depreciation RENE

At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A18 5,982 — 1,751 14,801 22,534

Depreciation provided TERE 14,309 4,735 142 3,356 22,541

Exchange realignment b 5 A% 495 - 71 67 633

At 31 December 2022 R2022% 127318 20,786 4,735 1,964 18,223 45,708
Net carrying amount BRERE

At 1 January 2022 202261 /1R 428,195 138,481 530 7,422 574,628

At 31 December 2022 2022612 A31H 429,608 133,746 445 8,869 572,668
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16.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. BREYE

2023 2022

2023%F 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F R ARET T

Carrying amount at 1 January K1 A1B ZEEmE 584,960 531,595
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EE Y R NEE - (13,467)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HEOYE  WENEE 196,047 -
Net (loss)/gain from a fair value adjustment AN TFEZ (BIE)WESFE (7,968) 19,319
Property revaluation reserve VI E G 16,055 -
Exchange realignment i R 21,441 47,513
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31H 2 BREE 810,535 584,960

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
The investment properties with an aggregate fair value of RMB412,447,000
(2022: RMB495,852,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings (note 29).

The fair values of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong,
Singapore and the USA as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 are based on
the valuations carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited
(“APAC”). APAC is the member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
Valuers and an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

The fair value of the investment property situated in Mainland China as at
31 December 2023 is based on the valuation carried out by Zhong Ming
(Beijing) Assets Appraisal International Co., Ltd (“Zhong Ming International”).
Zhong Ming International is the member of the China Appraisal Society and
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and
best use of the investment properties is the current use. The fair values of
the investment properties are derived from the capitalisation of net income
method with due allowance for the reversionary income.

At the end of the reporting period, management of the Group works with
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 19 to the financial
statements.

AREBFRAMNEEHERSE UBRAESNE
BAABZERZERATFERNGE -
YHEEBREDEAR - AFEAEARK
412,447,0007T (20224 : A R # 495,852,000
T ZREYWECIEAUNREAREE 2 EE (K
£¥29) o

IR EE IR KRB 2 R E W ER20224F
N2023F12 ABI B 2 A FETIENRDAREER
BEERAERRR([EXR])FETHERETE
TARBERNEMNB S S8 B EALE W EREE
BZBYABERBRMGERD -

AR B A 2 1 B M) 3P 202312 A31H 2
AFEDIERPHEREEFHGER)BERE
ERE ([HHBEE])FETHEETE » F 8
BhErHREET eS8 B EANEEWER
2 B A B KB EGERD o

M REMERFER  KREVEZFRARE
EREARRRR - REAMERXIFERRAF
HMENMOERY  YAERKRAELEERME -

RNBERREER  AEEERERGEMS
5 ME=ZBRAFEFERIMREHE 24
ERMEBARE - WEEZ R FERERR
- ERHREASAARRESRS -

REMERBLEHERATE=7 - HE—
FHBHBENR B RKM 9 -




Annual Report 2023 “EF T =FFH 141

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16. REWE(E)
Fair value hierarchy AFEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TRIRAEBREYMEZ AT EAERBL -

Group’s investment properties:

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TT
Fair value measurement using significant RABAX T B R A 1152
unobservable inputs (Level 3) AFEFE(E=A)
Recurring fair value measurement for investment AR TFMR 2 REMEZ
properties located in BEENFEENE
- Hong Kong —B5 63,923 63,443
- Singapore — 03 339,096 303,777
- USA —%H 211,066 217,740
— Mainland China — R 196,450 -
810,535 584,960
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN - EF—REF_HEAVEEEEMNRTFE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: B 2EB BN EVEBEEEANEEE

Nil). =R IEN (20224 : ) o
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16. REWHE(E)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of the Group’s significant investment properties

categorised into Level 3:

TXEINAEEDBERE=R 2T EZREME
HEMMERZHERMREZBABIBZME

Range or weighted average

YIRS E)
Properties Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2023 2022
L/ES fh{ER M EXTAHRERARE 20234 20224
Offices located in Hong Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (HK$ per sq. ft.) 46.0 44.9
Kong with a carrying value approach BATMSEHEES(EEAFRET)
of RMB63,923,000 WA EAREE Term yield (per annum) 2.1% 2.0%
(2022: RMB63,443,000) FHIW S R (FF)
N ESREEARE Reversion yield (per annum) 2.3% 2.2%
63,923,0007T (20224 : A BRI R(FE)
R#63,443,0007T) Z #E A=
Commercial and residential Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (HK$ per sq. ft.) 4.5-7.2 41-7.1

units located in Singapore approach FAMBHAS(FFEARET)
with a carrying value of WAEBEARE Term yield (per annum) 2.6%-3.0% 2.6%-3.0%

RMB339,096,000
(2022: RMB303,777,000)
KL IR AR E EA R

FHR=EE(EF)
Reversion yield (per annum)
BHEERE(EF)

2.8%-3.2%

2.8%-3.2%

339,096,000 (20224F : A
R#303,777,0007T) Z &M
MAEEER

Senior housing communities  Income capitalisation Annual market rent (USD per sq. ft.) 22.5-26.6 22.0-24.7

located in the USA approach FEmEAL(BFEFRET)

with a carrying value of W AB AR E Term yield (per annum) 7.5%-8.5%  7.5%-8.5%

RMB184,621,000 (2022: FHN SR (FF)

RMB192,074,000) Reversion yield (per annum) 8.0%-9.0% 8.0%-9.0%
N ERIREE AR EHEEEE(EF)

184,621,0007T (20224 : A
Ri#192,074,0007T) 2 £ &

FERE

Commercial and office Market comparison Price per square metre (RMB) 9,200-9,600 N/A
properties located in the approach BEFARER(ARET) N3 R
Mainland China with a TS LB

carrying value of
RMB196,450,000
(2022: Nil)

R BN AREEA R
196,450,0007T, (20224 : 4%)
PASEYSE YN YES

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and reversion
yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair
value of the investment properties.

MZHSEBAEEMORD) EEHREME
RNFEREEMORD) o FHU SR REFIK
mEREFREEMORD) SEBUTEWMERF
BEAERD ) -

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior
years.

PR S E ST S8 1 AR o
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17. GOODWILL 17. BHE

RMB’000
AR¥TFT

At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022: R2022%F1 H1H K2022412H31H :
Cost AN 424,722
Accumulated impairment Z2ERE (124,365)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 300,357
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated impairment R2023F1 A1 H Z A (B 2EHRE) 300,357
Impairment during the year RERZRE (300,357)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2023:

Cost AR
Accumulated impairment Z2FHRE
Net carrying amount ARTEDFAE

Impairment testing of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a four-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
27.46% (2022: 30.13%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the cash-
generating unit for 31 December 2023. The following describes the key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

Selling price — Management determined the selling price based on the
selling price of the pre-sale units in the same project or the prevailing market
price of the comparable properties with similar size, usage and location.

Costs to completion — Management determined the costs to completion
based on the budgets approved by management, which is estimated
according to the past project construction experience and its knowledge of
expected market prices of land and construction cost.

The value assigned to the key assumptions is consistent with external
information sources.

R2023%F12 31 B 2 A K BREFE -

2023412 A31H :

424,722
(424,722)

EmERERE

R EEEN 2 A Y Bl €58 IR IEE A EE
HET Z:rEFANEeREBAIERSR
EEEMEZRENFHEHEEE - 1/
SR ETERE R Z 8538 K 527.46% (20224
30.13%) °

FTE2023F12A31H 2 R eELBNFEREER
EFERARE -  EEEBEEREBSREBAIERE
S ITRE RS 2 AR R AR T

B R PR AR R BBRTATRIRE - kR
SR BN B2 FERR °

EE-—EHERER HAEEHEULEEL
BERERE BERUBZAILLBRYEZRT

MEEEEE -
TIXRA-EEEREEEEBHECHEEE

SEIRA > BEDREBEBEREERERLE
SRR A TR TE 2 T B (hAE -

B T RS AR 2 SR BE EIMEERIR— B -
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EREE
Contract
benefit
BRI M
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2022 202291 A1 8 2 AN EREFE 157,105
Additions NE 88
Accumulated amortisation RET#EE (44,909)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 and 12022912 31 H &2023F1 A1H Z A
1 January 2023 NMEREFE 112,284
Accumulated amortisation RET#EE (44,916)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 31 H 2B A & R FE 67,368
The amortisation is recorded into the property under development and BT AERPYET EERW SR —HEA
transferred to the profit or loss together with the revenue is recognised. fiE)
19. LEASES 19. #HE
The Group as a lessor AEEBERHBAA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) consisting of offices, AEERBLEMELHDAEMRES - 5
commercial and residential units, senior housing communities located in N - EE R A E AU A 1R & ) 2 (KTEE16) -
Hong Kong, Singapore, USA and Mainland China under operating lease BERA BRARMEESEMN RETERS °
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay HEKRRBEERBERLINEKFIZRS - WRE
the security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according ERFIMACHAZRES - XEBFRER
to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by B8 & WA B A R #32,649,0007T (2022 4F -
the Group during the year was RMB32,649,000 (2022: RMB25,635,000), AR#25,635,0007T) + H SN B R &M
details of which are included in note 6 to the financial statements. 76 ©
At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by 2023 12A31H - HEAAEBEREHEEMAS
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its Z A UE S B E W EBCR AR IR S RRIE I
tenants are as follows: 31N
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Within one year —ER 33,551 24,612
After one year but within two years —F EERERA 26,797 19,815
After two years but within three years MEA EB=FIAR 21,539 17,113
After three years but within four years ZFFBEEFEUA 21,310 17,498
After four years but within five years MEA EBRFAR 19,416 17,891
After five years HBBEAF 6,029 24,987

128,642 121,916
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20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK CiRHERE SREBTESBRE
BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EREEEEEHR
2023 2022
20235 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥BT T
Pledged deposits BEREe
— Current —BNER 130,913 137,515
Restricted bank balances SRR IR TS 4 1,184,149 1,365,905
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESFEBEIEE 528,296 488,199

Pledged deposits represent bank deposits of RMB122,548,000 (2022:
RMB130,921,000) and deposits held with financial institutions of RMB
8,365,000 (2022: RMB6,594,000) pledged to banks and financial
institutions to secure the facilities granted to the Group and the mortgage
loan facilities granted by certain banks to certain property buyers of the
Group’s properties. The pledged deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant borrowings and the expiry of the mortgage
guarantees provided to the property buyers.

Restricted bank balances are required, pursuant to the relevant regulations
in the PRC, that certain amount of pre-sale proceeds of properties
be placed as guarantee deposits in designated bank accounts for the
construction of the relevant properties. The deposits can only be used for
payments for construction costs of the relevant properties with approval.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating or fixed rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB1,820,926,000 (2022:
RMB1,974,886,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ERFAEESEEER FRIT RS REE 2 RTT
7R AR 122,548,0007C (20224 : AR #&E
130,921,00070) R & R BT F T RARE
8,365,0007T (20224 : AR¥6,594,0007T) °
LRESEFAEEZ@ERE TRITRTAS
EMEZETWEERZZBERRE - BER
FIReENEBEEEERMRETHEER
ZIRIBERE ER B AR o

R GIRITAESRBRBETRAERSN - AY
XEEMBSHBAZETEEFARERITAA
ERBEEYMEZERTREZRES ZFIA - &t
fE - BERBSHATARINEBYEZZ
SEPRA o

RITRERE A FRTERNEZZHHEE
R EREUR B, SRTAERE 17 AT HA 30 8 R 3K
R AEAREZRT - HERREEEIEAR
ZARHERE A HERE

RBREHEEER  AEBAARBFEZR
% NIR1TAE SR A A RE1,820,926,0007T (2022
£ AR 1,974,886,0007T) ° AR ¥ T 4E
BEREZBAREMEE - Af - REFBEALZ
CINEZIRIEH ) RCLEE - EEURGESER
) AREREBAEREEITINEZEIEHIR
TARKE S REEMER -
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21.

22.

23.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Completed properties held for sale are all situated in the PRC. The
Group carried out assessment on the net realisable value at the end
of the reporting period and recognised RMB2,141,893,000 (2022:
RMB1,449,493,000) of write-down for completed properties held for sale
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are all situated in the PRC. The Group carried
out assessment on the net realisable value at the end of the reporting period
and recognised RMB1,431,831,000 (2022: RMB1,263,639,000) of write-
down for properties under development for the year ended 31 December
2028.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER ASSETS

21.

22.

23.

FEHEZEZ IR

BEHEZE T IMERIMNAFTE - NEH
RERE BRI AE A Y a] S IR R E# TG 0 =]
£2023F 12 A31HIEFE + BRI FEH
EZEEIYEAR2,141,893,0007T (2022
£ AR#1,449,493,0007T) °

BEPYE

BRPVEEIURTER - AEBERFEH
M4 E A S A BI5 FEETE - 8 E2023
F12A31BLEFE  BRMREEPDE
A R #1,431,831,000 7T (2022 %F : AR ¥
1,263,639,0007T) °

EWERR - HttEW ARt
&E

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

Accounts receivable TEURBR X 20,663 16,546
Less: Impairment B ORE (986) (1,063)
19,677 15,483

Prepaid value-added taxes and other taxes TR IS ET R E AR 1,783,116 1,611,784
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMNFIE 494,144 446,349
Costs of obtaining contracts BBE 2K 136,064 261,855
Other receivables o Ath fE W K8 498,449 747,722
2,911,773 3,067,710

Less: Impairment B ORE (15,853) (11,191)
2,895,920 3,056,519

2,915,597 3,072,002

Accounts receivable represent receivables from sales of properties, project
management services, property management services, dividend receivables
and rental receivables. Receivables arising from sales of properties and
project management fee receivables are due for settlement in accordance
with the terms of the related agreements. The settlement terms of
rental receivables and property management fee receivables are upon
presentation of demand notes.

MR FRIEMRHE  HEBERYE  WEE
BR% - REEWHIBNEERWFIE - KB
WEHEZ EWGRIARIAR B2 & RYGRIAT)
RBEBE R GKREPEE - BRES R
EEMEERE 2 HEGERB L R FBNE

oo
FraEE




23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and the net of loss allowance, is as

Annual Report 2023 —EF - = FFR

R HttEWRER H

RBERR - REZZAHRARBRRER
M8 B EUR KRB AT T

2

follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT
Within 1 year 1FERN 10,211 14,419
1 to 2 years 15224 9,223 =
2 to 3 years PECE:S - -
Over 3 years 3EME 243 1,064
At end of year NER 19,677 15,483

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s financial assets included in accounts receivable using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

BED TN SRS B HE R B EERRETT
A ERHMEEER BEXNERZEA
FROEEEXNETF D #0485l 68 K 8
TE o At HRRIARMELER - BERREE
BEARRIREARASERBESMS - a0k
TR AR A AR TR N & 32 e AT SEE A

T (A RS A R B R A B YR
ReeBMEERBNEERRNER

A2023F12A31H

Gross carrying Expected credit

amount losses

BRE4AE EHEEREE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥TT

Individual evaluation of expected credit losses TEEE B E518 2 @ RIFE - -
Assessment of expected credit losses by ZEERRAE THTEL

credit risk portfolio EEEE 20,663 986

At end of year MNER 20,663 986

As at 31 December 2022

"2022%F12H31H

Gross carrying Expected credit

amount losses

FRE#AE EHEEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Individual evaluation of expected credit losses THEEEEBE 2 @R G 2,121 1,063

Assessment of expected credit losses by credit risk ZEERRAES TEHTEL 14,419 -
portfolio EEEE

At end of year REXR 16,546 1,063
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE2023F 12 A31H L F[Z

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. W - HtEWHRER H#
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) EE(E)
Deposits and other receivables mainly represent deposits with suppliers and e MEMEWRIE T EEHERZS REK
other receivables due from third parties. Where applicable, an impairment FEHHMEWRRIE - IER  BEST IR
analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering the probability SWHREBHABRERELN ZAIREE#ETT - TEH
of default, expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate EEBRAUSB2ENEFNFE L IBLEIE
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss FARAREETHT - BRARSEHAE U
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future = B & A AR S B AR SR AL AR R TEORI (ans@E AR ) ©
economic conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit losses was 2023612 A31H F HEHEEEBEAARK
RMB15,853,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB11,191,000). 15,853,000 7t ( 2022 & : A R # 11,191,000
JT) °
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts receivable FEWBR R R E Mt E W BE R B 2 EEREARE
and other receivables in total are as follows: ZEEIT

2023 2022

20234 20225

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®T

At beginning of year REA 12,254 650

Impairment losses REEE 4,585 11,604

At end of year NER 16,839 12,254

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24, BAVFEFABGZZEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022

2023%F 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR¥TT

Equity securities listed in Singapore FRFT N4 _E T2 RN 75 55 4,568 4,716
REIT securities listed in the USA RER EH 2 BEREETES 292,411 243,009

296,979 247,725
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25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 5. BE{TEER - BWiRe B ESE A

AND ACCRUALS
2023 2022
20235 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET
Accounts and bills payable R REE 294,533 209,544
Accrued construction costs (Note) FERT R AN (M) 6,574,749 6,211,261
Rental deposits received BEWHERS 1,678 10,393
Retention deposits and payable RE S REMKIE 160,595 304,058
Real estate and other taxes payable R EER REAMFIIE 875,073 324,662
Other payables and accruals HEiENRIBEREEA 773,917 307,768
8,680,545 7,367,686
Less: Rental deposits received — non-current B BREERE —IERE (520) (9,440)
8,680,025 7,358,246
Note: Included in accrued construction costs are amounts due to a related Hiat © FEETEREK A AH L A R 458,780,000 7T

company controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang Huigi (“Ms.
Zhang”), of approximately RMB458,780,000 (2022: RMB682,551,000)
for its construction work.

(20224 : AR¥682,551,0007T) A HZEE
TiEMmEN—MEERQ R (HHuangk £ 2 &
ReREH A+ ([3R2c 1 |)EH]) 2 5K08 ©

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the RIBEHR  BREZFZAHNE S EFERRL

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RN SRERE DTN -

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T AR¥T T

Within 1 year 1FR 3,764,942 3,316,514
11to 2 years i|ZER%E 2,393,166 2,833,891
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 548,416 194,644
Over 3 years 3FLAE 162,758 75,756
At end of year NER 6,869,282 6,420,805
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26.

27.

28.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The amounts represented advance payments from customers based on
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. The increase in
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 was due to more property
projects having started pre-sale during the current year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Ms. Huang and together with her spouse, Mr.
Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang, have the controlling interests over
these related companies.

LOANS FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The Group has entered into loan agreements with a related company,
Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zensun Real Estate”), which is
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang, pursuant to which Zensun Real Estate
will provide unsecured loans to the Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Those
amounts were shown under the current liabilities as Zensun Real Estate had
the discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of the
loans approximated their fair values at initial recognition.

26.

27.

28.

BHEE

ZECHERBEYEHEEANHENRERA
REUWEHTE FUIB - R2023F12A31HE4
BEENITHREZYEBEERAFERBE
S -

FE{SRAE A RFRIE
ENBEEQARGBEAERE  2EWIRERE
B o Huangﬁi@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ?ﬁi&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
REEZFEEN R ERER -
RE—BEBEELATZER

AEBEEFERREEREXARAF([E

BE % | - mHuang Xt & & ZEH 2 A R]) 28 RT
B Bt EREEFSIRREERAER
TAREH -

ﬂﬂﬂ}

ZECEAERR  RERAREN
RIEFE XA B ISR 2R KR
FHABIERBAE -

P

M8 -
e

m@a§$%;’ﬂﬁgﬁ2$ﬁ@ 115
AR 2 AT ERE
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. SRITREMEE

2023 2022
2023% 2022F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum per annum
(%)  Maturity RMB’000 (%)  Maturity RMB’000
ERERE%) A ARETT BRENE%) HHA ARETT
Current ]
Bank loans - secured BIER-HER 3.30-9.98 2024 3,136,480 1.76-9.98 2023 2,734,671
20245 20234
Other loans - secured HiER-HAER 2.80-10.50 2024 252,582 2.80-10.50 2023 552,012
20245 2023F
Other loans - unsecured HiER—EEA 2.80-5.50 2024 178,827 2.80-550 2023 37,380
20245 20234
Senior notes - unsecured (a)(c) BEZRE-EERE)(Q) 7.0-1250  On demand 1,928,223 1250 2023 1,369,088
RER 2023F
5,496,112 4,693,151
Non-current FEEPE
Bank loans - secured RITEF-—FEA 3.75-9.98  2025-2030 449,822 1.76-9.98  2024-2030 2,143,760
20255 £2030%F 20245 £20305
Other loans - secured EER—HHA 2.80-5.50  2025-2058 168,495 2.80-5.50 2025 145,301
20255 £2058F 20254
Other loans - unsecured HiER—EHR 2.80-5.50  2025-2058 569,294 2.80-5.50 2025 125,145
2025F £2058F 20254
Senior notes - unsecured @)(o)c)  BEZE—EEA(Q)b)(c) N/A  N/A - 1250 2024 1,092,026
TER THEA 20245
1,187,611 3,506,232
6,683,723 8,199,383
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

29. RITRHEHMEE(E)

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR® T
Analysed into: DA
Bank and other borrowings repayable: RT3 BHEE ZR1T R
Hibfg & :
Within one year —FR 5,496,112 4,693,151
In the second year E_fF 778,819 2,803,531
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEERF(BEERERE) 361,422 702,701
Beyond five years BBEAF 47,370 -
6,683,723 8,199,383

The carrying amounts of bank and other borrowings at the end of the
reporting period were denominated in the following currencies.

TIA T3 E#3IME -

REREEER - RIOTREMBEE ZREE

2023 2022

20234 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR¥T T

SGD e 118,024 63,468

uSsD =T 1,977,377 2,569,380

RMB AR 4,588,322 5,566,535

6,683,723 8,199,383

Notes: Mt -

@) On 3 October 2019, the Company issued senior notes at a principal (@) 72019510 A3 R » AR AIRERE = < 15

amount of US$220 million carrying interest of 12.8% per annum due
on 3 October 2022 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement (the “2019 Original Notes”). Subsequently on
20 December 2019, the Company issued additional senior notes at a
principal amount of US$120 million under the same terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement of the 2019 Original Notes. The additional
senior notes are consolidated with the 2019 Original Notes and form a
single series at an aggregate principal amount of US$340 million carrying
interest of 12.8% per annum due on 3 October 2021.

In September 2021, US$142,420,000 of the 2019 Original Notes,
representing approximately 42.01% of the total aggregate principal
amount of the outstanding 2019 Original Notes, have been validly
tendered for exchange and accepted pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the exchange offer in exchange for the new notes to be
issued, and the remaining outstanding amount of US$196,580,000
were repaid upon maturity. Such amount of US$142,420,000 were in
exchanged for the new notes issued on 13 September 2021. Details of
the Exchange Offer are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8
September 2021.

FRELEH 1T R 2022610 ASH B A&
220,000,000E TF B 12.8EEAEZE([2019
FRIERE]) - H1ER2019F12A208 * &
R AR IR 20194F [R 1A IR 3R B 1k 2 4B R 15
ERE RN 1T A S EE 120,000,000 T
EEE - BIMEAZIRE2019FRIBRES
BAE—EZRF - BR20214E10 53R 2H 2
N4 #2%8340,000,000E( T F B 12.8EEBEE
% -

202149 A8 + 20194 [R 18 1% 142,420,000
ETX(EREE20190F RIBZBASEED
42.01%) B IRIBRZIRE LM G RAIRHB IR
RERBA B EER - URBRHE T RITHOH
= MeR N AR(EE $%196,580,000% TE
R EIEABS (B8 © 3%142,420,0003 7T B B H
2021F9A13HAEITHHERE - KRENWN
BN AR F A B A2021F9A8HMALE -




29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(continued)

On 13 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 13 September 2023. The US$200 million senior notes are listed
and traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Such amount of
US$142,420,000 were in exchanged for the 2019 Original Notes due on
3 October 2022 (as detailed in note a above), and the remaining amount
of US$57,580,000 were intended for project developments and general
corporate purposes. Details of the issuance of the senior notes are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 14 September 2021.

On 12 September 2023, US$103,478,000 of the 2023 Notes,
representing approximately 91.39% of the total aggregate principal
amount of the outstanding 2023 Notes, have been validly tendered for
exchange and accepted pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
exchange offer in exchange for the new notes to be issued, and the
remaining outstanding principal amount of US$9,752,000 were planned
to repay upon maturity.

Senior notes in the principal amount of US$103,478,000 carrying interest
of 7% per annum due on 12 September 2025 (i.e. the “2025 Notes”)
were issued. As a result, the 2023 Notes validly tendered for exchange
and accepted pursuant to the Exchange Offer have been cancelled.
Details of the issuance of the senior notes are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 September 2023.

On 24 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$160 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 23 April 2024 (i.e. the “2024 Notes”). The US$160 million senior
notes are listed and traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
Details of the issuance of the senior notes are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 September 2021.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not make payments on certain
principal and interest payable of the outstanding 2023 Notes, which had
been delisted upon maturity on 13 September 2023, and also the interest
payable of the 2024 Notes, which was subsequently delisted upon
maturity on 23 April 2024, triggering an event of default or cross default
of various borrowings pursuant to the terms and conditions of respective
agreements. As a result, the outstanding aggregate principal from the
2023 Notes, the 2024 Notes and the 2025 Notes were all repayable on
demand.

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group’s pledged deposits, investment properties, completed properties
held for sale and properties under development with the total carrying
amount of RMB10,386,509,000 (2022: RMB15,369,276,000). In addition,
shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to obtain certain
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as at 31 December 2023
and 2022. Details of pledged assets are disclosed in note 39 to the financial
statements.

In additions, as at 31 December 2023, the Group’s senior notes and bank
and other borrowings were guaranteed by related companies. Details of the
guarantees are disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.
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29. RITRHEHMEE(E)

Hiet - (&)

(@)

(&)

M202149A13H + AR FIFEITN2023F9 A
13 H 5| #i 2 7~ £ 8200,000,000% JLF £.12.5
[EELEEH - 200,000,000 T ELEZHER
BEBBRX LT RER ° 142,420,000 TE
RHA2022410 A3 B B # 2 20195 R E
B (A X FEaFrRr ) - 4 T57,580,000%
TERAFEBEZERAR —BEERR - GREE
EEERBEITHHBHN AR T B HIA202149
B14BMAE -

MR2023F9H12H 20234 2= 15103,478,000
EL(EREB20B8FZEACHRED
91.39%) B IRBE M E L MG R ARG B B IR
TAER N B FESE M - LA IS TR ITH T E
& M T REZEANSE9,752,000% o+t £l
B ERS (8 -

AN & %E103,478,000E 7T * FFR7E « R
202599 A 12 A B HA A8 S =48 (BI[ 2025 4F
ZRDBERET Bl - BREIBRENER
RERBWEEMAI2023F ZIEC LTS ©
FHEAZERFTHNEBEANARRIBYA
2023F9 A 13HM A ©

R2021F9 A 248 + AR A FITH 2024 F
4 B 23 H ¥/ 83 2 7K & %8 160,000,000 3 T F
BE125EBERE(BI[2024F &) - Z
160,000,000 7T 8 5t R BN BB B FT LT
REBE ARELEBRBTNFEIENAAF
HEA20216F9 A24HMAE -

EHE 202312 A31 8 » ANEEIW &L [ RE
#2023F Z= 1 (B 11202349 A 13 H 2| Hifs %
) K ETAE REMFIE  LAKR2024F Ri&
(E 1814202444 A 23 B 5| HARS B k2 ) &9 & - 7
B BB EERRERARIEHFE THELD
HRNEXEIE o Fifl - 2023F 1K - 2024
FERRER2025FZEMAEERNS BRI A
RERER -

AEERETRITMEMEBRAANEEREER
B AR #10,386,509,0007C (20224 : AR
15,369,276,0007T) 2 B IfizE « HEWE
BEHEZE T IWERERPYEELRR -

BEAh - 720234 K 2022412 H31 B

P ETH

BRARZROEMEER - UBUSAE B &R
ZETROTREMEER  FRCEREEZ
B 75 R P GO I FE

UbSh - 202312831 H - RAEE 2 BARIE
ARRIT R AMEEmBEERRER - BRE
R FH BRI TSR L4240, -
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

30. DEFERRED TAX 30. EERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary TR ERAEL VRERIBEEERB B #EW
differences are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets EEBBREE
Write-down
Accrued of properties
Provision expenses for under
Tax loss for LAT tax purpose development Total
i ER Rt BiE HUR B R
BEEE b 53 S st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMT T ARMT T AR¥ETT ARMT T
At 1 January 2022 M2022F181H 159,300 51,825 171,780 60,885 443,790
Credited to profit or loss during FRRBEERETA
the year (note 12) (PifzE12) 22,164 594 15,934 72,833 111,525
At 31 December 2022 and M2022F12A318 &
1 January 2023 2023%F1A1H 181,464 52,419 187,714 133,718 5551615
Credited/(charged) to profit or FERPNBRRFAA
loss during the year (note 12) ($0B%) (PiFEE12) (149,156) (50,727) (133,285) 263,331 (69,837)
At 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 32,308 1,692 54,429 397,049 485,478

During the year ended 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets were
recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
relevant future taxable profits will be available against for utilisation. These
unused tax losses were in respect of certain PRC subsidiaries carried
forward at the end of 2023 and the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that these certain PRC subsidiaries will generate sufficient future
taxable profits.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had total unrecognised unused tax losses
of RMBS3,211,894,000 (2022: RMB1,013,474,000) and unrecognised
temporary differences of RMB3,120,458,000 (2022: RMB2,149,714,000)
which were subject to agreement with the respective tax authorities,
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these unused tax losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries and the Company that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Except for tax losses incurred in the
PRC amounting to RMB1,045,236,000 (2022: RMB605,897,000) will expire
within five years since the date of carryforward, these unrecognised unused
tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely, subject to fulfilment of certain
conditions or rules.

HZE2023F12A31HILFE « WAt A B EE
RO FE R K AT 3K 8H - Rl et REAFIE
EIERREEHREEE - 2SABDAREEE
T RETHREKE QR R2023F KA KT
RARBEERE  ZEETHEWB AR
EERMZ RIRERT =T o

MR2023%F 12 A381H * AEBEAERASA
A B 18 4 EE A A R #3,211,894,000 7t (2022
£ AR®1,013,474,0007C ) K& & FE R E
=% A R 3,120,458,000 7T (2022 4 : A
R#2,149,714,0007t ) * B2 5 B F 5 ##E ]
N2 ATRERMARRFE - ARFHIE
ERDHEEEE —REEZHBATRAA
RIEE A RN KA RE A FERR 0% F o] A A 4K 88
RBEE MUTERZEASDARBEER
RELEHBEE - GRFPREELEZREERE
A R #1,045,236,000 7T ( 2022 F : A R #
605,897,0007T ) #& B 4 % B B 7 F K & W
N RERERAD B RIBEIE A ER I
g AT EE TR RA o




30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
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30. JEFERIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities EEBEERE
Revaluation  Withholding
of properties tax on
acquired distributable
Accelerated  Revaluation under profits of the
tax of investment business Group’s PRC
depreciation properties combination subsidiaries Total
G

EBEH TEMELR
ETRKREZ AoIRKEZ

MERERE REVESM MEER B gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ET T AR¥ETR AR¥ETR ARMET T
At 1 January 2022 #2022 1 A1A (370,189) (1,828) (64) (60,247) (432,328)
Credited to profit or loss during FARBRERETA
the year (note 12) (PizE12) 61,357 - - - 61,357
Exchange realignment [E 5 - (139) ©) - (148)
At 31 December 2022 and 202212318 &
1 January 2023 202341818 (308,832) (1,967) (73) (60,247) (371,119)
Credited to profit or loss during FARBRRTA
the year (note 12) (MtE12) 88,540 - - - 88,540
Charged to other comprehensive 4 AR H it 2 E U &
income during the year Bk = (3,542) - - (3,542)
Exchange realignment b 5 B - (199) - - (199)
At 31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H (220,292) (5,708) (73) (60,247) (286,320)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes at applicable rate of 10% on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB902,453,000 (2022: RMB902,453,000). In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable to distribute these earnings in the foreseeable future.

RIEFREMEAMESEE - RABE ALK 2§
IMEBESRIRE TEIMEEER « BRI
BB 10% 2 FEIH o ZREMN2008F1 A1 H#E
AR % EAR2007912 A31 B 2B &R 10
FR B A A B AN B 5 A BT AE R AR R AT A F R
WE - AEARREKENTE - At - A5H
Ak Bt S 2 M B A B 5200841 A 1
BZREEMEFNRSOREZBEBHEE10%
BmTEIR

7202812 A31H » BRI B ERIELETRIER
EORERNEMHBEARNEEHABERER
4aEE ) N R#902,453,0007T (20224 © AR
902,453,0007T) ° EERAE * KA LARKATEE

N BN IRZERRM °
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31.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, Hong
Kong employees that have been employed continuously for at least five
years are entitled to LSP under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by
employers or upon retirement).

The amount of LSP payable is determined with reference to the employee’s
last monthly salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the years of service,
reduced by the amount of any accrued benefits derived from the Group’s
contributions to MPF scheme, with an overall cap of HK$390,000 per
employee. Currently, the Group does not have any separate funding
arrangement in place to meet its LSP obligations.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment Ordinance,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The Amendment Ordinance
will take effect on the Transition Date. Separately, the Government has
indicated that it would launch a subsidy scheme to assist employers after
the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting mechanism takes
effect, an employer can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions
made before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in respect
of an employee’s service from the Transition Date. However, where an
employee’s employment commenced before the Transition Date, the
employer can continue to use the above accrued benefits to reduce the
LSP in respect of the employee’s service up to that date. In addition, the
LSP in respect of the service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition
Date and the years of service up to that date.

The benefit payment under LSP remains capped at HK$390,000 per
employee. If an employee’s total benefit payment exceeds HK$390,000, the
amount in excess of the cap is deducted from the portion accrued from the
Transition Date.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the LSP obligation due to
the Amendment Ordinance.

31.

R BRI & AR

REBEBBERBIROIESTE  HEXEZLEF
MABREREEERE TER T (FIIEERESR
BN EZXRHARBEE -

BNRERBHNEENLLERERKE —(E
A TE (LR A22,50087T) RARSFR B
AEBRBRED T EELMEREL 2 B5HE
B SESER ERR390,0008TT ° B
Al ARBEYEEMERENES L RETE
RHERGSET ©

M20225%6 A © BUFTIBERT &M - HEERR A
iR e R TRz RAH K R B R
Ba 2 RHE - ERTIRGIBREE B BAER - 1t
S BT B R R S A BE B 1R HE ) — TR Bh AT
2 LEBEE -

Hep —BEURSREGIER  EXHBER
HER LS (e P AL SR B M SR TR 2 R (RN iB
BHEZA - AR ZRIEL ZHF) AEL
Z AR REH#E R A B (R B IR TS 2 R B AR
T o A - WEERBEBHRIEMSGEXE -
Al R EEER Ll 2R DB EBE
BRIt E S R 2 REARBE : B Nid
B B HAT SRS 2 R AR 2 542 (R B iR
BB AT 2 A REBEBE A 82 RIS FHIE
=

EHRESBETITRZINREBRMNDASTRESE
390,000/ 7t ° W3 {E B M & T AR KEHE B
390,0007T + AlRR M _ERSEE S BEE B HHERT
2o F0R

AEBER EFHER] G E EARB S EBL

=
-
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A&
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR® T
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE :
1,918,386,669 (2022: 1,913,386,669) 1,913,386,669% (20224 :
ordinary shares 1,913,386,669/% ) & 1@ i 5,326,923 5,326,923

33.

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

ARARRALBEEEERTIAT

Number of

ordinary
shares in issue Share capital

28T
ZEREE [N
RMB’000
AR®T

At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 20221 18 » 2022F12 8318

1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 20231 A1 8 K2023F12 A31H 1,913,386,669 5,326,923

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
entities are required to appropriate 10% of their net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
entities, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of group
entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.25.

33. f##E

AEBEZRESBERIENREZE2023F12A31H
IEEEZEH 2T RGRAESEHERN -

(a)

(b)

REDEERE
REBEFBERABERNPBERZIONER
AMARERMAA  ZSERARNR
aHFERR Z10%RBUEE B R E © Ut
TREPREAEREE  EERER
BEFEEMEARS0% AL - ZHEEF
BOESR R ERAMERARMEE TR
B Z MR - X TE B i R I SH
BB AR INRA - BEREFER
BAGLNAEEEMERZ225% o
EE TS A ERER B AN E A 3
& MR ERREBRENIK -

SNE 1
SMNEFRERIFREREERBMERERM
EENMAEIINEZR - ARREBRIEH
FE2 25FTE B AT R R IR
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. EXERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In
view of the Group’s expansion strategy, the Group has sourced funding
from banks, financial institutions, bonds, senior notes and its related
companies in which Ms. Huang has beneficial interests and continued
to look for other external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues, raising of new borrowings or redemption of debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related companies, and loans
from a related company, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances and pledged deposits. The gearing ratio as at the end of the
reporting period was as follows:

AEBEREARATAERAEEERENSE
e ARNEBRCEBEESE TEHARRS
KA@M - ERAEE 2 ERRE - AEE
BIRTT - EEE  E5 - ELEFE KHuang
RIHEREGER  HBERREEER S IRN
BESSKEMIIPRERE - AEEBERE
EBRFFERITIE o

ARREFTEFHEEHNEANRE - BEAZ
HEN  ARAEERRE KA K B #H AR
AHERE - REARAREZTER  AKEGEER
SANBRE - BITHRD  BRFEEREOE
T FEHREEERERE -

AEEEARBERAREE  IBRRTR
HEE  ENEEARZIRARKE —HHE
REZEF  BRLEBRLEEER - ZRH
RITEHRREER RS RBEPRZEER
AL

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AR®TT

Amounts due to related companies FETRE:E A FIFIA 1,218,038 1,038,106
Loans from a related company KE—HBEERRZER 7,273,704 7,243,579
Bank and other borrowings (current and non-current)  $R1T R EfhE & (RE RIERE)) 6,683,723 8,199,383
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W ReRESEEER (528,296) (488,199)
Restricted bank balances ZIRBIRITAE R (1,184,149) (1,365,905)
Pledged deposits (current and non-current) MR (RERIERE) (130,913) (137,515)

Net debt BEFE 13,332,107 14,489,449
Total assets REE 46,399,320 61,543,899
Gearing ratio BEAGBHR 29% 24%
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. BEHE S 2EMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as NIERR  SESMTAZEREENT -

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023 2023
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
orloss amortised cost
BRATE b’ E
FFABEZ RAFEZ
SREE SEMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARBTT
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZSREE 296,979 -
Accounts receivable JE IR BR 3R - 19,677
Financial assets included in other receivables and STAEMERZENREMEEZ
other assets ERMEE - 482,596
Pledged deposits BRI - 130,913
Restricted bank balances IR HI IR TAS 24 - 1,184,149
Cash and cash equivalents Re KBRS EAEER - 528,296
296,979 2,345,631
Financial liabilities TEEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
RAGTEZ
SEas
RMB’000
ARBT T
Accounts and bills payables FERTBR R K FE S R iR 294,533
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FFAEMERFIE  ZE Rk
deposits and accruals EEirBRzoRAE 7,510,939
Amounts due to related companies FEfEAE R RIFRIE 1,218,038
Loans from a related company RE—EEEARZER 7,273,704
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 6,683,723
22,980,937
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022
Financial assets

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

35. RERNE sz I AE(E)

20225
PHEE

Financial assets

RIERR  SREMTAZRERENT

at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
orloss amortised cost
BRAYE R
sFABEZ RAFTEZ
SREE SEMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR® T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZ SREE 247,725 -
Accounts receivable JE IR BR SR - 15,483
Financial assets included in other receivables and ST AE A EWCRIE R Bt & 2
other assets SREE - 736,531
Pledged deposits [EEwiib e = 137,515
Restricted bank balances Z R G RIT AR - 1,365,905
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EAEEE = 488,199
247,725 2,743,633
Financial liabilities THAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
oS E
RAFHEZ
SEas
RMB’000
AR®ETR
Accounts and bills payables ERERERREMNEE 209,544
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAEAMERNRIE REREHERZ
deposits and accruals SRBE 6,833,480
Amounts due to related companies e RAE R RIFUIE 1,038,106
Loans from a related company RE—HBEERARZER 7,243,579
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 8,199,383
23,524,092
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. ERIREZAFERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RIERR  SREMTAZRERENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AYE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARETR
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TREE 296,979 247,725 296,979 247,725
Financial liabilities ol A=K
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 6,683,723 8,199,383 6,619,875 8,139,778

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, accounts
receivable, financial assets included in other receivables and other assets,
accounts payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related companies and loans from a related
company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices.

The fair values of bank and other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2023 were assessed to
be insignificant.

EREEEMERERNEEFERE - XBRHIR
1ThEER - CHEMZES - BRI ST AEMLE
WHRIBAREMEEZ SREE  BNKRX - &
AEMENRBEREAERAZERAE - BN
MEBERRFIERKE —BEEARZERAF
BEERAREEABIEE  HHRZETARH
HE&EATE -

AEBMPBEEIENT B  AERES
BMTARAFEFECHENMEF MBEEER
ERMEFEMEERE - NSRS AH - BB
DT e R T AN BEZ B I T HETER
ZEZRGANE - HEHEFENBEEHRAE

TREERABNAFENEERAHERSE
FEREXSFHBTAZ R  BASERHE
ZEeBMEERBBRI

B LHRAKRE 2 A FERTISRETE -

BITRHMEEZ A FETBBGEIAKRIR
SREBRAKITARABEUGENK  FERR R
BT RREz TR ZFRETIEFE - B
2023%F12A31H ' AEBEBEB@RITREMEER
N RBLYEBERNAFEESBHTEE -
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2023

(\%ESQIEZ’D\SFE&’D\$EJ§?&
IIE

DNFEER
TRITAEESRTAZATFEAERER

BAFPHEHIBZEE -
R2023F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

FERUTHESNEZAFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT S EAUBR ERATABE
ZHE WABE BWAHE
(B—-%) (=8 (E=8) @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTR AR¥TR ARMBF T ARMBF T
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss SRVEE 296,979 - - 296,979
As at 31 December 2022 Rooo2%E12H31H
Fair value measurement using
FERAUTHESEZAFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERW S ERTHE BEXTAHR
ZHE BWAHE WABE
(%) (B=#) (B=8&) @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET AR®BT R AR®BT R
Financial assets at fair value BRTEFABRZ
through profit or loss CREE 247,725 - - 247,725

The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

R2023F12 318 » AEBWET([IZAFE
FrEZeRAE(2022F « &) -

FR - cHMEENSRAGE —AEF K
M AT ERTE 2 S - Jh s S ok
BE=# (20224 : ) o
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. = EEI B2 RAFERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEER(E)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: WENFEZERE
As at 31 December 2023 Ro023F 12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERANTEES B AYE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERTIE BEAUTRE BEATAHE
ZH{E BWAHE WABE
(B-#) (=% (B5=4) met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR AR®TR

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 6,619,875 - 6,619,875

As at 31 December 2022 Ro022F 1231 H

Fair value measurement using

ERARTEEF B2 AFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERTIE BEATERE BEAFAHE
ZHE BWAYE PN ¢:4
(5—-#) (=) (EF=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®TT AR®TR AR®TR

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 8,139,778 - 8,139,778
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BXEREEEERBK

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, accounts receivable, other
receivables, accounts payable, other payables and accruals and amounts
due to related companies, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as pledged deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank and other
borrowings and loans from a related company. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rate set out in note 29. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s loss/profit before tax.

AEENIZERTATZERERSRASSE
BB - ZEHIRITER - BURIRR - EME
WHIR -« EAERR - EiENFREREER
LRENBEARNE TR TARELE
MEREL AKEFEFEMERMEERR
& MEERRE  RATEAABRRZER
BE ROLEBEERRE —HBEIRZ
EX - ZEeRTANIZENERRAEE
ZEBERE -

AEETMTREENTERAR AN XER
BRABREAR  SMNERR - FERBRRERREHE
EEE o — RN F - AR5 b E R R
ReF G - AEBAFALRBETARRZH00T
Ee@MTA BEEgRJYREZTRARER
KSR - Eaan T e

F=E

7R 5= [58 T g 1 70 355 1) 3 2 3 fm o = 2 B Y 29
PEAKEZSRTREMGEERRH - AEH
WEERATESR T EEPRNXRER - REEH
ERAESREEEEEREFSKA

TRIREMRE R ZREREFTENBER
T MENSEARESFRED MY AEER
BRBAIEIE a2

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in loss
2023 in basis points before tax
BB AT
HEEH EiEsgm
20234 (&) (@2
RMB’000
AR®TT

Loans and borrowings denominated in LTRIEETEZERRKEE
USD e 100 (2,882)
USD e (100) 2,882
SGD AT 100 (114)
SGD T (100) 114




37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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37. MEBERRBREEERRBKRE)

Interest rate risk (continued) FlZR (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in loss
2022 in basis points before tax
BRBLAT
BEEEH g =)V
2022%F (TF2) Om2)
RMB’000
ARBT

Loans and borrowings denominated in NI EEE 2 BRREE

usD =Y 100 (1,083)
USD ey (100) 1,083
SGD IS 100 (635)
SGD TN 7T (100) 635

Equity price risk BRA(E 1% E B

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The management manages this exposure by regular review of price
fluctuation.

Price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
at the end of the reporting period.

AR A (B AR [ A B AN 48 20K F K (B 51| 78 5 B (B
BEEBBRABTS N TFETRZEAR - AEME
EXWOBRRATEAABRRZEMEEZ
EHREBRAERRR - B2 EEEREHEH
BFRIRIEE IR LR o

ERSRE
T HREDST AR EBRIZ R FERFABRE
ZEREEEBRAAZABRERE

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in

(decrease) loss/profit

in market price before tax

KRB AIEE

mELH A,

(TB&) OR2)

% RMB’000

% AR¥T T

31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H 10 29,698
(10) (29,698)

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 10 24,773

{10) (24,773)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M EREE R REREK(E)

SN LB
AEBEEEHRZERRR - ZFRBRVER
REBRIABMMGEEH AN EEETR
SMESE

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from transactions by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, USD and SGD
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and

TRIIRAEAA H A0 B E E R4 T MR
T BRI ETRFMETEENA A
Bl 150 B9 4 2 S5 [ 19 65 5K 0 B A L 2 6
RE AT (MR EEAER A 2 AT EREH

liabilities). ) -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) loss/profit
in market price before tax
BB AEE
mELH A,
(TF%) Omi2)
% RMB’000
% ARET T
2023 20234
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD i T AT HHE 1 (23,164)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD fin 7 70 2Tz E (1) 23,164
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fis 37 hN3E T K R TTAHE 1 (299)
If the SGD weakens against the USD RTINS T R R Tz E (1) 299
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD ikl 785 70 5 #T AN T HHE 1 85
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD sl 785 70 5 FT AN TR (B (1) (85)
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB BT i AREFAE 1 1
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB i TT A RERE (1) (1)
2022 20224
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD i 70 W R T HHE 1 (22,379)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT A ETEE 1) 22,379
If the SGD strengthens against the USD THFT AN T R =TT HHE 1 (651)
If the SGD weakens against the USD fisi % A3 T E TR E (1) 551
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD s 765 7T 5 F AN TT FHE 1 48
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD 178 7T AT IR TRz B M (48)
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB i 7T A REHE 1 19
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT ARERE (1) (19)




37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without undue
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

Annual Report 2023 —EF - = FFR

37. MEBERRBREEERRBKRE)

FERR
AEBEEEERUREEBREZE=TETR
Z o WBAKRENEE - A RIREEHRIE
TRHGNEPHARIEERERFT ° 1IN
AEESREEEREFTIRARBR - MAE
B2 ERRERINEX

REBARR FRER
TRINTERAEEEERRNEEERRR

REERRKD - EEENBEARER (HEE
EMBRBZHARBHAFE) RRN12A
BTHZFRIERDH -

25 eRATREEMAREE

As at 31 December 2023 Ro023F 1231 H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
HHEERSE 2HEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
R0 EoRER EIEER [GE (P Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Accounts receivable* R U R 50
— Normal** — g 20,663 - - - 20,663
Financial assets included in other &t A E At & U 5078 &2
receivables and other assets HthWBEZSREE
— Normal** —Eg™ 497,799 - - - 497,799
— Doubtful** — TR - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits R
— Not yet past due — K7 Hf 130,913 - - - 130,913
Restricted bank balances RGBT
— Not yet past due — R 1,184,149 - - - 1,184,149
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER
- Not yet past due — K@ 528,296 - - - 528,296
2,361,820 - 650 - 2,362,470
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BXEREEBERBEE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued) EERE(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEEERERFAER (&)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12431 H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
BHEEESE 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RER E2ME R EIMR R fEt s st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TR AR®TR AR®T AR®TR

Accounts receivable* e AR TR - - - 5,960 5,960
Accounts receivable e BR K

- Normal* —E&E~ 10,586 - - - 10,586
Financial assets included in other 5+ A E fth U 7/TE I

receivables and other assets HEEZSRMEE

— Normal** —Eg 747,072 - - - 747,072

— Doubtful™ —frRE = = 650 = 650
Pledged deposits BERRe

— Not yet past due — R 137,515 - - - 137,515
Restricted bank balances RGBT

— Not yet past due — R 1,372,596 - - - 1,372,596
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER

— Not yet past due — K 493,365 = = = 493,365

2,761,134 650 5,960 2,767,744

* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified * TS (B FE R B RS R R M s 23 B s U B AL
approach for impairment as detailed in note 23 to the financial FERRYERN S @ ARBUEEREAE
statements, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. FiZERE -

- The credit quality of the financial assets included in accounts receivable, o Bt ABWER - Bl RE R EMmEE 2
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when SREEAAY  BVEEHNBETRESREED
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the FERR B VAR ERARBEZIEINE - ©E
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial ENCEEEREAIER] -

recognition.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BXEREEBERBEE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk REESER
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of NEBZEEASZBINBASETEEMESE - 78
funding and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings, lease EREUARKE —RBEATZER @5
liabilities and loans from a related company. Cash flows are being closely SHEHBELMEEEZ TE  AEERFEZY
monitored on an ongoing basis. ERBPENE °
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the RIBEHR  AEESHEERBEA ORI
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as NHERE DT -
follows:
As at 31 December 2023 Ro023F 1231 H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EER%
—FR —ZEWF =EHE BBRE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR®ETR ARETR

Accounts and bills payable ENERREMNZE 294,533 - - - 294,533

Financial liabilities included in other st AEH {2 Uiz e &
deposits received and accruals BirBERZeREE 7,510,939 - - - 7,510,939
Amounts due to related companies  JE{<E A &) FIE 1,218,038 - - - 1,218,038

Loans from a related company RE—EEERRZ
- Non-interest-bearing BE—%8 7,273,704 - - - 7,273,704
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 5,504,598 778,855 361,421 47,371 6,692,245
21,801,812 778,855 361,421 47,371 22,989,459

Financial guarantee contracts (Note) B &R A 4 (FfiE) 19,614,491 - - - 19,614,491
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. MEBERRBREEERRBKRE)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER(E)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12/31H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EER
—FR —EWF =ZRF BBREE @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®T R AR®BT R AR®T R AR®BT R
Accounts and bills payable EMBR R ENEE 209,544 - - - 209,544
Financial liabilities included in other & AE B Wiz & K
deposits received and accruals BirBERccREE 6,825,988 - - - 6,825,988
Amounts due to related companies  FEff BiE A AIZIE 1,038,106 - = = 1,038,106
Loans from a related company KE—HBEEARZ
— Non-interest-bearing BER—RE 7,243,579 = - - 7,243,579
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 5,197,840 3,072,140 949,849 - 9,219,829
20,515,057 3,072,140 949,849 - 24,537,046
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) — BAFIER A 41 (Fi7) 19,274,110 - - - 19,274,110
Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the it - EAMBRERENRERBEREFH RIUER

maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on the expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the guaranteed financial receivables held by the
counterparty suffer credit losses.

AR - AEERER PR LRGN 2 EHER
RELLERTR ENBEHREEAZE
) AREERRAR BRI FR
ZRIREMERK o AT - AR FHF SR
BEREEZAIREEMEE - L REERART
HFL R ERVBRKSESERZEES
BIME °
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. #ZAaBHE&RERMEE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (a) BETH2EEEFH
Amounts
due to Loan from Bank and
related a related Accrued other
companies company interest* borrowings Total
PEt RE—MH
BEAT BEARZ RITR
g BX Gy HiE& st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR%T AR¥TR AR%R AR%T
At 1 January 2023 72023F1A1H 1,038,106 7,243,579 87,161 8,199,383 16,568,229
Changes from financing MEREREES)
cash flows (Note i) (P =ED 179,932 30,125 (673,013)  (1,527,177)  (1,990,133)

Interest expenses FERX - - 727,720 - 727,720

Foreign exchange translation HNEHRE - - - 11,517 11,517

At 31 December 2023 7202312 H831H 1,218,038 7,273,704 141,868 6,683,723 15,317,333

Amounts
dueto Loans from Bank and
related a related Accrued other
companies company interest* borrowings Total
PEfF RE—ME
BEAR BEARZ RITR
I B RE 2 HthfE & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR%T AR¥T AR%T AR%T
At 1 January 2022 120221 81H 1,976,226 8,204,904 116,863 11,795,330 22,098,323
Changes from financing MEBRERER
cash flows (Note i) (B =D (938,120) (961,325) (749,418) (4,109,579) (6,758,442)

Interest expenses B - - 719,716 - 719,716

Foreign exchange translation HNEHRE - - - 198,126 198,126

Non-cash transitions (Note ii) R BB (M) - - - 315,506 315,506

At 31 December 2022 12022912 831H 1,038,106 7,243,579 87,161 8,199,383 16,568,229

Notes: et -

0) The financing cash flows are made up of the net amounts of new (i) MERERERCEHEMNERAZ
bank and other borrowings raised, repayment of bank and other MERTREMBEE HERTRHE
borrowings, interest paid, advance from/repayment to related HEE EAME  BEARRR
companies, loans received from/repaid to a related company and BBl EE-—HBREARRSE
third parties in the consolidated statement of cash flows. =HERZFE -

(ii) During the year, certain newly raised bank and other borrowings (if) RER - ETHERTREMBESS
were directly paid to the suppliers by the lender of the BEZERAEEINMNTHER - L
borrowings, so that to settle the construction payables due to HEEMNEER TREMNKE &
the suppliers, leading to the non-cash transitions is Nil (2022: BOFR@EB AT (2022F : AR
RMB315,506,000). 315,506,0007T ) °

* Included in accounts payable, deposits received and accruals. * STARMERR - BliRE RIETEA ©
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. RSB RERMT(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEERSHRHHAZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash ReneRMAMERSRHAENT -
flows is as follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARET T
Within operating activities KRB 19 368
39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 39. EEER
The following assets are pledged to certain of the Group’s bank and other RIMEER - U NEECHEBTETAEEE
borrowings granted to the Group and mortgage loan facilities granted to RZAEBETNEMEERAEBRYEZS
certain property buyers of the Group’s properties at the end of the reporting TUXERERZERE 2 G :
period:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR
Property under development BERERAP Y 6,063,554 14,600,959
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZETTIWE 3,779,595 134,950
Investment properties wEYE 412,447 495,852
Pledged deposits BEEFiRE 130,913 137,515
10,386,509 15,369,276

In addition, shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to
obtain certain banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

AN+ R20234F K 2
ETHBRR &5
IRITRVE 23K -

022412 A31H - 2K
CMERAREEERET




40.

41.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

40.
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iR

R ERREER - AEBZ EAAENT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR

Contracted for, but not provided, in respect of BN BIHE R4V B REHE
Property development expenditures YEEREAT 6,799,747 10,041,812
6,799,747 10,041,812

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 20283, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB19,614,491,000 (2022:
RMB19,274,110,000) in respect of mortgage loan facilities provided by
certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
property buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers,
the Group would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with accrued interest thereon and any penalties owed
by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to
take over the legal title to and possession of the related properties. These
guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the
mortgage loan by the buyer of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the
property ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion
of the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil) as the default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the outstanding
principal together with the accrued interest and penalties.

41.

HREE

MR2023%F 1283818 - AEEREBEAEEY
E2WEBRIIUZEBERMASE TR
REZEBERBMEZEREAIABED
A R #19,614,491,000 7T (2022 = A R #&
19,274,110,0007T) ° RIZFERIER - Wz EW
¥ERERIZBHRIE  AEEEAEEELE
BERRNABRITHREERRBASERRFF S
RAEMEIR - AEBE K EEEEHBYENE
EXERREBE ZSERBRUTREES
ERRERR  (WEBERERIRBER K3t
BYMEZEHYEMERET ZRIZBHEUEE
e ARAIEERA  ARENERRERIKEER W
MRHEBEEL - BEEYE 2 o] 2 5% E 0%
EXREEASERZNMNERE S R ERL
ERELHNEE2023F12 A31 H IFFE (2022
F ) ZIRA ISR RS o
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BAEATRS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial (a) BREVEREREMBIFRZR S
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related G REBPRRE A EBEA LT
parties during the reporting period: T3R5 -

Related companies (Note (i) Transactions 2023 2022
BAE A A (ML () RG 2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Relevant members of KEREBRA  Project management HAEERGEE
Ever Diamond Global Al([xki&l)z service fee income A
Company Limited BHEKERT
(“Ever Diamond”, and ([ KEE
collectively, the “Ever E])
Diamond Group”) 94 =
Relevant members of TEERMER  Construction costs BERA
Henan Zensun Corporate EEREER (capitalised in properties (REREP
Development Company 7] ([ IR under development) MEENL)
Limited (Zensun 1) ARk (Note (i) (Wt (i)
Development”) together BAEERE
with its subsidiaries KB AR (5
(collectively, the “Zensun [FBERESE
Development Group”) D 1,758,149 1,601,402
Relevant members of FEYE R (a) Property engineering () EBIRZHK
Xingye Wulian Service SEFR AR costs (capitalised A(RERS
Company Limited ([EEyE ) in properties under MEEARL)
(“Xingye Wulian”) ZEBKER development) (Note (i) (B1:)
together with its subsidiaries )& [F E KB 26,260 24,573
(collectively, the “Xingye AE (%M E (o) Property management  (b) ¥EEEK
Waulian Group”) EYEEE]) and value-added REREE
services fee (Note (i) (1) 17,346 21,311
Notes: Htet -
0] Ever Diamond Group are entities controlled by the Ms. Huang. (i) KEEB A HHuangZ TEF 2B

Zensun Development Group and Xingye Wulian Group are entities
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang.

(i) These transactions were based on terms mutually agreed by
both parties. These transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s senior notes and bank and
other borrowings amounting to approximately RMB4,812,948,000
(2022: approximately RMB4,284,452,000) were guaranteed by
related companies which are controlled by Ms. Huang, and her
daughter, Ms. Zhang. No asset of the Group was pledged to these
related companies in respect of these guarantees.

The Group is licensed by Zensun Real Estate to use the trademark
of “Zensun” and “IEfE” on a royalty-free basis until July 2025.

B ImEREEREEYHBMERS
H Huang & = 2 2 5 5k 2 &= S 4 12
ZER -

(ii) ZER 5 THENETT KR E 2 15
EE - WHEKETRAFEI4ABET
ERZFEMERS °

MR2023%12 A31H » "EBZE %
ZEARBTREMEEHNARE
4,812,948,000 JT (20224 : Y AR
4,284,452,00070) ZRIT R EMEED
FHuangzZ = & H % 7 5k 2 - 1% il 2 B
HERAER - BERZFERAZSH
ERRREAEREE -

AEBEERNEETTEREEFNEREE
FEA Zensun ] & [ IER | BHIZ 2202547
A o



42.

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Qutstanding balances with related parties:
Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as at the end
of the reporting period are included in notes 25, 27 and 28 to the

financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
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42. BEALRS (E)
(b) EBBEALTZAREBES
RBER  NEBHEBEA L2 &%
IR R I SRR 5E25 ~ 27 %28 ©

) AEREZEBASHMH :

2023 2022

2023%F 20225

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBT R

Short term employee benefits EHESEN 409 1,995

Post-employment benefits BERR IR AT 33 122
Total compensation paid to MEBEBEABZMNH

key management personnel Zrif4ase 442 2,117

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments
are included in note 10 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction has been entered into with
the directors of the Company (being the key management personnel)
during the year other than the emoluments paid to them (being key
management personnel compensation) (2022: Nil).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to motivate eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years
from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible persons
of the Share Option Scheme include (i) a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional services to any member of the Group;
and (vi) a landlord or tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any member of
the Group. Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time during the life of the Share Option Scheme to
offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by
the Board from time to time.

EERTETHRAEME ZE—FFE
BN TSR MFE0

B EXPriRE AN NERLEERR
AER(NEEEBAR)ETEMR
Z HAREXNERTEEEAER
Bz B2 B 51 (20224F : &) -

43. HERESTE

7201348 A28 H » AN X RIER 4 ¥ BB AR R =1 &
([FBRERt 8l )) - BT 8l 5 B E AL
BEBRREMEMZABERAL - BIESE
EHSER]  BAIBEES BIRZAE—BEE
MTF - BREFIH ZEERALBRENAE
BEMAKERARZEEREEEZ(BREAELIEF
BITES) : (NANEEEMKE AR 2 EEXHE
BRI ¢ (i) AR ERMKE R R 2 EmRRHB
HER - (WVAKREERKE AR ZEF - &#
B ZBHAZELERME  BFREA &
B REXREK  (VEAKEE[KE AR
PR AT 38 s B Bl S Rr SRR - A AR
B ERRB 2 ATHER « R(vi)ANKEEA
KRERRZEETHXMAF(BESMEF) - BIEE
PR Bz (AR - MR R AR 818 B AE
B EESERAEERNBEEZERS
ERALTREZELBRE MEERELENK
HEZEEETE °
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43.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted is such number of shares which,
when aggregated with shares subject to any other share option scheme(s),
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the annual general meeting approving the Share Option Scheme
on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the grantee
of the options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The
period within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the date
of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but
may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer of the grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date the annual meeting approving
the Share Option Scheme on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any
time not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share
options are accepted.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no options have
been granted under the above-mentioned scheme.

43. BEBRESTEI(E)

BRI ERT S - AT 2 RS R 2 R
MEE LR - SBEMEMBRESTSNS R 2R
BEMN  RZTEBBEARQRR201348 728
ARRAFASE B &2 BRIETEIE %7
BEAR 2 10% o FEAR]+ =16 A 53 AR 45 B8 ik 4
Al AERIETE S A BEWALETZRNHER
LR AR REREEE BETRD1%ER -
Ef#E— SR BaZRE s BREAFRE
R ARSI AR + HAIEST ©

MAARNBEE  TBTBRAEREERRHE
EZAZTMBEA LR HBRE  HEARE
WY FNTER 2 EAE(ABEREARAZ
ERPBSLIEMITEERRIN) o Bboh - FEER+=
18 B BRRS » fw A AR B £ E AR KB 7 I
HTESKFESA2EABHEALREEM
FRIBAD R AT ERE TR MD0.1% R AE
8 385,000,0007%8 7T (R IR A2 Al B D A% A
H 2 BREETE) 2ERE - AIZAFRRRIREAR
SHER - HAIELT ©

BRREZARSENSE1.008T - BRiEZ
VRTERRAZBRS MR BRERS2ER
BEEE - HEARIHIR B AR B LR A
BHEBTF -

BREZITEBRESFGET  ETFERMA
TEBEZESE  (AARRMNEZR L AL
(NBERR S H )RR TS B RE R FTRE T
B (AR ARORBEERZFKL A BT RE
RSBRERAEHRERABRTEHKTE
(i) AN A R R EE ©

HERBBREA TR T 2BREFHE K
NEBERCARARRREFLIAER - T Fr
BB AR R R201348 A28 B (YL /£ A2
B IRRIE S R B H) B BTN 10% ° ERME
A—FARTRAER TEAALZERES
MzBEETRETETRNEBEREARR
IR FBFRHIAERT - DA FEEBARR BRI
MED TN 1% - BRERBREERAZ
R AN 3 T 6 A D 70 T R ) B s 53 88 3 )
BERETTHE o

REBE20234F %2022 12 A1 BIEFE © #
BB AR E BRSO o




COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. R BHBARRER

—So=EER

ARABRIME PR P BEARRBEZ BT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 48 58
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RARZEE 324,181 324,181
Total non-current assets ERBEELRTE 324,229 324,239
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets ~ FEURBR X - H {th FE U k18 % B & 7= 39,516 4,221
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZ SREE 296,871 247,639
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI EPNGIE S 6,343,940 8,243,220
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFEEEEE 7,215 5,002
Total current assets MENEERTE 6,687,542 8,500,082
Current liabilities BB &
Other payables and accruals EtEARERETER 83,576 78,745
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 1,928,223 1,369,088
Amounts due to subsidiaries I NS B R - 1,611,379
Total current liabilities MBI A BB 2,011,799 2,959,212
Net current assets REBEEZEE 4,675,743 5,540,870
Total assets less current liabilities EELABRARBAR 4,999,972 5,865,109
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank and other borrowings IRITREMBEE - 1,092,026
Total non-current liabilities SEmB A EERE - 1,092,026
Net assets BEFE 4,999,972 4,773,083
Equity s
Share capital A% AR 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves (Note) fEE (MTsE) (326,951) (553,840)
Total equity HEmAARE 4,999,972 4,773,083
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44.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. RRATHBMRR Bk (F)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: et -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARZ EEBRAT -
Capital
reduction Exchange Other Retained
reserves reserve reserve earnings Total
BEAHEDR
RER IERE Hibf# & REBER Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR AR AR®T AR®TRT
At 1 January 2022 7202291818 119,330 (817,226) 82,674 127,161 11,939
Total comprehensive FREERE(EE)
income/(loss) R
for the years - 465,700 - (1,081,479) (565,779)
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31H &
and 1 January 2023 2023%F1 81H 119,330 148,474 82,674 (904,318) (553,840)
Total comprehensive FANEEE(EBE)
income/(loss) Pk
for the years - 464,473 - (237,584) 226,889
At 31 December 2023 #2023F 12 31H 119,330 612,947 82,674 (1,141,902) (326,951)
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45. B A THME

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 are as follows:

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

R2023F 12318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

BT

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS S BRTEE AR REMS
% b BE T 2 4t BE MR EE ERZEDL FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
75 Wall Street, LLC USA Note (i) = 100.00  Property investment
=S5 () MERE
American Housing REIT, Inc. USA Common stock - 99.80 Property investment
%H USDB6,256 MERE
LimAk6,256F T
AHR First Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.80 Loan financing and
X M EEG) property investment
EREE MR E
AHR Second Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.80 Loan financing
FEE B () BEXREE
American Senior Housing REIT, USA Note (i) - 99.80 Property investment and
LLC EJE B (1) investment holding
MR E MR EERR
ASHR McKinney, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.80 Property investment
EH () MERE
ASHR First, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.80 Property investment
EH B () MERE
China Credit Singapore Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary shares 100.00 — Investment holding
sk SGD13,417,282 LB R
LiBA% 13,417,282
IR TT
Expats Residences Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary shares - 100.00  Property investment
ESMIES SGD25,002 MEKRE
L@k 25,002
I IT
Heng Fung Capital Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100.00 —  Property investment and
Limited a5 HK$2 securities trading
EERMERRAR Limik2ETT MEBREREBEHEE
Keng Fong Foreign Investment USA Common stock - 100.00  Property investment
Co., Ltd. ESE USD250,000 YERE

B A%250,000% 7T
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45. B A RBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered share equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE AA T ML
=18 I B2 S b B R A EE EmzED FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
Singapore Service Residence Singapore Ordinary shares - 100.00  Property investment
Pte. Ltd. ESMIES SGD1,250,000 MERE
& iBA% 1,250,000
I TT
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100.00  Securities trading
FREERRAF BB HK$1,260,000 BHEE
A% 1,260,000/ 7T
ZH USA, LLC USA Note (i) 100.00 — Investment holding
XEH B 2 ) REERK
Xingcheng Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100.00 Investment holding
B IR A R A A B HK$1 BEER
TmAR1ETT
AEEBCXERAMABRAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Investment holding
Note (i) A RMB1,000,000 KRB R
(D) EERIIE- PN
AR #1,000,0007T
FESFR B B X AR AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) i RMB400,000,000 YIHEER
(D) EERIIIE= N
AR #400,000,0007C
BIGEEREXERAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Pt 22K (i) EERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
A IER B E X ER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) i RMB50,000,000 MEER
fF 3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
R PR EXER AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) ] RMB300,000,000 MEER
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N

AR #300,000,0007T
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45. MIBRARBE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered share equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MR AL, S SRTEE RN T AL
=18 I B S B AR A EE L A= FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ i
AEEEFEEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (il w RMB50,000,000 E 3
(D) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
TAERHEXEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (il R RMB50,000,000 e
B 3£ (i) EfER
AR #50,000,0007T
TENEBEEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development,
Note (ii) = RMB50,000,000 project management
R 52 i) & A services
AR #50,000,0007T VIR - BB BERG
AHEERENEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) R RMB100,000,000 YIEER
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
A IERET SR E X AR A PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R RMB100,000,000 MEBR
BT 5 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007T
AEEEFmEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i wh RMB50,000,000 MEBR
(D) EEAR
AR #50,000,0007C
T EEEREXEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il R RMB100,000,000 E 3
Bt i) Ef &R
AR#100,000,0007C
IR EEBEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development,
Note (ii) = RMB300,000,000 project management
A 5 i) EE A services

AR #300,000,0007T

MEER - HE BERE
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Zensun Enterprises Limited

45. B A RBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered share  equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
HEMRY T CRITEE A B ER
=18 I B S B TR A EE 2B TEEK
Direct Indirect
Hi i3
IR EGEEERAR PRC Registered capital -~ 100.00  Property development,
Note (ii) = RMB200,000,000 project management
A 5 i) FEMEAR services
AR #200,000,0007C VIR - BB BERG
ISR B B R AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) i E RMB100,000,000 YRR
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
A IE R ST E L E A PR A A PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) =z RMB100,000,000 MEBRRE
BT 5 (i) AR
AR #100,000,000
TFEEEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
et 22K (i) A EAR
AR #50,000,0007C
AEEETPEEFEERARA PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (il B RMB100,000,000 3
et 22K (i) EEAR
AR #100,000,0007C
TAEERASEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development,
Note (ii) = RMB100,000,000 project management
B 3£ (i) EfER services
AFR#100,000,0007T VIR - BB BERG
SR IEE B EGR AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (i) R RMB100,000,000 E 23
B3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
AHEESHEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) Y5 RMB100,000,000 YRR
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N

A #100,000,0007T




45.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

45.
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B A R (AR

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS S CRITEE A B ER
=18 b B S B TR A EE 2B FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ i3
T EERKEEGR AR PRC Registered capital -~ 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) A RMB100,000,000 YRR
B3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
AHEEEFHEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) =2 RMB100,000,000 YIEER
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
AR EEFNEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii th RMB100,000,000 MR
BT 5 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007T
TAEARBEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) i RMB20,000,000 MEER
et 22K (i) A EAR
AR #20,000,0007C
AEEETEEFEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il 3 RMB100,000,000 3
et 22K (i) &R
AR#100,000,0007T
AEEEBEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (il =3 RMB100,000,000 MEBR
B 3£ (i) T ER
AFR#100,000,0007T
A TEE FRBEXEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development,
Note (ii) = RMB100,000,000 project management
R 5 i) & A services
AR #¥100,000,0007C VIR - BB BERG
M EEEEEEBRAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development,
Note (ii) el RMB100,000,000 project management

e

A A A
AE#100,000,0007T

services

MEER - HEEERE
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45.
(CONTINUED)

184  Zensun Enterprises Limited

B A R (AR

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered share  equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
ML W CRITEE AN B AR
=18 I B2 S it B AR A EE fEEZBESH FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ i
SREEE X AR A A PRC Registered capital - 60.00 Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB200,000,000 MEER
B 5 (i) AR
AR#200,000,0007T
AEENENEZEARAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) A RMB100,000,000 MEER
B 5 i) AR
AR #100,000,0007C
TS EERTEARAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) ] RMB100,000,000 IR
(D) EEAR
AR #100,000,0007C
TAEEEBHEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) ] RMB100,000,000 IR
R 5 i) EfER
AFR#100,000,0007T
TMARRIEEEBRAR] PRC Registered capital = 60.00  Property development
Note (il F RMB300,000,000 MELHR
B3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #300,000,0007T
AmEEne BEXRNDERAT PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) i E RMB100,000,000 MEER
et 32 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
STREAMBEE AR A A PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) H RMB20,000,000 MEER
(D) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
REBREEEZAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) A RMB100,000,000 MEER
(D) AR

AR #100,000,0007T
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45.
(CONTINUED)

B A R (AR

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered share equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MR CRTLE AT FEML
£ I B B S B AR A EE EmZBEDL FTEEK
Direct Indirect
Hi i3
KIGEEBEXEGRAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) F RMB50,000,000 YEI R
B3 (i) [ERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
T IEEEEEEBR AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) Yz RMB100,000,000 e
B3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
A IEEH S EEBRAR PRC Registered capital = 90.00  Property development
Note (i) Y5 RMB100,000,000 YRR
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
EEREMEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (i) hE RMB100,000,000 MEER
B 5 i) FER BN
AR #100,000,0007T
A IEEREEEBRAR] PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) A RMB100,000,000 MEER
et 32K (i) AR
AR#100,000,0007C
THEEMEZXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development,
Note (ii) o RMB100,000,000 hotel operations
et 22K (i) EEAR MEER  BIEEE
AR #100,000,0007C
AERNEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) F RMB50,000,000 YEI R
B3 (i) [ERIIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
AR EEXERAR PRC Registered capital -~ 100.00  Property development
Note (i) Yz RMB100,000,000 e
B3 (i) EERIE= N

AEE#100,000,0007T
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HZE2023F12A31HIEEE

45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45.
(CONTINUED)

B A R (AR

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered share  equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
ML BRTEE AR FEML
8 I B S B TR A EE EmzBEDL FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
T rREREBEEBR AR PRC Registered capital = 70.00  Property development
Note (i) alE RMB100,000,000 MEER
fF 3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007T
bR EmEEAERAA PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) ] RMB200,000,000 MEER
32 (i) EERHIE= N
AR ®200,000,0007T
BN B R ERE AR AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) H RMB50,000,000 VIR
B i) EERIIE= PN
AR #50,000,0007C
BIMNEUEEXEBR AR PRC Registered capital - 51.00 Property development
Note (i) B RMB10,000,000 YR
et 22K (i) EERIIE- PN
AR #10,000,0007T
AEMERERXARA A PRC Registered capital - 90.00  Property development
Note (i) ] RMB20,000,000 MEER
et 22K (i) & AR
AR #20,000,0007T
EEREEREFAR AR PRC Registered capital = 90.00  Property development
Note (i) ] RMB20,000,000 MEER
et 22K (i) EERIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
B EEEREEBR AR PRC Registered capital = 99.90 Property development
Note (i) i RMB30,000,000 MEER
fF 3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #30,000,0007T
A EEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) S RMB50,000,000 YRR
32 (i) EERHIE= N

A ¥50,000,0007T
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45. MBATME(E)
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
2023 are as follows: (continued) BT - (&)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered share  equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS S BRTEE A B ER
=18 I B S B TR A EE EHzBEDLE FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i3
AGBREEEXARAT PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) ] RMB20,000,000 YISER
B3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
A IERZE AP E X AR A PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB30,000,000 YRR
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #30,000,0007T
BEREEEGRATR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (il L2 RMB50,000,000 WEBRRE
BT 5 (i) AR
AR #50,000,0007C
BN TEE B EBRA A PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
B3 (i) A EAR
AR #20,000,0007T
BRI ITEEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) H RMB20,000,000 YRR
B 3£ (i) EEAR
AR #20,000,0007T
BILEFHEXEGRAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (i) i RMB20,000,000 W R
B 3£ (i) T ER
AR #20,000,0007T
HINFRFBHEARAF PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) ] RMB30,000,000 YISER
B3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #30,000,0007T
BETmEREEARDA PRC Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) S RMB20,000,000 YRR
B 5 (i) EERHIE= N

A #20,000,0007T
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Zensun Enterprises Limited

45. B A RBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered share equity attributable
Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRTEE A F fEf
=8 I B S B AR A EE EEZESE FTEEK
Direct Indirect
Hi i
FNBZREEEFERAA PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i H RMB20,000,000 YRR
et 22K (i) EERIIE- PN
AR #20,000,0007T
BAOmEZFHNEEERAT PRC Registered capital = 56.00 Property development
Note (ii) ] RMB10,000,000 IR
B 3£ (i) T E R
AR #10,000,0007T
AIEEEFIZREBRAR] PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Investment holding
Note (i H RMB100,000,000 BB
B3 (i) EERIIE= N
AR %100,000,0007T
TEREEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB20,000,000 MEER
B3 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
R EEAR A A PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) Hh RMB50,000,000 MEERE
BT 5 (i) AR
AR #50,000,0007T
A IEERANEEBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
B (i) EERIIE- N
AR #50,000,0007T
EMEEEEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
et 22K (i) EERIIE- PN
AR #20,000,0007T
BAEERBEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 41.00  Property development
Note (ii) 2l RMB20,000,000 IR
B 3£ (i) T E R

AR ¥20,000,0007T
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45. MEBLRAHME(E)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

R2023F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
MR AL S CRTLE PINET) 2
Z8B i B S B AR A EE EmzBED FEEWR
Direct Indirect
Hi i3
BB EEREFER AR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) F RMB20,000,000 VIR
B3 (ii) T ER
AR #20,000,0007T
[RI5SFEZEE EGRAR] PRC Registered capital -~ 100.00  Property development
Note (i EP RMB20,000,000 E 4
B 5 (i) EERIIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
BILZRFEEXARAR PRC Registered capital = 100.00 Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB20,000,000 MEER
B 5 (i) EERHIIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
SR EERITEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) e RMB20,000,000 MERR
B 5 i) EfER
AR #20,000,0007T
EHMBREEEFERAA PRC Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (il 2 RMB30,000,000 E 3
(D) AR
AR #30,000,0007C
AEEERIEFEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) il RMB10,000,000 MEER
Bt i) EEAR
AR#10,000,0007T
Notes: Hiat -

(i) No capital contribution is required from the member unless otherwise

required by law.

(ii) Entities established in the PRC are limited liability companies with no
English names registered or available upon establishment.

(i)

BIEEERTTHRE - BRELERTEERNERML
ARBKERF]

RAEBEKRZ 2 ERBRERARF - BRKILR
BHES SRR AT -
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EBREEBRAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

for the year ended 31 December 2023

46.

47.

HZE2023F12A31HIEEE
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Change of company secretary of the Company

With effect from 29 February 2024, Mr. Yuen Ping Man (“Mr. Yuen”)
has retired as the company secretary of the Company and following the
retirement of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Chang Eric Jackson has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 29 February 2024.

Maturity and delisting of the 2024 Notes

As the 2024 Notes matured on 23 April 2024, the 2024 Notes were delisted
from the Stock Exchange on the same day. For further details on the
maturity and delisting of the 2024 Notes, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 22 April 2024.

Change of auditor of the Company

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”) has resigned as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 4 July 2024. On 11 July 2024, with
the recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board has resolved to
appoint Prism Hong Kong Limited (formerly known as Prism Hong Kong
and Shanghai Limited) as the new auditor of the Company, to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Grant Thornton and to hold office until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 4
July 2024 and 11 July 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there was no significant event that affected the
Group has occurred after the end of the Year and up to the date of this
report.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
directors on 30 September 2024.

46.

47.

BEMREE

BERNTNATNE
BREAEE(TREE])BREERARAMRA AWM
£ H2024F2A20HEERK o RIRILAERMT
% RUGBEAEZEARRTNRAIME -
B2024%2 29 B A - BRAE—FFH1E
FRHAA T HEA20245F2 A20B KRS ©

2024 F EE B K BRI
HR2024F ZH D HR2024F4 4238 28 -
2024 F EHEE KR H BB R FTBRIE - BR2024
FERINBRREZE—DSHE  BF2HEAR
FIHHIA2024FE4A22B 2 R ©

B E AN T AR EED

HE (BB SFTMEFMERAE (2R ])#
EARRBZEMBE - 8202467 4B 4
WMo R2024%7 A11H @ IREEZZES 2
H o BECRARTRESHMELMARA
(AT L2 ERetMEEMERAR) AR
A EVFEZEEAR - LUER BRI BHE 18 2 FREs 2=
B EHEEAAR NERFAFASERE
Bk - BRE— LIS F2HARFHBA
202447 A48 k20247 A11 B A -

BEXFRBESN  RAEEEREETAR
EEMY AR EAAYEREENEAES -
#EM B ®E

B 53R R E R 2024 F 9 A0 H B E =L M IR
HET)EE o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHE

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12H31HILLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20225 20215 2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T ARMT T ARMT T AR¥T T

Results 4
Revenue e zs 20,034,898 9,657,056 18,421,496 8,069,061 8,887,186
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(ER) JH%F (2,247,272) (2,942,527) 385,042 778,373 1,151,458
Attributable to: FE(L -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7 Z =N (2,298,458) (2,946,113) 399,470 782,988 1,151,571
Non-controlling interests e AR A 51,186 3,586 (14,428) (4,615) (113)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE(EHER) wA (2,247,272) (2,942,527) 385,042 778,373 1,151,458
As at 31 December
A12H31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023%F 2022%F 20214 20204 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Total assets mEE 46,399,320 61,543,899 68,239,873 67,152,356 51,942,189
Total liabilities BaE 43,275,202 56,223,654 (60,041,216)  (59,263,541)  (48,205,148)
Net assets FEE 3,124,118 5,320,245 8,198,657 7,888,815 3,737,041
Non-controlling interests AR M 2 (55,545) 4,211) (185) (14,885) 3,593
Equity attributable to EATEEA

owners of the Company EihEms 3,068,573 5,316,034 8,198,472 7,873,930 3,740,634
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EBREEBRAR

Zensun Enterprises Limited

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FTEREVHBE

As at 31 December 2023

MW2023%12 A31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREYE
Gross area
Location (approximately) Effective % held Type Lease term
12 AR BEREEE  E5 iR
(#) (%)

No. 883 North Bridge Road, Shop on 1/F. and 28,732 sq.ft. 100% Home Office Long-term lease
27 Home Office Units on various floors, 28,732 FR RERAE RETEL
Southbank, Singapore 198785

N3 Southbankdb 15 358835k — 124 AL & % [EE 8
Z2TEAZRFEHHA BN (B4R - 198785)

5 Residential Units, Dakota Residences, 9,128 sq.ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
34-42 Dakota Crescent, Singapore 399939 9,128FFR = REIAH

IR FT hi Dakota Crescent 34-425%

Dakota Residences 2 5{E{F=E &7 (E#7 : 399939)

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on 2nd Carparking Floor, 3,480 sq.ft. 100% Office premises and Long-term lease
Wyndham Place, No. 44 Wyndham Street, 3,480F R Car Parking space  KHITHAY
Central, Hong Kong MAEYERBA

BAPREFHMFEREEFL
3018 K212 (5 Ei5C85: i

Glen Carr House, 1433 North Hamilton Drive, 29,000 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
Derby, Kansas, 67037, U.S. 29,000 5 R communities KA

Glen Carr House fi 735 BI 5 g H M2 tb T REEREE®
North Hamilton Drive 14335

Oxford Grand McKinney, 2851 Orchid Drive, 69,700 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
McKinney, Texas, 75070, U.S. 69,700F 7R communities KA FENE

Oxford Grand McKinney iz /A3 Bl ET M 2B fE REEERERES
Orchid Drive 2851%%

Land parcels located at 671-180-012, 67.5 acres/ 100% Vacant land Freehold
013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018 278,200 sq.m./ =B+ IKAKRE
Desert Hot Springs, County of Riverside, 2,940,300 sq.ft.
State of California, 92503, U.S. 67.5m,

RIFASE BN A8 B Desert Hot Springs 2 273,200 )5/
#$8671-180-012 013 * 014 ~ 015 » 2,940,300 /5 IR
016017 ~ 018

Unit 330, 75 Wall Street, New York, NY 10005, U.S. 1,370 sq.ft. 100% Hotel and Apartment Freehold

ERAAN AL T Wall Street 7552330 1,370 /R JBIE BB AT IKAFETE

Zhengzhou Zensun International Building, South of Qilihe 20,372 sq.ft. 100% Commercial and office  Commercial Leasehold
South Road and the west of Jiayuan Road Zhengdong 20,372 ;IR properties PR A R
New District, Zhengzhou City [SEY5E N YES

EM ERBIRR AR » frRNE8)H  EP SRR = B A g B
VARG - Z2EIBEIATS
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Stock Exchange 32 fr : 185
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